
 

 

 
Democratic Services   

Guildhall, High Street, Bath BA1 5AW   

Telephone: (01225) 477000 main switchboard Date: 24 November 2014 

Direct Lines - Tel: 01225 394942  Fax: 01225 394439 E-mail: Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk 

Web-site - www.bathnes.gov.uk   

  
  
To: All Members of the Cabinet 
  
Councillor Paul Crossley Leader of the Council 
Councillor David Dixon Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods 
Councillor Simon Allen Cabinet Member for Wellbeing 
Councillor Tim Ball Cabinet Member for Homes and Planning 
Councillor David Bellotti Cabinet Member for Community Resources 
Councillor Caroline Roberts Cabinet Member for Transport 
Councillor Dine Romero Cabinet Member for Early Years, Children and Youth 
Councillor Ben Stevens Cabinet Member for Sustainable Development 
  
Chief Executive and other appropriate officers  
Press and Public  
  
  
Dear Member 
  

Cabinet: Wednesday, 3rd December, 2014  
  

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Cabinet, to be held on Wednesday, 3rd December, 
2014 at 6.30 pm in the Community Space, Keynsham - Market Walk, Keynsham. 
  
The agenda is set out overleaf. 
  

Yours sincerely 
  
 

 
 

  
Col Spring 
for Chief Executive 
  
 

The decisions taken at this meeting of the Cabinet are subject to the Council's call-in procedures.  Within 5 clear working days 
of publication of decisions, at least 10 Councillors may signify in writing to the Chief Executive their wish for a decision to be 
called-in for review.  If a decision is not called-in, it will be implemented after the expiry of the 5 clear working day period. 

 

If you need to access this agenda or any of the supporting reports in an alternative 
accessible format please contact Democratic Services or the relevant report author 
whose details are listed at the end of each report. 

  

This Agenda and all accompanying reports are printed on recycled paper 

  



 

 

NOTES: 
  

1. Inspection of Papers: Any person wishing to inspect minutes, reports, or a list of the 
background papers relating to any item on this Agenda should contact Col Spring who is 
available by telephoning Bath 01225 394942 or by calling at the Guildhall Bath (during 
normal office hours). 
  

2. Public Speaking at Meetings: The Council has a scheme to encourage the public to 
make their views known at meetings.  They may make a statement relevant to what the 
meeting has power to do.  They may also present a petition or a deputation on behalf of a 
group.  Advance notice is required not less than two full working days before the meeting 
(this means that for meetings held on Wednesdays, notice must normally be received in 
Democratic Services by 4.30pm the previous Friday but Bank Holidays will cause this to be 
brought forward). 
  

The public may also ask a question to which a written answer will be given. Questions 
must be submitted in writing to Democratic Services at least two full working days in 
advance of the meeting (this means that for meetings held on Wednesdays, notice must 
normally be received in Democratic Services by 4.30pm the previous Friday but Bank 
Holidays will cause this to be brought forward). If an answer cannot be prepared in time for 
the meeting it will be sent out within five days afterwards. Further details of the scheme 
can be obtained by contacting Col Spring as above. 
  

3. Details of Decisions taken at this meeting can be found in the minutes which will be 
published as soon as possible after the meeting, and also circulated with the agenda for 
the next meeting.  In the meantime details can be obtained by contacting Col Spring as 
above. 
  

Appendices to reports are available for inspection as follows:- 
  

Public Access points - Reception: Civic Centre - Keynsham, Guildhall - Bath, The Hollies 
- Midsomer Norton. Bath Central and Midsomer Norton public libraries. 
  

For Councillors and Officers papers may be inspected via Political Group Research 
Assistants and Group Rooms/Members' Rooms. 
  

4. Recording at Meetings:- 
 
The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 now allows filming and 
recording by anyone attending a meeting.  This is not within the Council’s control. 
 
Some of our meetings are webcast.  At the start of the meeting, the Chair will confirm if all 
or part of the meeting is to be filmed.  If you would prefer not to be filmed for the webcast, 
please make yourself known to the camera operators. 
 
To comply with the Data Protection Act 1998, we require the consent of parents or 
guardians before filming children or young people. For more information, please speak to 
the camera operator 
             
The Council will broadcast the images and sound live via the internet 
www.bathnes.gov.uk/webcast An archived recording of the proceedings will also be 
available for viewing after the meeting. The Council may also use the images/sound 
recordings on its social media site or share with other organisations, such as broadcasters. 
 

5. Attendance Register: Members should sign the Register which will be circulated at the 
meeting. 



 

 

  

6. THE APPENDED SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS ARE IDENTIFIED BY AGENDA ITEM 
NUMBER. 
  

7. Emergency Evacuation Procedure 
  

When the continuous alarm sounds, you must evacuate the building by one of the 
designated exits and proceed to the named assembly point.  The designated exits are 
sign-posted. 
  

Arrangements are in place for the safe evacuation of disabled people. 
  

8. Officer Support to the Cabinet 
Cabinet meetings will be supported by the Senior Management Team. 
  

9. Recorded votes 
A recorded vote will be taken only when requested by a member of Cabinet. 

 



 

 

Cabinet  - Wednesday, 3rd December, 2014 
  

in the Community Space, Keynsham - Market Walk, Keynsham 
  

A G E N D A 
  

1. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS  

2. EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE  

 The Chair will draw attention to the emergency evacuation procedure 

3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 At this point in the meeting declarations of interest are received from Members in any 
of the agenda items under consideration at the meeting. Members are asked to 
indicate: 
(a) The agenda item number in which they have an interest to declare. 
(b) The nature of their interest. 
(c) Whether their interest is a disclosable pecuniary interest or an other interest,   

(as defined in Part 2, A and B of the Code of Conduct and Rules for Registration of 
Interests) 

Any Member who needs to clarify any matters relating to the declaration of interests is 
recommended to seek advice from the Council’s Monitoring Officer or a member of his 
staff before the meeting to expedite dealing with the item during the meeting. 

5. TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR  

6. QUESTIONS FROM PUBLIC AND COUNCILLORS  

 Questions submitted before the deadline will receive a reply from an appropriate 
Cabinet member or a promise to respond within 5 days of the meeting.  Councillors 
may ask one supplementary question for each question they submitted, up to a 
maximum of two per Councillor. 

7. STATEMENTS, DEPUTATIONS OR PETITIONS FROM PUBLIC OR COUNCILLORS  

 Councillors and members of the public may register their intention to make a statement 
if they notify the subject matter of their statement before the deadline.  Statements are 
limited to 3 minutes each.  The speaker may then be asked by Cabinet members to 
answer factual questions arising out of their statement. 

8. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS CABINET MEETING (Pages 7 - 14) 

 To be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chair 

9. CONSIDERATION OF SINGLE MEMBER ITEMS REQUISITIONED TO CABINET  

 This is a standard agenda item, to cover any reports originally placed on the Weekly 
list for single Member decision making, which have subsequently been the subject of a 
Cabinet Member requisition to the full Cabinet, under the Council’s procedural rules 



 

 

10. MATTERS REFERRED BY POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND SCRUTINY BODIES  

 This is a standing agenda item for matters referred by Policy Development and 
Scrutiny bodies.  The Chair of the relevant PDS Panel will have the right to attend and 
to introduce the Panel’s recommendations to Cabinet. 

11. SINGLE MEMBER CABINET DECISIONS TAKEN SINCE PREVIOUS CABINET 
MEETING (Pages 15 - 16) 

 This report lists Cabinet Single Member decisions taken and published since the last 
Cabinet meeting. 

12. A REVIEW OF THE COUNCIL'S "THINK LOCAL" PROCUREMENT STRATEGY 
(Pages 17 - 66) 

 The Council’s “Think Local” Corporate Procurement Strategy was launched in October 
2013. A key aim of the Strategy is to support local small businesses whilst 
demonstrating that the Council is obtaining Best Value from its procurement 
processes. The Council intends to use Social Value legislation along with existing 
powers to support the delivery of the Strategy. 

13. REVIEW OF THE COUNCIL'S STREET TRADING POLICY AND CONDITIONS 
(Pages 67 - 116) 

 This report brings the findings of the consultation exercise carried out on the proposed 
revision of the Council’s Street Trading policy, conditions and new guidance 

14. PROCUREMENT OF LEISURE CONTRACT (Pages 117 - 120) 

 The award of long term contracts for the development, management and operation of 
the Council’s Leisure Facilities and Golf Courses 

15. CONNECTING COMMUNITIES: UPDATE (Pages 121 - 124) 

 This report sets out progress so far on the Connecting Communities programme 
(including establishing Connecting Communities Forums), provides an update on Bath 
City governance, and recommends next steps 

16. SALTFORD STATION (Pages 125 - 188) 

 Cabinet previously agreed that a High Level Option Assessment should be 
commissioned into the potential for reopening Saltford Station.  The initial conclusions 
of that report were shared at a public exhibition in May this year.  Cabinet now needs 
to decide if it wishes to take this project forward and, if so, in what timescale. 

17. EDUCATION CAPITAL PROJECTS FOR BUDGETARY APPROVAL FOR 
EXPENDITURE 2014-15 (Pages 189 - 194) 

 Approval is requested for commitment of budget and inclusion in the 2014-15 
education capital programme of specific capital schemes 

  
  
The Committee Administrator for this meeting is Col Spring who can be contacted on  
01225 394942. 



 

 

 

Protocol for Decision-making 

 

Guidance for Members when making decisions 

When making decisions, the Cabinet/Committee must ensure it has regard only to relevant 
considerations and disregards those that are not material. 

The Cabinet/Committee must ensure that it bears in mind the following legal duties when 
making its decisions: 

 

• Equalities considerations 

• Risk Management considerations 

• Crime and Disorder considerations 

• Sustainability considerations 

• Natural Environment considerations 

• Planning Act 2008 considerations 

• Human Rights Act 1998 considerations 

• Children Act 2004 considerations 

• Public Health & Inequalities considerations 

 

Whilst it is the responsibility of the report author and the Council’s Monitoring Officer and Chief 
Financial Officer to assess the applicability of the legal requirements, decision makers should 
ensure they are satisfied that the information presented to them is consistent with and takes due 
regard of them. 



 

19 

BATH AND NORTH EAST SOMERSET 

 

CABINET 

 

Wednesday, 12th November, 2014 
 
 

These minutes are draft until 
confirmed as a correct record at 
the next meeting. 

 

 

Present: 
Councillor Paul Crossley Leader of the Council 
Councillor David Dixon Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods 
Councillor Simon Allen Cabinet Member for Wellbeing 
Councillor Tim Ball Cabinet Member for Homes and Planning 
Councillor David Bellotti Cabinet Member for Community Resources 
Councillor Caroline Roberts Cabinet Member for Transport 
Councillor Dine Romero Cabinet Member for Early Years, Children and Youth 
Councillor Ben Stevens Cabinet Member for Sustainable Development 
  
  
  

75 

  
WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS 

 

The Chair was taken by Councillor Paul Crossley, Leader of the Council. 

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting. 

  

76 

  
EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

 

The Chair drew attention to the evacuation procedure as set out in the Agenda. 

  

77 

  
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 

There were no apologies for absence. 

  

78 

  
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 

There were none. 

  

79 

  
TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR 

 

There was none. 

  

80 

  
QUESTIONS FROM PUBLIC AND COUNCILLORS 

 

There were 19 questions from Councillors and 14 questions from members of the 
public. 

[Copies of the questions and responses, including supplementary questions and 
responses if any, have been placed on the Minute book as Appendix 1 and are 
available on the Council's website.] 

  

81 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS CABINET MEETING 

Agenda Item 8

Page 7



 

 

20 

   

On a motion from Councillor Paul Crossley, seconded by Councillor David Dixon, it 
was 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 10th September 
2014 be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 

  

82 

  
CONSIDERATION OF SINGLE MEMBER ITEMS REQUISITIONED TO CABINET 

 

There were none. 

  

83 

  
MATTERS REFERRED BY POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND SCRUTINY BODIES 

 

There were none. 

  

84 

  
SINGLE MEMBER CABINET DECISIONS TAKEN SINCE PREVIOUS CABINET 

MEETING 

 

The Cabinet agreed to note the report. 

  

85 

  
TREASURY MANAGEMENT MONITORING REPORT TO 30TH SEPTEMBER 

2014 

 

Councillor David Bellotti introduced the report and asked the Cabinet to note the 
information contained.  He moved the proposal that Cabinet would recommend to 
Council that it adopts the Treasury Management Strategy. 

Councillor Paul Crossley seconded the proposal and observed that the excellent 
figures contained in the report were a reflection of the rigour with which Cabinet 
members and Strategic Directors had operated within the budget. 

On a motion from Councillor David Bellotti, seconded by Councillor Paul Crossley, it 
was 

RESOLVED (unanimously) 

(1) To NOTE the Treasury Management Report to 30th September 2014, prepared in 
accordance with the CIPFA Treasury Code of Practice; 

(2) To NOTE the Treasury Management Indicators to 30th September 2014; 

(3) To NOTE that this Treasury Management Report and attached appendices will be 
reported to November Council and December Corporate Audit Committee; and 

(4) To RECOMMEND to Council the proposed amendments to the 2014/15 Treasury 
Management Strategy. 

  

86 

  
REVENUE & CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING, CASH LIMITS AND VIREMENTS 

– APRIL TO SEPTEMBER 2014 

 

Councillor Charles Gerrish in an ad hoc statement referred to appendix 5(i) of the 
report and asked what the Property Acquisition Bath item was; he believed the 
amount on that line should be £8M, not £10M.  He also asked for an explanation of 
the item Bishop Sutton BN Feasibility. 

Page 8



 

 

21 

Councillor David Bellotti proposed the recommendations.  He responded to the 
queries put by Councillor Gerrish by saying that the Acquisition in Bath was the 
Seven Dials; and the Bishop Sutton BN Study was the Basic Needs Study for the 
Primary School. 

He observed that the Council continued to manage within budget while remaining on 
target in the delivery of services and projects.  He explained that Wellbeing had been 
challenging because it was a needs-led service and was therefore difficult to predict.  
He was delighted to announce that it had been possible to increase spending on 
parks and libraries in order to improve and maintain the services.  Transport was well 
on budget despite the known difficulties of predicting parking behaviour and Park and 
Ride use.  He referred to the overspend in Children and Youth but emphasised that 
this was caused by one or two very special cases, which warranted the expenditure 
but which could not have been predicted.  In summary, he observed that in the 3 
years of the administration the Council had maintained services while saving money. 

Councillor Paul Crossley seconded the proposal. 

On a motion from Councillor David Bellotti, seconded by Councillor Paul Crossley, it 
was 

RESOLVED (unanimously) 

(1) To ASK Strategic Directors should continue to work towards managing within 
budget in the current year for their respective service areas, and to manage below 
budget where possible by not committing unnecessary expenditure, through tight 
budgetary control; 

(2) To NOTE this year’s revenue budget position; 

(3) To NOTE the capital expenditure position for the Council in the financial year to 
the end of September and the year-end projections; 

(4) To AGREE the revenue virements listed for approval; and 

(5) To NOTE the changes in the capital programme. 

  

87 

  
STATEMENTS, DEPUTATIONS OR PETITIONS FROM PUBLIC OR 

COUNCILLORS 

 

Anne Marie Jovcic-Sas in a statement [a copy of which is attached to the Minutes as 
Appendix 2 and on the Council's website] said that the changes to the 768 bus route 
had not been consulted on.  The timetable had remained the same for 15 years and 
people had come to depend on it.  The majority of users were elderly. 

Kim Donovan in a statement [a copy of which is attached to the Minutes as Appendix 
3 and on the Council's website] appealed to the Cabinet to install suitable pedestrian 
safety measures at the North Road junction off the A36 Salisbury Road.  She 
referred to diagrams of the road layout during her statement.  After speaking she 
presented a petition of 96 signatures which the Chair referred to Councillor Caroline 
Roberts for a response in due course. 

Councillor Caroline Roberts asked Kim Donovan whether anyone from the Council 
had spoken to her or the group.  Kim confirmed that Councillor David Martin had 
been helping the group make its case. 

Councillor Charles Gerrish in a statement referred to the double yellow lines in the 
vicinity of the Rest A While Café in Keynsham which prevented customers from 
parking conveniently.  He presented a petition of 109 signatures to Cabinet asking 

Page 9



 

 

22 

that the double yellow lines be removed.  The Chair referred the petition to Councillor 
Caroline Roberts for a response in due course. 

Councillor Caroline Roberts asked Councillor Gerrish how long the lines had been 
there.  Councillor Gerrish said they had been there for 2 years. 

Duncan Hounsell (Saltford Station Campaign) made a statement [a copy of which is 
attached to the Minutes as Appendix 4 and on the Council's website] in which he 
welcomed the recent announcement that £250K would be included in the budget 
proposals for 2015 so that the project could move to the next stage.  He felt that re-
opening the station would be an important milestone in the economic growth of the 
sub-region. 

  

88 

  
PLACEMAKING PLAN OPTIONS FOR PUBLIC CONSULTATION 

 

Councillor Eleanor Jackson in a statement [a copy of which is attached to the 
Minutes as Appendix 5 and on the Council's website] welcomed the progress made 
and acknowledged the attention shown to those who had responded during the 
public consultation period; but observed that some surplus sites had still not been 
disposed of and she felt that too little attention had been given to issues of drainage 
and flooding in Radstock.  She appealed to Cabinet to improve the rail, broadband 
and road infrastructures. 

Councillor Ben Stevens asked whether Councillor Jackson was more satisfied having 
read the Economic Strategy, which spoke of improving the economy of the rural 
areas.  Councillor Jackson agreed that, as far as it went, it was good enough but she 
wanted to see more. 

Colin Currie (Radstock Action Group) in a statement [a copy of which is attached to 
the Minutes as Appendix 6 and on the Council's website] expressed concern at the 
omission of the railway from the Placemaking Plan and appealed to the Cabinet to 
give equal weight to industry as to housing. 

Councillor Charles Gerrish in an ad hoc statement welcomed the document but 
made several observations and suggested amendments which may be seen in his 
notes [a copy of which is attached to the Minutes as Appendix 11 and on the 
Council's website]  

Peter Duppa-Miller in an ad hoc statement offered to take a copy of the Plan for 
display at Combe Hay Public Library. 

Councillor Tim Ball in proposing the item, acknowledged the points raised by 
Councillor Eleanor Jackson.  He emphasised that the proposal was to move to a 
public consultation period and asked people to respond to the consultation.    He 
asked Councillor Gerrish to provide him with a copy of his notes, so that the points 
he had made could be incorporated into the document. 

Councillor David Dixon seconded the proposal and said that 58% of people 
supported the provision of social housing.  He felt that the Placemaking Plan was a 
central function of local government. 

Councillor Paul Crossley reminded the meeting that the document presented options; 
it was not fixed in stone.  The Cabinet was determined to deliver on housing and 
jobs.  He commended Councillor Tim Ball and the officers on the quality of the first 
draft of the document and observed that final delivery would be the responsibility of 
the Council which would be elected in May 2015. 

Page 10



 

 

23 

Councillor Tim Ball in summing up emphasised that he was eager to improve social 
housing provision. 

On a motion from Councillor Tim Ball, seconded by Councillor Paul Crossley, it was 

RESOLVED (unanimously) 

(1) To AGREE the B&NES Placemaking Plan Options document for public 
consultation; 

(2) To AGREE the proposed consultation strategy; and 

(3) To DELEGATE responsibility to the Divisional Director for Development in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Homes & Planning to make minor textual 
amendments to the consultation documents prior to publication. 

  

89 

  
ENTERPRISE AREA MASTERPLAN 

 

Councillor Patrick Anketell-Jones in an ad hoc statement said that the Masterplan 
provided an opportunity for long-derelict land to be put back into use, for the river to 
be given back to the people of Bath and to provide a catalyst for business and the 
exchange of ideas.  He warned however that land was finite, and once sold off could 
not easily be reclaimed. 

Councillor Ben Stevens introduced the item.  He explained that the map on the 
centre pages of the document set out the detail.  The Masterplan fitted closely with 
the Placemaking Plan and the Transport Strategy.  The Council was significantly 
ahead of neighbouring authorities and had available a rich source of sites.  He 
agreed with Councillor Anketell-Jones about the opportunity to return the river back 
into use by local people.  He referred to paragraph 3.2 of the report and explained 
that the words “these projects” should say “”projects in Bath & NE Somerset”; and 
that after the words “not delivered”, should be added the words “currently a liability of 
up to £1.5M”. 

He moved the proposals. 

Councillor Paul Crossley seconded the proposal.  He welcomed the observations 
made by Councillor Patrick Anketell-Jones and stressed that the Masterplan would 
provide valuable opportunities for the area. 

Councillor David Dixon congratulated Councillor Stevens on the document which 
showed vision and which was an ambitious plan for the derelict stretch of the river.  
He stressed the need to embrace the very best architecture and the need to attract 
inward investment in jobs. 

Councillor Tim Ball felt that the document was exciting; it would deliver sustainable 
development and controlled growth.  He was keen to develop further plans to extend 
the enterprise area along the river towards Keynsham. 

Councillor Ben Stevens summed up by pointing out that the Masterplan would 
protect the interests of every resident and would not leave the future in the hands of 
market interests. 

On a motion from Councillor Ben Stevens, seconded by Councillor Paul Crossley, it 
was 

RESOLVED (unanimously) 

(1) To ENDORSE the vision, objectives and priorities set out in the Bath City 
Riverside Enterprise Area Masterplan. 

Page 11



 

 

24 

  

90 

  
GETTING AROUND BATH TRANSPORT STRATEGY 

 

Robin Kerr (Chairman, Federation of Bath Residents’ Associations) in a statement [a 
copy of which is attached to the Minutes as Appendix 7 and on the Council's website] 
made a number of points relating to traffic congestion and air pollution and supported 
the rapid implementation of the strategy which he said was vital and long-awaited. 

Adam Reynolds (Chair, Cycle Bath) in a statement [a copy of which is attached to 
the Minutes as Appendix 8 and on the Council's website] appealed to the Cabinet to 
invest £10 per head of population into cycling on a yearly basis. 

Councillor David Dixon asked Adam Reynolds why he had suggested £10 per head.  
Adam said he felt that £10 would be a starting point but that Bristol invested £16 per 
head per year. 

Councillor David Bellotti asked Adam Reynolds whether he knew the sum of the 
Council’s investments in cycling in the last year had in fact been more than £10 per 
head.  Adam said he had hoped for a commitment to annual investment, not for a 
single year.  Councillor Bellotti asked whether Adam was aware that the Cabinet 
could not commit to expenditure under future administrations and Adam 
acknowledged that he had not been aware of that. 

Councillor Tim Ball asked Adam Reynolds whether he felt that all cyclists should 
undertake training.  Adam acknowledged that there were some bad cyclists, as there 
were some bad motorists. 

Professor Donald Thomas (Greenway Residents Association) in a statement [a copy 
of which is attached to the Minutes as Appendix 9 and on the Council's website] 
urging greater emphasis on pollution in residential areas. 

Steve Bradley (Liberal Democrat Prospective MP for Bath) in a statement [a copy of 
which is attached to the Minutes as Appendix 10 and on the Council's website] urged 
the Cabinet to pursue the Park and Ride proposal for the east of Bath; to make 
progress on the options available for relief for the east of Bath; and to continue its 
commitment to the MetroWest project. 

Councillor Anthony Clarke in an ad hoc statement expressed disappointment that 
only a limited area was being covered by the proposals and asked that they be seen 
as the first of a number of building blocks. 

Councillor Caroline Roberts moved the proposals.  She referred to the Transport 
strategy which had been held in 2013; the Planning, Transport and Environment 
PDS Panel had scrutinised the Plan; the Local Development Forum steering group 
had given it cross-party consideration; and now the Cabinet was being asked to 
recommend the Plan to Council for adoption. 

Councillor Paul Crossley seconded the proposal.  He felt it was an exciting Plan with 
a wide consensus of agreement.  He had been particularly impressed by the 
comments made by Professor Donald on air quality.  He also welcomed the 
challenge made by Adam Reynolds over the issue of cycling provision. 

Councillor Crossley emphasised that the MetroWest project would be key to delivery 
of the Strategy and he was pleased to hear the support from local Residents 
Associations.  He reminded the meeting that attention would next be given to the 
Transport Strategy for Keynsham, although that responsibility would fall to the next 
administration. 

Page 12



 

 

25 

Councillor Tim Ball said that the administration had successfully introduced the Core 
Plan, Enterprise Area Masterplan and now was about to agree the Bath Transport 
Strategy.  He agreed with the points made by Adam Reynolds because he too had 
youngsters who could not cycle on the roads because of bad drivers. 

Councillor Dine Romero supported the proposals which she said were a work in 
progress but which contained some exciting solutions to the needs of the city. 

Councillor David Dixon said that it would never be possible to solve completely the 
problems of Bath’s transport system; but under the present administration superb 
progress had been made.  He anticipated an ongoing debate about through traffic 
and the link road to the east of the city.  He was determined to look at more 
adventurous, sustainable good quality solutions. 

Councillor Caroline Roberts summed up by emphasising that the Strategy would 
meet the needs of all users of the city. 

On a motion from Councillor Caroline Roberts, seconded by Councillor Paul 
Crossley, it was 

RESOLVED (unanimously) 

(1) To ENDORSE the Getting Around Bath Transport Strategy and recommends that 
it be adopted by Council on 12th November 2014; and 

(2) To APPROVE the capital budget of £350k in 2014/15 and £150k in 2015/16) 
towards the development of the Park & Ride to the east of Bath. 

  

91 

  
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES CAPITAL APPROVAL 

 

Councillor Patrick Anketell-Jones in an ad hoc statement said he felt that the new 
facility should be located in the lower chapel, where most people would use it.  He 
also encouraged the Cabinet member to consider providing funerals on Saturdays. 

Councillor David Dixon moved the proposals.  He thanked Councillor Anketell-Jones 
for his contribution and agreed to consider the points he had made.  The location 
would be subject to consultation.  He reminded Cabinet that previous improvements 
to the cemetery facilities had received very positive feedback. 

Councillor Dine Romero seconded the proposal.  She felt that both the upper and 
lower chapels could make a good business case for housing the new facilities.  She 
asked for an assurance that local businesses would be given opportunities to get 
involved. 

Councillor Paul Crossley observed that the number 12 bus provided a very important 
service for visitors to the cemetery.  He agreed that in siting the new facilities, both 
chapels should be considered. 

Councillor David Dixon summed up by saying that local businesses would be 
involved, in line with the council’s local procurement policy.  He also pointed out that 
at present, the number 12 bus stopped across the road from the cemetery and that 
was being considered. 

On a motion from Councillor David Dixon, seconded by Councillor Dine Romero, it 
was 

RESOLVED (unanimously) 

Page 13



 

 

26 

(1) To APPROVE the release of the £100K capital allocated to Haycombe Cemetery 
and Crematorium to improve the experience for visitors and give the potential to 
provide flowers and refreshments on site. 

  

92 

  
BATH AND WEST COMMUNITY ENERGY CO-OPERATION AGREEMENT 

RENEWAL 

 

Councillor David Martin in an ad hoc statement said he supported the proposals.  
The Co-operation agreement had worked well and had been recognised as a 
national exemplar. 

Councillor Paul Crossley in proposing the item said that he had been delighted with 
the partnership.  It had been ground-breaking and had worked very well.  The co-
operation elements of the agreement had been crucial to its success and he felt that 
it was worthy of being renewed for a further 5 years. 

Councillor Simon Allen seconded the proposal.  He remembered that this agreement 
had been one of the first made by the Cabinet in 2011.  Solar panels had been 
installed on the roofs of 6 local schools.  He was delighted that the Council had 
doubled the amount of energy it derived from renewable sources.  

On a motion from Councillor Paul Crossley, seconded by Councillor Simon Allen, it 
was 

RESOLVED (unanimously) 

(1) To RENEW the BWCE Cooperation Agreement for five years, until November 
2019. 

  
  
  
The meeting ended at 3.27 pm  
  
Chair  

  
Date Confirmed and Signed  

  
Prepared by Democratic Services 

  

Page 14



Date

Reference

22-Oct-14

28-Oct-14

10-Nov-14

The Cabinet Member agreed to accept the DfT revenue funding award of £643k to support 

sustainable transport initiatives in 2015/6and a capital funding award of £486k to improve 

pedestrian and cycling links

Cllr Caroline Roberts

E2695  DfT Local Sustainable Transport Fund 2015/6

Bath & North East Somerset Council

Cabinet Single-Member Decisions and Responses to 

Recommendations from PDS Panels

published 7-Nov-14 to 21-Nov-14

The Cabinet member approved the proposals as advertised

E2683  Harts Lane, Hallatrow 7.5T Wt Limit and 30mph Speed Limit extension

E2646  Terrace Walk Road Space Re-Arrangement Plan

  

The Cabinet Member approved the proposals as advertised

End of Report

Further details of each decision can be seen on the Council's Single-member Decision Register at 

http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx?&dm=3

Decision Maker

Title

Cllr Caroline Roberts

Cllr Caroline Roberts

  

Agenda Item 11

Page 15



page 2

Date

Reference

  

  

  

Title

  

Decision Maker

Page 16



Printed on recycled paper 1

 
Bath & North East Somerset Council 

 

MEETING Cabinet 

MEETING
DATE:  

3rd December 2014 

EXECUTIVE FORWARD 

PLAN REFERENCE: 

E2706 

TITLE: “Think Local” Procurement Strategy 

WARD: All  

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

List of attachments to this report:   

Think Local ‘one-year-on’ report 

Selling to the Council guide (draft) 

B&NES Social Value Policy 

 
1 THE ISSUE 

1.1 The Council’s Corporate Procurement Strategy – “Think Local” was launched in 
October 2013. A key aim of the Strategy is to support local Small & Medium 
Sized Enterprises (SME’s) and Micro Businesses whilst demonstrating that the 
Council is obtaining Best Value from its procurement processes. The Council 
intends to use Social Value legislation along with existing powers to support the 
delivery of the Strategy. 

1.2 The “Think Local” one-year-on progress report identifies areas where progress 
has been made against the Strategy and issues still to tackle in respect of 
implementing Social Value within the procurement process across the Council. 

1.3 The Cabinet needs to adopt the Social Value Policy to ensure that Social Value 
is at the heart of its procurement processes and meets the legal requirements 
set out in the Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012.  

2 RECOMMENDATION 

Cabinet is asked to: 

2.1 Note the progress report on implementing the Councils “Think Local” 
Procurement Strategy 

2.2 Note the intention to revise the Council’s Contract Standing Orders to reflect the 
implementation of the Public Contract Regulations 2015 and other legislation. 
This will include: 

• Revising financial limits to provide local businesses with the opportunity to 
obtain contracts up to £50,000.   

2.3 Note the draft Selling to the Council Guide 

2.4 To adopt the Social Value Policy to ensure that the Council meets its statutory 
requirements under the Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 

Agenda Item 12

Page 17



Printed on recycled paper 2

3 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCE, PROPERTY, PEOPLE) 

3.1 No direct resource implications. 

4 STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS AND BASIS FOR PROPOSAL 

4.1 Statutory obligations under the Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 and 
clarification of Social Value with relation to other legislation including Section 3 
Local Government Act 1999, Best Value Statutory Guidance 2011, Part 1 of the 
Localism Act 2011. 

4.2 B&NES Procurement Strategy April 2013 – ‘We will prioritise Social Value for our 
community. This means targeting opportunities for the local economy, providing 
for a sustainable future and supporting the vulnerable’ 

• Stronger communities will be built through the development of sustainable 
solutions. 
 ‘Economic, Environmental and Social considerations will be included in Service 

contract evaluation criteria and in other contracts wherever appropriate.’ 
‘Guidance and training will be provided to Commissioners and Service Providers 
on how this can be achieved including examples of the range of added value 
options that might be included in bids.’ 

• Economic, Environmental and Social wellbeing needs will be established    
and prioritised. 
Research will be undertaken so that appropriate guidance can be given to staff 
when constructing tender documentation and evaluating bids 

4.3 The B&NES Economic Strategy has been updated and was adopted by Cabinet 
in September 2014.  Within the strategy there is specific reference to the “Think 
Local” Procurement Strategy. 

5 THE REPORT 

5.1 The attached report ‘“Think Local” – One Year On’ highlights the progress the 
Council has made in the implementation of the updated Procurement Strategy.  
One of the cornerstones of the Strategy is to maximise the social value that can 
be obtained through the procurement and commissioning process. The report 
shows the progress that has been made and the next steps the Council will be 
taking. 

5.2 The Government has finalised consultation on the Public Contract Regulations 
2015 which will transpose the 2014 European Procurement Directives into law. 
The Council will revise Contract Standing Orders (CSO’s) that reflect the 
regulations and use the opportunity to embed the “Think Local” strategy within 
them. This will include revising financial limits to provide local businesses with 
the opportunity to obtain contracts up to £50,000. 

5.3 The Corporate Procurement Team are developing further guidance for suppliers 
(see the draft Selling to the Council Guide) to help businesses engage with the 
Council. The guide includes initial proposals on revising the financial limits as 
highlighted in 5.2. The guide will be subject to consultation with the local 
business community. 

5.4 The “Think Local” Procurement Strategy covers more than the local sourcing 
dimension. The Social Value Policy provides a way forward to embed all aspects 
of Social Value within the Council’s contracting arrangements. The Corporate 
Procurement Team will develop guidance on ethical and sustainable 

Page 18



Printed on recycled paper 3

procurement to support other elements of the Procurement Strategy. This will 
include guidance on areas such as :- 

• Encouraging suppliers not to use zero hours contracts 

• The prompt payment of subcontractors 

• Whole life costs and reducing the Council’s carbon footprint (working with the 
Sustainability Team) 

5.5 With the introduction of the Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012, Local 
Authorities have a duty to consider how to improve the economic, social and 
environmental well-being of the area served by them through procurement, and 
how to undertake the process of procurement with a view to securing that 
improvement.   

5.6 Under the Social Value Procurement Policy the Council commits to applying the 
obligations of the Act not only to those services contracts to which the Act 
applies itself, but also to works and supplies contracts, and to services contracts 
that are below the value where the Regulations apply. The Council has the 
power to do so under the general power of competence set out at section 1, Part 
1 of the Localism Act 2011, and considers that to do so will be in furtherance of 
its best value duty under section 3 of the Local Government Act 1999. 

• All works contracts (including contracts for a mixture of works and services or 
supplies) where the value of the contract is expected to exceed £500,000; 

• All services contracts and supplies contracts (including contracts for a mixture of 
works and supplies or services) where the value of the contract is expected to 
exceed £100,000; 

• All framework agreements where the anticipated spend in any financial year is 
expected to exceed the above; 

• All joint contracts with other purchasers where the value of the Council 
expenditure is expected to exceed the above thresholds. 

 
5.7 The Social Value Procurement Policy details how all services and agencies of 

the Council will implement the above commitments and provides the policy basis 
for including social value requirements as a part of ‘the subject matter of the 
contract’ as the default approach within the Council where the contract falls 
within the scope of the policy.   

5.8 Where Social Value is relevant to the subject matter of the contract, the Council 
is able to take it into account in its evaluation of tenders.  Policy and strategy 
goals are by their nature relevant to the subject matter of everything that the 
Council does, including its contracts, as the Council makes its decisions as to 
what to purchase based on its policy and strategy goals.  To the extent that it 
considers relevant to do so, the Council will treat this Social Value Procurement 
Policy as relevant to each of its procurement exercises. 

6 RATIONALE 

6.1 The policy is an essential guide to how officers need to conduct their 
commissioning and procurement activities over the coming years. Following 
extensive consultation it represents the identified actions this Council will need to 
adopt in order to comply with its own financial and organisational objectives and 
to comply with new national regulatory requirements that have either just been 
introduced or which are about to be introduced.  

Page 19



Printed on recycled paper 4

6.2 As well as ensuring the Council complies with statutory obligations it will 
strengthen the Council’s position around the delivery of its local objective relating 
to Economic Development and Health and Wellbeing.  

6.3 There are other wider benefits to society of increasing the social mobility of an 
individual in economic terms, through elevated tax revenues and decreasing 
pressures on health and education services. 

7 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

7.1 The Policy is required to clarify how the Council will meet its statutory 
responsibilities therefore other options were not explored at this time.  

7.2 The Policy will be incorporated into the Council’s Contract Standing Orders once 
the 2014 EU Procurement Directives are transposed into UK national legislation 
in early 2015. 

8 CONSULTATION 

8.1 A Council wide consultation has been undertaken. This included Directors Group 
and two information and feedback sessions led by the Corporate Procurement 
Team attended by key B&NES procurement and commissioning staff.  

8.2 The B&NES Co-ordinated Employer Gateway has also been consulted.  

9 RISK MANAGEMENT 

9.1 A risk assessment related to the issue and recommendations has been undertaken, in 
compliance with the Council's decision making risk management guidance.  

9.2 By formally adopting the Social Value Policy the Council further reduces the risks from 
legal challenges during the procurement process.  

 

 

Contact person  Richard Howroyd 01225 47 7334 

Background 
papers 

“Think Local” Corporate Procurement Strategy   

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an alternative 
format 

 

Page 20



 

Page 1 of 7 

 

“THINK LOCAL” – ONE YEAR ON REPORT (October 2014) 
 

1 The “Think Local” Context 

  

The ‘Think Local’ Procurement Strategy 2013-2017 was launched to Bath and North 

East Somerset’s SME businesses in October 2013.  The guiding principles behind the 

strategy are to open up more opportunities to businesses within the B&NES 

boundaries whilst at the same time being compliant with internal procurement 

requirements and the EU Procurement Directives by which the Council’s 

procurement activities are bound. This opening up of opportunities is taking place in 

an environment where cost savings and stringent and consistent contract 

management also prevail.   

 

The strategy gives a mandate to encourage officers to actively engage with B&NES-

based organisations as supporting the local economy is crucial to the development of 

our local area.  It is not just the money spent with local organisations that is crucial 

but it is also the subsequent employment, training, and opportunities that this 

supports and creates.  Indirect spend with local organisations is also important.  

There are some contracts, such as major construction projects, which might not be 

the right size for an SME; however, the use of local SMEs as sub-contractors plays an 

equally important part of the procurement mix. 

 

Much is said about the EU Procurement Directives which govern the rules for public 

sector procurement.  Yes, they do impose restrictions on the council’s ability to 

award contracts to whom they like without competition, but if local SMEs are willing 

to engage with the council then there are opportunities available.   We cannot 

promise everything will go to B&NES organisations but we can work with 

organisations as part of our pre-procurement activities to ensure that they are in a 

good position to bid.  Indeed the new EU Procurement Directive which is expected to 

come into force in early 2015 actively promotes this as a requirement of procuring 

bodies. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 21



 

Page 2 of 7 

 

2 Outcomes since the launch of the Think Local strategy in October 2013 

 

(i) Where we are spending our money 

 

One of the key strands of the “Think Local” strategy is to improve the Council’s 

spending with local organisations and SMEs.  We have had spend analysis tools for 

some time but it is only in the last couple of years that we have been able to use 

these to accurately analyse Council spend by different sizes of organisation, and to 

easily pin-point their location.  In 2013/14 over 38% of our spend was with local 

B&NES organisations which means that close to £60 million is being spent in the local 

economy with the associated benefits of thriving businesses and employment 

opportunities.  This figure gives us a solid baseline from which to grow.  With 

increased supplier market development and improved procurement processes it is 

possible to increase this percentage year on year. 

 

In terms of spending on SMEs overall this is at almost 50% of our spend and the 

proportion of the number of SME suppliers we have is approximately 81%.  This 

means that the majority of our suppliers are SMEs but that some of the major spend 

and contracts are delivered by large organisations.  What we are unable to ascertain 

from our data is what is the level of sub-contracting to local and/or SMEs.  For 

example, the contractor for a major construction project will often use local 

organisations to deliver part of the project and this will have a benefit to the local 

economy. The use of local subcontractors and was an important part of the £34 

million project to regenerate Keynsham including the building of the new Civic 

Centre. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 22



 

Page 3 of 7 

 

Proportion of Council business with local suppliers: 

 

 
 

 

Proportion of Council business with SMEs: 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2012/13 2013/14 

2012/13 2013/14 

Page 23



 

Page 4 of 7 

 

(ii) Co-Working Hub, Guildhall, Bath 

 

This dynamic space on the ground floor of The Guildhall in Bath has now been open 

for just over a year and offers a mixture of creative work space and meeting rooms, 

designed for those working in either the tech or creative industries.  It caters, 

primarily, for the micro end of SMEs and, with B&NES input and support, makes this 

an important hub for these organisations offering a welcome base for the 

organisations with the added benefits of flexible workspace and networking with 

like-minded people.  

 

(iii) Home to School Transport – Taxi provision 

 

Another recent success is the development of a Dynamic Purchasing System (DPS) 

for the contract for taxis for home to school contract.  This method of letting a fully 

procurement-compliant process will allow small taxi operators to join in the contract, 

subject to certain service quality requirements being achieved, during the term of 

the contract.  In essence this means that small operators will not be excluded from 

the contract as they would have been previously.  It will provide an improved service 

for getting children who need this service to and from school using the best provider 

for their individual situation. 

 

(iv) Local Food Strategy 

 

The Council is putting the finishing touches to its local food strategy.  At the heart of 

the strategy is the promotion of a combination of healthy eating and use of 

producers and suppliers in the B&NES area through a framework which encompasses 

social, economic and environmental sustainability. The strategy is cross-cutting 

across the health, local economic development, procurement and community 

engagement teams, rather being the remit of just one team.  This strategy will 

provide even greater impetus to the drive for using local suppliers to provide 

catering and food products across the Council’s catering portfolio including school 

meals. 

 

(v) Selling to the Council Guide 

 

The fully revised and updated Selling to the Council Guide will shortly be available 

from the Council’s website – we are waiting for the new EU Procurement Directive to 

be transposed into the UK legislation (which is imminent) so we can include those 

important changes and will be consulting with the local business community prior to 

final publication.  This comprehensive Guide outlines the ways in which the Council 

procures goods and services.  It should be the first port of call of any organisation 

wishing to do business with the Council.   

 

 

Page 24



 

Page 5 of 7 

 

(vi) Internal Collaboration – better links between the Council’s teams and 

departments 

 

One of the most common causes for concern is the perceived, and sometimes actual, 

lack of joining-up of activities of the different teams and departments within the 

Council itself.  This is one of the issues that the “Think Local “strategy aims to 

address.   Accordingly, over the last twelve months, progress has been made in this 

area with the Corporate Procurement Team having greater input into, and overview 

of, the procurement activities throughout the Council.  The team are now involved in 

key areas of procurement across the Council.  Over the next twelve months this 

involvement will continue to increase. 

 

(vii) Social Value Toolkit 

 

Under the Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 the Council is required to consider 

how it can increase the ‘well-being’ of the area through procurement of its services.  

Well-being relates to the improvement that can be made to the social, economic and 

environment aspects of the area.  One of the ways that this is being achieved at 

B&NES is the development of the Social Value Toolkit which is designed to increase 

the number of apprenticeships, employment and training opportunities that can be 

achieved through specific contracts.  Historically this has related to apprenticeships 

within construction contracts but, through the toolkit, the Council is aiming to 

increase the scope across a range of contracts.  This will improve the delivery of the 

contracts and provide vital employment opportunities for those eligible to benefit 

from the initiative. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 25



 

Page 6 of 7 

 

3 Next steps - priorities 

  

(i) Training of B&NES officers 

 

Over the next twelve months, the Council is rolling out further training for all Council 

officers who are involved in commissioning and procurement.  This is particularly 

pertinent with the imminent changes in the procurement regulations.  Whilst officers 

have received initial awareness sessions on the “Think Local” strategy and its 

implications, the importance of the full adoption of the Think Local strategy will form 

part of the training content. 

 

(ii) Collaboration and working in partnership   

 

As previously mentioned the Corporate Procurement Team is embedding good 

practice across the Council and identifying champions and areas of excellence. A key 

activity in respect of the delivery of the “Think Local” strategy is the Buy Local Buy 

Social initiative [http://www.buylocalbuysocial.com] in conjunction with the local 

Social Enterprise Network. The aim of this initiative is to inspire, educate and equip 

organisations to deliver social value and to develop local supply chains through their 

procurement activity, not only within the Council but within other public sector 

bodies in the area as well. 

 

(iii) Developing better evaluation and measurement tools 

 

The Council are already improving their IT and analytical systems and, over the 

coming twelve months, these will be further enhanced.  Whilst the Council has 

baseline information on spend for the past financial years, these improved systems 

will enable the Council to develop meaningful targets and report on those targets on 

a year-on-year basis.  For example, measuring social value and the impacts of well-

being are difficult due to their ambiguous nature: however better systems will 

enable metrics for measuring this type of target to be developed.  This is a priority 

for the Council.  For example, metrics will include how we are progressing against 

our “Think Local” strategy particularly with regard to our commitment to using 

B&NES-based organisations. 

 

4 Other initiatives supporting Think Local 

 

So, what else is supporting the “Think Local” strategy?  The focus for the first year of 

the “Think Local” strategy has been on improving internal processes.  For the next 

year, the internal focus will obviously continue but there will be a greater emphasis 

on how we engage with B&NES-area organisations.  The Buy Local Buy Social 

initiative is one clear example but the Council is also taking a longer term approach.  

As of Autumn 2014 there is planned programme of ‘meet the buyer’ events which 

will be primarily based on specific contract opportunities; basic procurement training 

(for SMEs who are new to engaging with the Council) through a series of drop-in 

Page 26



 

Page 7 of 7 

 

sessions; improved guidance which will be disseminated through the Council’s 

website; and stronger links with organisations such as the Federation of Small 

Business.  All of the activities are designed not only to improve the visibility of the 

Council’s procurement activities and how local business can get involved but, just as 

importantly for the Council, how B&NES can get to know the organisations which 

make up its supply market, their strengths and the issues which affect them. 

 

5 How organisations can get involved 

  

We do understand that it’s not always easy to get in contact with the Council and get 

through to the right person first time.  The Corporate Procurement Team has a 

dedicated email address – procurement@bathnes.gov.uk – through which 

organisations can contact the procurement team.   

 

We urge all organisations who feel they might want to supply the Council to register 

on the e-procurement portal – www.supplyingthesouthwest.org.uk – as contracts 

are advertised through this portal.  When registering organisations will be asked to 

select categories which relate to the organisation’s business and when an 

opportunity is put on the portal which relates to that category the organisation will 

get an automatic alert. 

 

Attending one of our supplier engagement events will give organisations the most 

detailed information on a specific contract opportunity basis.  These will be held 

prior to a contract being advertised and will give organisations an opportunity to 

feed into the process.  To make sure they have the best chance of being invited to 

such an event, organisations should register on the e-procurement portal (see 

above) as we use this as one of our sources of information on potential suppliers. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



1 of 22 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A GUIDE TO PROVIDING 

GOODS,WORKS and SERVICES 

to 

BATH & NORTHEAST SOMERSET COUNCIL 

 

DECEMBER 2014 
 

 

  

Making Bath & North East Somerset 

The place to live, work and visit 

Page 29



2 of 22 

 

Contents 
 

 

Foreword ........................................................................................................................ 3 

1 Think Local Procurement Strategy 2013-2017 ....................................................... 4 

2 Encouraging SMEs .................................................................................................. 4 

3 Working with Other Local Authorities .................................................................... 4 

4 Market consultation ............................................................................................... 5 

5 Guiding Legislation and Principles .......................................................................... 6 

5.1 Best Value ........................................................................................................ 6 

5.2 Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 ........................................................... 6 

5.3 Community Right to Challenge ....................................................................... 6 

5.4 Freedom of Information (FOI) ......................................................................... 7 

5.5 Fair Processing Notice ..................................................................................... 7 

6 EU Procurement Directive ...................................................................................... 8 

7 UK Public Contracts Regulations ............................................................................ 8 

Procurement Procedures (table 1) ................................................................................ 9 

8 Time limits in the procurement process............................................................... 12 

Time limits in the procurement process (table 2) ....................................................... 13 

9 Award Criteria ....................................................................................................... 15 

10 Thresholds ......................................................................................................... 16 

11 e-Procurement .................................................................................................. 17 

12 Contract Monitoring ......................................................................................... 19 

13 Handy Hints ....................................................................................................... 20 

14 Useful Links and information ............................................................................ 22 

 

 

N.B. Disclaimer: The following information is advice and guidance to interested organisations on how 

Bath & North East Somerset Council (B&NES Council) conducts its procurement processes. B&NES 

Council provides this information in good faith but accepts no responsibility for the accuracy of the 

information or for any subsequent changes, amendments, variations, etc. to any part of the 

information presented in the guide (published in August 2014) B&NES Council recommends that all 

organisations/Individuals obtain their own technical and legal advice on the on-going accuracy of such 

information beyond the date on which the guide was published. 

 

If you require this information to be provided in a different format please email 

procurement@bathnes.gov.uk  visit the Selling to the Council webpage.  

 

Page 30



3 of 22 

 

Foreword 
 

Welcome to the updated and revised version of the Bath & Northeast Somerset 

Council’s guide for organisations who are already supplying, or who would like to 

supply the Council, with goods, works and services. 

 

For those of you who have heard rumours that the legal frameworks which set the 

parameters on how we acquire goods, works and services are about to change, this 

guide takes all the changes into account.  So if you’ve supplied the Council before 

please read this guide as things have changed and they will affect the way we do 

business with you. 

  

We have aimed to make things clearer by removing extraneous text, putting in more 

diagrams and providing a glossary, together with a section on handy tips and 

reminders. 

 

Improving transparency of the procurement processes and our involvement with 

organisations remains high on the list of priorities, not only driven by central 

Government but by our own standards as well.   

 

We hope you find this guide useful and we welcome any comments and questions 

you may have. To communicate with us please contact the Corporate Procurement 

Team via the following methods 

 

 

Corporate Procurement, 

Bath and North East Somerset Council,  

The Guildhall, 

High Street 

Bath 

BA1 5AW 

 

Telephone: 01225 477030 

 

E-mail: procurement@bathnes.gov.uk 

 

  

Page 31



4 of 22 

 

1 Think Local Procurement Strategy 2013-2017 
 

The Council launched its Think Local Procurement Strategy in 2013 and one of the 

main strands of the strategy focusses on encouraging suppliers and potential 

suppliers within the B&NES area to work with the Council.  This has many benefits 

ranging from obtaining best value for the Council to supporting the local economy 

with the associated benefits of thriving businesses and employment opportunities. 

 

The strategy can be accessed at: 

http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/sites/default/files/procurement_strategy_final.pdf. 

 

However, there is one caveat which needs to mentioned. Whilst we have major 

ambitions to increase the number of B&NES-based organisations, we have to work 

within the EU Procurement Directive, in particular for higher level contracts. 

 

But what we can do is to work with organisations at the pre-procurement stage to 

ensure they are aware of opportunities, what procurement actually is, how they can 

get involved right at the start of the process.  Accordingly, the Council is undertaking 

proactive supply market engagement activities.  As part of this, the Council is 

working closely with the local branch of the Federation of Small Businesses (FSB) to 

support these activities.  Information will be disseminated via our own website and 

through that of the FSB as well as other sources appropriate to the activity being 

undertaken. 

 

We are also targeting social enterprise and voluntary and community sector 

organisations.  To that end, we are now part of the new partnership ‘Buy Local Buy 

Social’ which brings together public sector procurers (including housing associations) 

and third sector organisations. 

 

2 Encouraging SMEs 
 

Whilst B&NES have a procurement strategy to Think Local – aimed at organisations 

in the B&NES area and SMEs, the EU procurement directive is explicit in the 

involvement of SMEs in procurement.  To that end, whilst the UK does not require 

local authorities to split contracts into lots (ie, smaller packages making up one 

larger contract) to assist entry by SMEs, the authorities will have to state why they 

haven’t done so in the contract notice. B&NES will encourage the use of lots to 

increase SME opportunities. 

 

3 Working with Other Local Authorities 
 

Bath & North East Somerset Council (B&NES) collaborative with other public bodies 

where there is synergy and tangible benefits have been clearly identified.  Obviously, 

this is appropriate for some contracts and the decision to collaborate is currently 

taken on a case by case basis. 

 

 

Page 32



5 of 22 

 

4 Market consultation 
 

Under the previous procurement directive, there was some confusion as to whether 

or not public sector bodies could engage in market consultation prior to the 

commencement of a procurement exercise.  Some enlightened public sector bodies  

took the view that so long as the engagement was not discriminatory then they 

undertook it, others took the view that it wasn’t allowed, and some others didn’t 

even consider it. 

 

However, under the new directives it is explicitly allowed and encouraged as the 

benefits to both the public sector bodies and the supply market are great.  These 

benefits include helping to manage and understand the capacity and strength of the 

market, and for organisations to get involved in the procurement process, early on, 

in order to help contribute to the process. 

 

 

  

Page 33



6 of 22 

 

5 Guiding Legislation and Principles 
 

In addition to the EU Procurement Directive UK  Public Contracts Regulations, the 

following legislation and principles govern how we undertake our procurement. 

5.1 Best Value 
 

Since April 2001 all local authorities have a duty of Best Value. Under this duty they 

are required to secure continuous improvement in the way in which they carry out 

their functions. Best Value recognises that good procurement practice is essential if 

local government is to obtain real improvements to service, cost and quality. 

 

Other considerations also need to be addressed in obtaining best value.  For 

example, it can also refer to assessing the whole-life cost of the goods, works or 

services contract, and can take into account the long term economic, social and 

environmental benefits.  

5.2 Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 
 

Social, economic and environmental benefits are also required to be considered 

under the  Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 and this small Act complements 

the Best Value duty.  This Act requires authorities to consider how the delivery of a 

service contract can add to the social, economic and environmental improvement of 

the area.  An obvious example is whether a particular service contract can offer 

apprenticeships during the term of the contract. 

5.3 Community Right to Challenge 
 

Under the Localism Act 2011, communities within the B&NES area such as 

voluntary/community bodies, employees of the authority and parish councils are 

able to express an interest in running a local authority service.  

 

The formal ‘challenge’ process starts when a group submits a written expression of 

interest available from the Council’s website
1
.  B&NES will then consider and 

respond to expressions of interest which, if accepted, will trigger a procurement 

exercise for that service. The challenging body will then need to participate, 

alongside others, in a procurement process. Be warned - there is no guarantee that 

those organisations expressing the interest will be successful in any consequent 

procurement process.  

 

Under the Act the authority has the right to set a time period in which interest can 

be expressed. B&NES have made the decision that expressions of interest will be 

considered each year from: 2
nd

 January (or nearest working day) to 31
st

 March. No 

expressions of interest will be considered outside of these dates and the authority 

also holds the right to reject applications received outside of the set period.  

                                                 
1
 http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/services/business/selling-council/right-challenge-0 

 

Page 34



7 of 22 

 

 

For guidance on this Community Right to Challenge please go to the relevant pages 

on the B&NES’s webpage.  

 

Before submitting a challenge please contact the relevant officer in the Council to 

discuss your idea as it could save your organisation a great deal of time and resource 

in the long run.   

5.4 Freedom of Information (FOI)  
 

B&NES is a ‘public authority’ for the purposes of the Freedom of Information Act 

2000 and the Environmental Information Regulations 2004. Accordingly, certain 

information submitted to the authority by bidders may need to be disclosed in 

response to a request made under the Act.  The authority may also decide to include 

certain information in the publication scheme which it is required to maintain under 

the Act.  

 

Please be aware that what you might consider commercially sensitive information 

might not be considered sensitive under this Act.  We could still be required to 

provide information if it relates to a tender submitted by your organisation under an 

FOI request. 

5.5 Fair Processing Notice 
 

This authority is under a duty to protect the public funds it administers and to this 

end we may use key trade creditors standing data and payments history data for the 

purposes of prevention and detection of fraud.  We may also share this information 

with other bodies responsible for auditing or administering public funds for these 

purposes. Further information is available on the Bath & North East Somerset 

Council web site, www.bathnes.gov.uk, National Fraud Initiative within the A-Z. 

 

  

Page 35



8 of 22 

 

6 EU Procurement Directive 
 

The new EU Procurement Directive has substantially changed in some key areas but 

less so in others. 

 

One of the fundamental changes is the abolition of the old Part A and Part B 

categories of contracts.  In its place it is assumed that all contracts are subject to a 

full procurement procedure unless they fall into a specific exemption due to the type 

of service the contract will deliver.  These exemptions are generally for contracts 

which will deliver health and social services and are defined by specific codes in the 

Directive.  The Council cannot arbitrarily decide which contracts fall into the 

exemption. 

  

These contracts have a higher threshold over which they are caught by an EU 

process and, accordingly, the process under which they will be let will be a ‘light 

touch’ one.  The threshold is €750,000.  The reason for this change is that is assumed 

that these type of contracts will not attract cross-EU-border interest. 

 

For all other contracts the threshold remains at €200,000, approx £174,000. 

 

The ‘threshold’ is the financial value of a contract over the life of the contract (not 

annually), above which the opportunity must follow the EU procurement rules when 

being let. [see section for all thresholds] 

 

The procurement processes now available to public sector bodies are shown in table 

1 below.  

7 UK Public Contracts Regulations 
 

Each EU Member State is obliged to transpose the Directive into their own national 

legislation.  This legislation mirrors the Directive but allows for limited national 

variation; it also makes it a legal requirement. 

 

Page 36



9
 o

f 
2

2
 

 P
r

o
c

u
r

e
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
c

e
d

u
r

e
s 

(t
a

b
le

 1
) 

  P
ro

ce
ss

 
K

e
y

 c
h

a
ra

ct
e

ri
st

ic
s 

A
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e

s 
D

is
a

d
v

a
n

ta
g

e
s 

 

O
p

e
n

 

 

§
 

O
n

e
 s

ta
g

e
 p

ro
ce

ss
. 

  

§
 

T
h

e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y

 i
s 

a
d

v
e

rt
is

e
d

 a
n

d
 

a
n

y
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

 c
a

n
 r

e
sp

o
n

d
. 

  

§
 

T
h

e
 t

e
n

d
e

r 
w

il
l r

e
q

u
ir

e
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
 

d
e

ta
il

e
d

 r
e

sp
o

n
se

 t
o

 b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

. 

§
 

O
n

ly
 t

h
e

 ‘
w

in
n

in
g

’ 
b

id
d

e
r 

w
il

l 
b

e
 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 p
ro

o
f 

o
f 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
d

e
ta

il
s.

 

 

ü
 

Le
ss

 r
e

st
ri

ct
e

d
 a

s 
to

 w
h

o
 c

a
n

 

re
sp

o
n

d
 

ü
 

F
a

st
e

r 
th

a
n

 a
 r

e
st

ri
ct

e
d

 p
ro

ce
ss

 

û
 

B
id

d
e

r 
ca

n
 s

ti
ll

 g
e

t 
e

xc
lu

d
e

d
 o

n
 

m
a

n
d

a
to

ry
 e

xc
lu

si
o

n
 c

ri
te

ri
a

. 

û
 

E
xt

e
n

si
v

e
 r

e
so

u
rc

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 

co
m

p
le

te
 t

h
e

 f
u

ll
 t

e
n

d
e

r 
if

 b
id

d
e

r 

is
 e

xc
lu

d
e

d
 o

n
 e

xc
lu

si
o

n
 c

ri
te

ri
a

. 

R
e

st
ri

ct
e

d
 

§
 

T
w

o
 s

ta
g

e
 p

ro
ce

ss
 

§
 

M
o

st
 c

o
m

m
o

n
ly

 u
se

d
 p

ro
ce

ss
 

§
 

T
h

e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y

 i
s 

a
d

v
e

rt
is

e
d

 a
n

d
 

a
n

y
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

 c
a

n
 r

e
sp

o
n

d
 t

o
 

th
e

 p
re

-q
u

a
li

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 

q
u

e
st

io
n

n
a

ir
e

 (
fi

rs
t 

st
a

g
e

).
 

§
 

O
n

ly
 t

h
o

se
 t

h
a

t 
p

a
ss

 t
h

e
 P

Q
Q

 

st
a

g
e

 w
il

l 
b

e
 i

n
v

it
e

d
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 

th
e

 i
n

v
it

a
ti

o
n

 t
o

 t
e

n
d

e
r 

(s
e

co
n

d
 

a
n

d
 r

e
st

ri
ct

e
d

 s
ta

g
e

).
 

 

ü
 

B
id

d
e

rs
 o

n
ly

 h
a

ve
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 

th
e

 f
ir

st
 s

ta
g

e
 b

e
fo

re
 e

xp
e

n
d

in
g

 

th
e

 e
ff

o
rt

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 t
h

e
 I

T
T

 

st
a

g
e

. 

û
 

T
a

k
e

s 
lo

n
g

e
r 

th
a

n
 t

h
e

 o
p

e
n

 

p
ro

ce
ss

. 

û
 

O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s 

u
n

d
e

r-
e

st
im

a
te

 t
h

e
 

im
p

o
rt

a
n

ce
 o

f 
th

is
 s

ta
g

e
. 

C
o

m
p

e
ti

ti
v

e
 p

ro
ce

d
u

re
 w

it
h

 

n
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
  

(N
e

w
 p

ro
ce

d
u

re
) 

§
 

U
se

d
 f

o
r 

co
m

p
le

x 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

, 

p
o

ss
ib

ly
 i

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 d
e

si
g

n
 o

r 

in
n

o
v

a
ti

v
e

 s
o

lu
ti

o
n

s,
 o

r 
w

h
e

re
 a

 

te
ch

n
ic

a
l 

sp
e

ci
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 c
a

n
’t

 b
e

 

ü
 

Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 a
ch

ie
ve

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

va
lu

e
 

fo
r 

m
o

n
e

y
 b

y
 t

h
e

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 

th
ro

u
g

h
 n

e
g

o
ti

a
ti

n
g

 w
it

h
 b

id
d

e
rs

 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 a

 s
o

lu
ti

o
n

 

û
 

O
n

ly
 u

se
d

 i
n

 e
xc

e
p

ti
o

n
 

ci
rc

u
m

st
a

n
ce

s 
w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 o
p

e
n

 o
r 

re
st

ri
ct

e
d

 p
ro

ce
ss

 w
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
b

e
 

su
it

a
b

le
. 

Page 37



1
0

 o
f 

2
2
 

 

e
st

a
b

li
sh

e
d

 w
it

h
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

p
re

ci
si

o
n

 

 

û
 

T
im

e
 c

o
n

su
m

in
g

 f
o

r 
a

ll
 p

a
rt

ie
s.

 

 

C
o

m
p

e
ti

ti
v

e
 d

ia
lo

g
u

e
 

§
 

U
se

d
 f

o
r 

co
m

p
le

x 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 

o
ft

e
n

 a
ro

u
n

d
 t

h
e

 n
a

tu
re

 o
f 

th
e

  

co
n

tr
a

ct
, 

le
g

a
l o

r 
fi

n
a

n
ci

a
l 

co
m

p
le

xi
ty

 o
r 

b
e

ca
u

se
 o

f 
th

e
 r

is
k

s 

in
v

o
lv

e
d

. 

ü
 

Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 a
ch

ie
ve

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

va
lu

e
 

fo
r 

m
o

n
e

y
 b

y
 t

h
e

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 

th
ro

u
g

h
 r

o
u

n
d

s 
o

f 
su

b
m

is
si

o
n

s 
to

 

re
fi

n
e

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

l 
o

ff
e

r.
 

û
 

O
n

ly
 u

se
d

 i
n

 e
xc

e
p

ti
o

n
 

ci
rc

u
m

st
a

n
ce

s 
w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 o
p

e
n

 o
r 

re
st

ri
ct

e
d

 p
ro

ce
ss

 w
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
b

e
 

su
it

a
b

le
. 

û
 

T
im

e
 c

o
n

su
m

in
g

 f
o

r 
a

ll
 p

a
rt

ie
s.

 

 

In
n

o
v

a
ti

o
n

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s 

(N
e

w
 p

ro
ce

d
u

re
) 

 

§
 

E
n

co
u

ra
g

in
g

 s
u

p
p

li
e

rs
 t

o
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
 

w
o

rk
s,

 s
u

p
p

li
e

s 
o

r 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

n
o

t 

cu
rr

e
n

tl
y

 a
v

a
il

a
b

le
 u

si
n

g
 t

h
e

 

co
m

p
e

ti
ti

v
e

 p
ro

ce
d

u
re

 w
it

h
 

n
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
 (

se
e

 a
b

o
v

e
).

 

§
 

M
a

y
 b

e
 c

o
n

st
ru

ct
e

d
 i

n
 p

h
a

se
s 

to
 

m
a

tc
h

 r
e

se
a

rc
h

/i
n

n
o

v
a

ti
o

n
 

p
h

a
se

s.
 

 

ü
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

in
n

o
v

a
ti

v
e

 

so
lu

ti
o

n
s 

to
 c

o
m

p
le

x 
p

ro
b

le
m

s 

w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
re

 i
s 

cu
rr

e
n

tl
y

 n
o

 

p
ro

d
u

ct
 o

r 
se

rv
ic

e
 a

b
le

 t
o

 d
e

li
v

e
r 

th
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
ct

. 

ü
 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
cu

tt
in

g
-e

d
g

e
 

te
ch

n
o

lo
g

y
. 

û
 

O
n

ly
 u

se
d

 i
n

 e
xc

e
p

ti
o

n
a

l 

ci
rc

u
m

st
a

n
ce

s.
 

û
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

lly
 t

im
e

 c
o

n
su

m
in

g
. 

  
 

Page 38



1
1

 o
f 

2
2
 

F
ig

 (
i)

 –
 R

e
st

ri
ct

e
d

 (
2

 S
ta

g
e

) 
p

ro
ce

ss
 -

 P
Q

Q
 e

le
m

e
n

t 
 

  
  
 F

ig
 (

ii
) 
–

 R
e

st
ri

ct
e

d
 (

2
 S

ta
g

e
) 

p
ro

ce
ss

 -
 I

T
T

 e
le

m
e

n
t 

 

Page 39



12 of 22 

 

8 Time limits in the procurement process 
 

Each procurement procedure has mandatory time limits associated with it and these 

have been reduced, and with a further option to shorten them should certain 

conditions apply (table 2).  Conversely, when setting time limits, B&NES will also take 

into account the complexity of the contract and time required for organisations to 

respond.  Take notice of any deadline dates that are stated in the tender documents 

as late submissions will not be accepted.  Please note that the stated days are 

calendar days not working days. 

 

In order to start the procurement exercise, a Contract Notice is sent, electronically 

by B&NES to the Official Journal of the European Union (OJEU).  This Contract Notice 

will contain all pertinent information about the tender opportunity.   The clock starts 

ticking when the Contract Notice is published by OJEU.  The publication of the 

Contract Notice is often referred to as advertising the contract. 

 

Increased use of Prior Information Notices (PIN) is made in the new EU directives 

particularly in shortening time limits on the return of submissions.  The time limit 

table refers to a ‘suitable PIN’.  This means that a PIN was published and was (i) not 

intended to be the call for competition, (ii) was published not more than 12 months 

and no less than 35 days before the date of dispatch to OJEU of the contract notice; 

and (iii) the PIN contains certain brief information about the type and value of the 

contract.  In essence, if an organisation has had sight of the relevant PIN then they 

should be a good position to move quickly and respond to the shorter deadlines. 

 

All tender documents including the specification and evaluation criteria should be 

published when the contract is advertised.  The benefit is that potential bidders will 

have all the information at the outset and so make an informed decision whether or 

not to bid for the contract. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 40



1
3

 o
f 

2
2
 

 T
im

e
 l

im
it

s 
in

 t
h

e
 p

r
o

c
u

r
e

m
e

n
t 

p
r

o
c

e
ss

 (
ta

b
le

 2
) 

  P
ro

ce
d

u
re

 
S

ta
g

e
 

 

M
in

im
u

m
 t

im
e

 l
im

it
 

E
x

ce
p

ti
o

n
s 

O
p

e
n

  
C

o
m

p
le

te
 t

e
n

d
e

r 
If

 e
le

ct
ro

n
ic

 t
e

n
d

e
rs

 –
 3

0
 d

a
y

s 

If
 n

o
n

-e
le

ct
ro

n
ic

 –
 3

5
 d

a
y

s 

 

(i
) 

if
 p

re
ce

d
e

d
 b

y 
a

 s
u

it
a

b
le

 P
ri

o
r 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 N

o
ti

ce
 –

 1
5

 d
a

y
s 

(i
i)

 i
f 

u
rg

e
n

t 
–

 1
5

 d
a

y
s 

 

R
e

st
ri

ct
e

d
*

 
R

e
q

u
e

st
 t

o
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 (
P

Q
Q

) 
3

0
 d

a
y

s 
(i

) 
if

 p
re

ce
d

e
d

 b
y 

a
 s

u
it

a
b

le
 P

ri
o

r 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 N

o
ti

ce
 –

 1
5

 d
a

y
s 

(i
i)

 i
f 

u
rg

e
n

t 
–

 1
5

 d
a

y
s 

 

 
IT

T
 –

 t
e

n
d

e
r 

If
 e

le
ct

ro
n

ic
 t

e
n

d
e

rs
 –

 2
5

 d
a

y
s 

If
 n

o
n

-e
le

ct
ro

n
ic

 –
 3

0
 d

a
y

s 

 

(i
) 

if
 p

re
ce

d
e

d
 b

y 
a

 s
u

it
a

b
le

 P
ri

o
r 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 N

o
ti

ce
 –

 1
0

 d
a

y
s 

(i
i)

 i
f 

u
rg

e
n

t 
–

 1
5

 d
a

y
s 

 

C
o

m
p

e
ti

ti
v
e

 p
ro

ce
d

u
re

 w
it

h
 

n
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
 

R
e

q
u

e
st

 t
o

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 (

P
Q

Q
) 

3
0

 d
a

y
s 

(i
) 

if
 p

re
ce

d
e

d
 b

y 
a

 s
u

it
a

b
le

 P
ri

o
r 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 N

o
ti

ce
 –

 1
5

 d
a

y
s 

 

 
In

it
ia

l 
te

n
d

e
r 

If
 e

le
ct

ro
n

ic
 t

e
n

d
e

rs
 –

 2
5

 d
a

y
s 

If
 n

o
n

-e
le

ct
ro

n
ic

 –
 3

0
 d

a
y

s 

 

(i
) 

if
 p

re
ce

d
e

d
 b

y 
a

 s
u

it
a

b
le

 P
ri

o
r 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 N

o
ti

ce
 –

 1
0

 d
a

y
s 

(i
i)

 i
f 

u
rg

e
n

t 
–

 1
5

 d
a

y
s 

 

C
o

m
p

e
ti

ti
v
e

 d
ia

lo
g

u
e

 
R

e
q

u
e

st
 t

o
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 (
P

Q
Q

) 
3

0
 d

a
y

s 
N

o
n

e
 

 

 
In

it
ia

l/
su

b
se

q
u

e
n

t 
te

n
d

e
rs

 
N

o
 e

xp
li

ci
t 

ti
m

e
 l

im
it

 
N

o
n

e
 

Page 41



1
4

 o
f 

2
2
 

 P
ro

ce
d

u
re

 
S

ta
g

e
 

 

M
in

im
u

m
 t

im
e

 l
im

it
 

E
x

ce
p

ti
o

n
s 

 

In
n

o
v
a

ti
o

n
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s 

R
e

q
u

e
st

 t
o

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 (

P
Q

Q
) 

3
0

 d
a

y
s 

(i
) 

if
 p

re
ce

d
e

d
 b

y 
a

 s
u

it
a

b
le

 P
ri

o
r 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 N

o
ti

ce
 –

 1
5

 d
a

y
s 

 

 
In

it
ia

l 
te

n
d

e
r 

If
 e

le
ct

ro
n

ic
 t

e
n

d
e

rs
 –

 2
5

 d
a

y
s 

If
 n

o
n

-e
le

ct
ro

n
ic

 –
 3

0
 d

a
y

s 

 

(i
) 

if
 p

re
ce

d
e

d
 b

y 
a

 s
u

it
a

b
le

 P
ri

o
r 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 N

o
ti

ce
 –

 1
0

 d
a

y
s 

(i
i)

 i
f 

u
rg

e
n

t 
–

 1
5

 d
a

y
s 

 *
 p

le
a

se
 n

o
te

 t
h

a
t 

su
b

je
ct

 t
o

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

fo
rm

a
l 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

, 
th

e
re

 m
ig

h
t 

b
e

 a
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 t
o

 s
h

o
rt

e
n

 t
h

e
se

 t
im

e
sc

a
le

s.
 

Page 42



15 of 22 

 

9 Award Criteria 
 

Responses to the ITT part of a tender (through which ever procedure is used) will be 

based on the evaluation criteria applicable to that tender.  The evaluation criteria 

will comprise a combination of price and quality and the tender will be evaluated on 

the ‘most economically advantageous tender’ (also known as MEAT) taking into 

account both price and quality.  Under the new EU directives, the whole life cost of 

the goods or services should also be taken into account, where applicable.  In 

addition, criteria relating to social as well as environmental impacts might be 

included where they relate directly to the delivery of the contract.  The evaluation 

criteria and scoring matrix will be published at the same time as the other tender 

documentation. 

 

However, in contrast to the ITT stage, the PQQ stage or ‘PQQ element’ of other 

procedures will include some mandatory exclusion criteria.  The outcome is that if 

you are thinking of responding to a tender and if any of these relate to your 

organisation, it is not worth responding. 

 

In addition to the mandatory exclusion criteria B&NES may exclude organisations on 

a discretionary basis. 

 

Mandatory exclusion criteria Discretionary exclusion criteria 

 

Organised crime Violations of social, labour or 

environmental conventions (eg ILO 

convention 29 on forced labour), 

Corruption Plausible indications of agreements 

aimed at market distortion 

Fraud Conflicts of interest that cannot be 

remedied 

Money laundering Significant or persistent deficiencies in a 

prior contract performance 

Terrorism The organisation has tried to unduly 

influence the authority 

Child labour offences The organisation has provided 

misleading information 

Human trafficking offences It can be demonstrated the 

organisation’s non-payment of taxes or 

social security contributions but where 

no binding legal decision has been taken 

Binding legal decision for breach of legal 

obligations to pay tax or social security 

obligations (except where 

disproportionate) 

 

 

However, if organisations have provided sufficient evidence of reform they should 

not be excluded.  For mandatory exclusion the maximum exclusion period is five 

Page 43



16 of 22 

 

years and for discretionary exclusion it is three years.  Should any evidence come to 

light indicating that the organisation should have been excluded, it is possible to 

exclude them at a later stage. 

 

It is worth noting that if you are planning to sub-contract any element of the 

contract you are bidding for, then any sub-contractor is subject to the mandatory 

exclusion criteria. 

 

10 Thresholds (Goods & Services) – (subject to change with revised 

CSOs) 

 

Contract value Procedure Internal 

regs 

EU procedure 

 
 

Up to £5,000 

 

Demonstrate best value by:- 

 

· Using  a Corporate 

Contract/Catalogue 

· A local supplier 

· A Purchase Card Enabled 

Supplier 

 

√  

 

Between £5,000 and 

£50,000 

 

 

Demonstrate best value by:- 

 

· Using a Corporate Contract 

· Obtaining a minimum of 3 

competitive quotes using Pro 

Contract with where possible 

2 quotes from local suppliers 

· Do not have to accept lowest 

cost – mindful of Best Value 

 

√  

 

Between £50,001 and 

EU limits* 

 

 

Demonstrate best value by:- 

 

· Using a Corporate Contract 

· An appropriate Framework 

arrangement 

· Obtain tenders (based on a 

price/social value/quality 

model) using an open tender 

process ) 

√  

Over EU threshold 

approx £174,000 

 

  √ 

Specific health, social 

and limited other 

services 

Threshold – approx 

£500,000 

 

  √ 

light touch process 

  

Page 44



17 of 22 

 

11 e-Procurement 
 

There are some changes around the use of e-procurement portals but the over-

riding outcome is that they will be more widely used and use will be mandatory by 

2017.  The baseline for the start of this increased use of e-procurement portals is 

that all contract documentation must be available for download at the time of the 

contract notice; ie, the time the contract is advertised.  B&NES already use an e-

procurement portal (www.supplyingthesouthwest.org) and will continue to enhance 

their use of this system. 

 

www.supplyingthesouthwest.org.uk 

 

In order to access the documents relating any tender or request for quote over £10K 

you need to be registered on the portal.  Registration is free and once you have 

posted a profile of your company, specifying what sort of opportunities you are 

interested in, you will then be alerted of any new advertised opportunities that may 

be relevant to you.  

 

Once registered on the portal you will also be visible to the other authorities in the 

South West who use the portal.  A word of caution, though, the different authorities 

use the portal in different ways so pay attention to the specific requirements of each 

authority if you  are lucky enough to supply more than one authority. 

 

Another advantage of registering on the portal is that when we arrange supply 

market engagement events this is one of the key sources of data which we use to get 

details of organisations to invite. 

 

All contract opportunities are advertised via this portal.  In addition, under the EU 

procurement directive, all contracts over the OJEU thresholds must also be 

advertised via OJEU.     

 

For help on how to use the Portal and technical issues please contact Due North 

Technical Support Team
2
 by E-mail

3
 or call: 0844 334 5204. Lines are open from 

08:30 to 17:00 Monday to Friday, excluding English public holidays.  

 

How to get the most out of www.supplyingthesouthwest.org.uk – handy tips 

 

§ Instead of using an individual’s e-mail addresses which can cause difficulties 

when an employee is sick, on holiday or has left the organisation, it is useful 

when registering on the portal to have a dedicated multi-user e-mail address 

eg, info@yourbusiness.co.uk. By setting up this type of e-mail your 

notifications can always be received and checked by other members of your 

organisation that have access to the email account.  

                                                 
2
 https://www.supplyingthesouthwest.org.uk/procontract/help.nsf/frm_support?openform  

3
 swsupport@due-north.com  

Page 45



18 of 22 

 

§ Some e-mail domains such as Hotmail and Yahoo automatically filter e-mail 

addresses that are not recognised or, have not been added to your contacts 

list. We recommend you check your spam filters regularly just in case.  

§ It is crucial that organisations leave plenty of time to submit their bids for 

quotes or tenders as late tenders will not be accepted. Be aware that the 

tender you are responding to might not be the only tender with the same 

closing date and time and the system can get slow.  We advise you to upload 

documents the day before the deadline as you can amend your tender even 

once bids are submitted they can be amended, right up until the deadline.  

 

  

Page 46



19 of 22 

 

12 Contract Monitoring 
 

The procurement process doesn’t stop with the award of the contract; ongoing 

contract management throughout the duration of the contract is a key part of the 

process and one which benefits the supplier, Council and end users. 

 

Communication between the authority and the successful supplier will usually be 

channelled through the Responsible Officer (or contract manager). Dependent upon 

the requirements of the authority and the nature of the goods or services supplied, 

this may take the form of regular review meetings and or written/e-mail contact.  

 

All organisations delivering contracts let by B&NES are monitored to ensure 

continued compliance with the specifications and the terms and conditions of the 

contract. The authority’s drive to promote continuous improvement will often result 

in a positive developing relationship with organisations.  

 

Under the terms of the contract explanations will be sought from contractors or 

organisations failing to meet the agreed levels of performance. Continuing poor 

performance could ultimately lead to early termination of the contract. 

 

 

  

Page 47



20 of 22 

 

13 Handy Hints 
 

Below is a selection of handy hints which we hope will assist you in selling to the 

council.  The list might sound a little bossy and some of it very obvious but it is 

provided to give you some clear pointers.  We’ve included it as, although we have 

processes to follow, much of it governed by the EU and UK regulations, we want to 

give organisations the best chance of being successful with any bid they submit. 

 

Do register on www.supplyingthesouthwest.org.uk – all our opportunities are 

advertised through this e-portal and we also use it as a source of information for 

inviting organisations to our supply market engagement events. 

 

Do come to any supply market engagement sessions relevant to the contract that we 

might hold – you should learn a lot about the proposed contract and will have the 

opportunity to feed back to us prior to a contract being advertised. 

 

Do read the documentation provided carefully – check that you’re in a position to 

apply for the contract. 

 

Do raise a query through the e-portal if you’re unsure about what is being asked.  It’s 

better to find clear up uncertainties early on rather than miss the point of a question 

and consequently miss out on marks. 

 

Do follow the instructions on completing the PQQ and/or ITT – don’t re-number 

sections or delete them. 

 

Do remember that everything that is being asked for is applicable so don’t leave a 

section blank or deem it not applicable. 

 

Don’t include information that isn’t asked for, such as marketing or publicity material 

– it won’t get read. 

 

Do keep to any word counts stipulated. 

 

Do make sure you have actually answered the question. 

 

Do acknowledge any weak areas in your response and indicate what steps you are 

putting in place to rectify this.   

 

Do sell yourself in the best possible light! 

 

Don’t assume that we already know about you if you already have a contract with 

B&NES – each tender is marked on its own merit. 

 

Do make sure that the organisations that you include as to where we can obtain 

references from know they are being named in the PQQ and are happy to provide a 

positive reference. 

Page 48



21 of 22 

 

 

Do double… triple… quadruple check that you have answered all the questions and 

have uploaded all the attachments requested.  It can be good practice to get 

someone who is unrelated to writing the response to read it.  If it makes sense to 

them, it is likely to make sense to us. 

 

Do give yourself plenty of time to upload your response – it might not just be the 

tender you’re responding to that is closing at the same time and the system can go a 

little slow.   

 

Do make sure that you upload your response before the deadline – we don’t accept 

late responses. 

 

 

 

  

Page 49



22 of 22 

 

14 Useful Links and information 
 

B&NES Selling to the Council - http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/services/business/selling-

council 

 

Supplying the South West e-procurement portal – 

www.supplyingthesouthwest.org.uk 

 

Contracts Finder (Central Government procurement portal) - 

https://online.contractsfinder.businesslink.gov.uk/ 

 

Buy Local Buy Social - http://www.buylocalbuysocial.com/ 

 

Federation of Small Businesses - http://www.fsb.org.uk/ 

 

 

Winning the Contract  

 

Winning the Contract is a free on-line procurement course hosted by learndirect. It 

helps organisations, in particular SMEs, learn about public procurement and how to 

bid for public sector contracts.  

 

The course introduces organisations to the public sector; it explains the procurement 

process and offers practical advice to help suppliers identify new business 

opportunities. The course also introduces organisations to the key procurement 

processes, including:  

 

· identifying the advantages and disadvantages of dealing with public bodies  

· understanding how different types of contracts are defined, and advertised  

· identifying the key stages in the tendering process  

· searching for and finding public sector opportunities as well as helpful hints 

and tips on drafting and submitting bids. 

 

 

 

Page 50



 Page 1 of 15 

Bath & North East Somerset Council (B&NES) 

Social Value Procurement Policy 

1. Introduction 

1.1 The Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 

This Policy is being adopted by B&NES in response to its duties under the Public Services 

(Social Value) Act 2012 (the “Act”) but also because the Council has recognised the need to 

update its commitments in its Procurement Strategy 2013-17, Health & Well Being Strategy 

and Economic Strategy 2014 -2030 especially in relation to the provision of employment, 

training and supply-chain opportunities. 

 

The Act provides a specific duty for contracting authorities (as defined in the Public 

Contracts Regulations 2006 (the “Regulations”) to consider how to improve the economic, 

social and environmental well-being of the area served by them through procurement, and 

how to undertake the process of procurement with a view to securing that improvement.  

The Act covers contracts for services that are caught by the Regulations and are above the 

financial threshold for the Regulations to apply, including framework agreements for 

services, and contracts which are for a mixture of services and works and/or supplies. It does 

not cover contracts for works or supplies but following Cabinet Office guidance
1
, it applies to 

all services.  

 

When considering the improvement to well-being that can be sought, contracting authority 

is required to consider whether to undertake any consultation on that improvement. 

1.2 Defining Social Value 

The Act and related guidance do not define social value, instead focussing on the three 

“pillars” of well-being. In this policy the term “social value” refers to outcomes that will 

provide benefit to the residents of the Council area – either directly and individually or 

through businesses and community organisations – particularly where these benefits are 

linked to the other elements in the contract but have not conventionally been specified as a 

part of the contract requirements or evaluated as part of the procurement process. 

 

Social value therefore implies innovation relative to the Council’s earlier practice. It follows 

that requirements that are introduced through this social value policy may, in time, become 

a normalised part of the services, supplies or works that the Council is purchasing. 

1.3 Costs and Affordability 

It is not the case that the inclusion of social value requirements in a contract automatically 

increases tender prices. Some requirements involve a change of working method (like 

recruiting from local agencies that provide a free service) that could reduce costs, while 

                                                      
1
 Cabinet Office Procurement Policy Note 10/12: The Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 - 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/procurement-policy-note-10-12-the-public-services-social-value-act-2012 

Page 51



 Page 2 of 15 

others (like the recruitment of trainees) provide opportunities for employers to obtain 

grants or use free services. It follows that the impact on costs and affordability will depend 

on what requirements are included in the specification, and the information about local 

support and services provided to bidders in a Local Information Sheet that forms part of the 

tender package. 

 

Since the social value elements are a part of what the Council is purchasing any associated 

costs should be part of the price, as well as the quality, assessment. They cannot generate 

‘less good’ value and must demonstrate that the Council is seeking both value for money and 

to comply with its best value duty under section 3 of the Local Government Act 1999.   

1.4 The Council’s Approach 

Under this Policy the Council commits to applying the obligations of the Act not only to those 

services contracts to which the Act applies itself, but also to works and supplies contracts, 

and to services contracts that are below the value where the Regulations apply. The Council 

has the power to do so under the general power of competence set out at section 1, Part 1 

of the Localism Act 2011, and considers that to do so will be in furtherance of its best value 

duty under section 3 of the Local Government Act 1999.  

 

The Council will also comply with the requirements of the Act for all services contracts to 

which the Act directly applies.  

 

The Council’s initial priority is to implement this Social Value Procurement Policy in relation 

to targeted recruitment and training and targeted supply-chain opportunities. 

Implementation will be extended to other social value outcomes where the following tests 

are met: 

· seeking those social value outcomes through a contract and/or the commissioning 

process itself appears to the Council to be likely to improve the economic, social and 

environmental well-being of the Council’s administrative area or any part of it; 

· the Council has access to appropriate expertise in the ‘social value outcomes to be 

secured, either internally or through a partner organisation, so that proper support can 

be given to both the procurement team and service teams during the commissioning 

process and in the delivery of the contract; 

· the potential benefits to the Council or to the target community justify any additional 

work and expense incurred by the Council; 

· the proposed requirements are affordable; and  

· the social value outcomes are not inconsistent with the Council’s wider policy goals 

(including the Sustainable Communities Strategy and the Procurement Strategy, 

and/or the Council has identified the outcomes as a specific policy goal. 

 

Existing Council policy is clear about the intention to maximise recruitment, training and 

supply-chain opportunities in the local economy but is not sufficiently explicit about the 

need to ensure that all employers working for the Council play a part in this, and that the 

benefits are available to all residents including those that face barriers in the labour market. 

While the B&NES area is relatively well placed to benefit as the economy improves the 

Page 52



 Page 3 of 15 

labour market is likely to remain very competitive, especially for people without high-level 

skills and a relevant employment record.  

 

The B&NES Economic Strategy has been updated and was adopted by Cabinet in 

September 2014.  Within the strategy there is specific reference to the “Think Local” 

Procurement Strategy including ‘The Council can … contribute to local employment and 

training provision through: Targeted Recruitment & Training outcomes contributing to 

the social value toolkit within the “Think Local” Procurement Strategy’. 

 

Our strategy is therefore to first ‘think local’ in relation to goods, works and services. 

(B&NES Procurement Strategy 2013-17 page 4).  

 

This Social Value Procurement Policy details how all departments and agencies of the 

Council will implement the above commitments and provides the policy basis for including 

social value requirements as a part of ‘the subject matter of the contract’ as the default 

approach within the Council where the contract falls within the scope of the policy.   

 

Where a matter is relevant to the subject matter of the contract, the Council is able to take 

that matter into account in its evaluation of tenders.  Policy and strategy goals are by their 

nature relevant to the subject matter of everything that the Council does, including its 

contracts, as the Council makes its decisions as to what to purchase based on its policy and 

strategy goals.  To the extent that it considers relevant to do so, the Council will treat this 

Social Value Procurement Policy as relevant to each of its procurement exercises.   

 

Compliance with the policy is mandatory for all procurements unless an exemption is 

specifically agreed (see 3 below).  

2. Application of the Policy 

2.1 Threshold Values 

The Policy will be applied to : 

· All works contracts (including contracts for a mixture of works and services or supplies) 

where the value of the contract is expected to exceed £500,000; 

· All services contracts and supplies contracts (including contracts for a mixture of works 

and supplies) or services, and all where the value of the contract is expected to exceed 

£100,000; 

· all framework agreements where the anticipated spend in any financial year is 

expected to exceed the above; 

· all joint contracts with other purchasers where the value of the Council expenditure is 

expected to exceed the above thresholds. 

2.2 Social Value Contract Conditions  

Where a commission/procurement is subject to this policy the following are to be included 

at all stages of the commissioning/procurement process, commencing with the scoping of 

the procurement, and as contract conditions: 

· targeted recruitment and training 

Page 53



 Page 4 of 15 

· targeted supply-chain opportunities 

 

The above requirements will be a part of ‘the subject of the contract’ and may be used in all 

stages of the award process. 

 

The list of matters to be included in the Social Value Contract Conditions can be extended 

from time to time by the Divisional Director – Business Support or where the commissioning 

team agrees that the tests set out in paragraph 1.4 above (the Council’s Approach) are met. 

 

The Divisional Director – Business Support will identify appropriate expertise (including 

Social Value Champions) across the Council to support commissioning teams in applying the 

policy. 

 

The above matters may also be included in other procurements and as contract conditions 

where a procurement/commissioning team choose to do so even though this is not required 

under this policy. 

2.3 Existing Contracts 

Where the value remaining to be spent through an existing contract – including a call-off 

from a framework agreement – exceeds the thresholds set out in paragraph 2.1 above the 

contract manager shall approach the contractor and seek a voluntary commitment to 

completing and implementing a Social Value Method Statement in relation to the remaining 

value on the contract. 

 

In the case of a framework agreement, this voluntary commitment will be sought in relation 

to the award of each call-off contract where that contract exceeds the values set out in 

paragraph 2.1 above. 

2.4 External Consultants and Partner Organisations 

Where an external organisation is to be appointed to manage the procurement and/or the 

contract then they should have a contractual obligation to implement this Policy. 

 

Where the Council is undertaking a joint procurement with other organisations then it is the 

responsibility of the Council’s lead representative in these discussions to make partner 

organisations aware of this Policy and the need to include social value in the contract (where 

mandatory), at least in relation to the delivery for the Council.  The Council should therefore 

take this policy into account when making any decision relating to joint procurement.   

3. Exemption Procedure 

Where a commissioning/procurement team should implement this policy but thinks there 

are valid reasons for not doing so on a particular procurement it may seek formal exemption 

from the Divisional Director – Business Support. 

 

Page 54



 Page 5 of 15 

The Divisional Director – Business Support will seek comments from the Council’s Corporate 

Procurement Team or appropriate internal expertise in considering a request for an 

exemption. 

4. Actions to be Taken 

Where a new contract is subject to this Policy the following steps must be taken at each 

stage of the commission/procurement process as set out in the Council’s Procurement 

Strategy. 

4.1 Analyse & Plan 

Identify whether the proposed contract will be subject to the mandatory Social Value 

Procurement Policy, and whether there are (other) social value outcomes that the 

commissioning team wish to include.  If the proposed contract is not subject to this Policy, 

consider whether to apply the Policy regardless.   

 

Where this Policy is mandatory, contact and involve the Council’s Economy & Culture Team 

as social value champion early in the scoping of the work.  Where other social value 

requirements are a consideration, identify and involve a person or organisation for whom 

this social value is a ‘primary purpose’ as the social value champion.  This may be within the 

commissioning/procurement team, elsewhere in the Council, or in a partner organisation. 

 

Critical roles for the social value champion are: 

· to help identify and specify appropriate, measurable and affordable requirements 

related to the proposed procurement; 

· to prepare a Local Information Sheet that can be included in tender information which 

identifies organisations and resources that could help the contractor deliver the social 

value requirements in order to establish a level playing field between local bidders 

(who may be assumed to have some local knowledge and contacts) and non-local 

bidders; 

· to help evaluate the social value elements at PQQ and tender stages; 

· to help with the monitoring of outcomes throughout the life of the contract. 

 

In addition the commissioning team and social value champion can undertake ‘soft market 

testing’ by talking to a range of suppliers that might be appropriate for the proposed contact 

to obtain their views on how best to include the social value requirements in the 

procurement process and the contract, including their experience of delivering similar 

requirements in other contracts.  This can form part of any consultation exercise the Council 

decides to run in complying with the Act.  

 

If there is a pre-tender meeting for potential bidders introduce the intention to include a 

social value element and/or provide an opportunity for the social value champion to address 

the meeting. 

Page 55



 Page 6 of 15 

4.2 Secure Services 

Include the model texts set out in Appendix 1 or modify these as appropriate for the social 

value to be secured, at each of the following stages: 

· OJEU contract notice / advertising; 

· Prequalification Questionnaire; 

· Specification of the contract; 

· Tender evaluation and scoring framework; 

· Contract clauses. 

Advertising and Tender Documents 

All procurements must be advertised through www.supplythesouthwest.org.uk and 

managed through the Council’s e-procurement system, ProContract.  

 

For all procurements that are covered by the Regulations, a Local Information Sheet 

must be included in the tender information.  This should provide information on 

resources available to the appointed contractor(s) or service provider(s) to help them 

deliver the social value requirements.  This aims to make sure that all bidders have the 

same information on local training, recruitment, supply-chain and diversity services 

and funding etc., and is important in protecting the Council from challenges from non-

local bidders. 

Prequalification 

The Council does not envisage any situations where the social value element would be 

the only quality criteria to be evaluated, or where the social value elements is a 

“pass/fail” requirement (e.g. at PQQ stage). 

Tender evaluation 

The Social Value Method Statement should normally be evaluated and scored as a part 

of the quality assessment of the tender using a scoring framework that is developed 

with the social value champion.  The latter may be involved in the evaluation process. 

 

The weighting given to the social value element will depend on the number of 

elements in the quality section of the evaluation and the relative importance of these, 

but should be sufficient to make clear that a failure to address the social value 

elements of the contract could impact on evaluation: 5 - 10% of the overall weighting 

is considered sufficient for this.  If there are very few quality matters being scored care 

must be taken not to give disproportionate weight to the social value element: in most 

cases a 10% weighting for all social value requirements should not be exceeded.  The 

weighting given should be assessed on a case by case basis, and any variations to these 

broad guidelines discussed between the contract manager and the Corporate 

Procurement Team prior to the publication of the OJEU contract notice.   

 

Where there is a lack of good benchmarks for the required outcomes, or the social 

value element is not expressly linked to the subject matter of the contract, it might be 

Page 56



 Page 7 of 15 

appropriate not to score the social value element.  The latter requirements should be 

part of the specification (and therefore noted in the tender documents), and should be 

included in the contract as ‘a condition relating to the delivery of the contract’, but 

they would not influence the evaluation of tenders and the award of the contract.  

 

Costs associated with delivering the social value requirements may be included in the 

tender price and be taken into account in assessing best value. Nevertheless, 

contractors should be expected to make maximum use of external resources (funding 

and services) that may be available for some social value activities (e.g. recruitment 

and training) so that only a net cost is included in the contract sum.  

4.3 Deliver and Review 

Early in the operation of the contract the contract manager should broker a meeting 

between the contractor (and perhaps main subcontractors), the social value champion, and 

any organisation undertaking monitoring and reporting on the social value element of the 

contract.  This should aim to set up positive working relationships and clarify what is 

required of the contractor. 

 

Key outcomes on the social value requirements should be included in the key performance 

indicators (KPIs) for the contract and used to assess contractor performance.  Monitoring 

Reports should be chased up from the first due date under the contract and any errors or 

omissions followed-up.  Where the contractor is not performing adequately in relation to the 

required social value it is the B&NES contract manager’s responsibility to obtain 

improvement from the contractor, working with the social value champion. 

 

The best outcomes will be obtained if there is a clear separation of responsibilities between 

the team that works with the contractor to help deliver the social value outcomes, and the 

team that reviews performance against KPIs and makes a commercial response to this. 

 

The intention of this Policy is that the Council’s social value requirements have due weight 

within the contract and should be enforced in the same way as any other element of 

contract delivery.  Obtaining the delivery of all elements of the contract is an imperative for 

the Council, and therefore an obligation on the appropriate contract officers.  In this context 

the social value champion should not renegotiate the social value requirements with the 

contractor unless this has been agreed by the Council’s contract manager.  However, in line 

with the Council’s experience it is anticipated that the social value requirements will be 

secured through the development of positive relationships between the contractor and the 

social value champion. 

5. Setting Targets 

5.1 New Entrant Trainee Opportunities 

The aim of the New Entrant Trainee requirements is to enable people who don’t have the 

training and work experience (i.e. skills and productivity) to obtain a job on the contract to 

train and become productive, and therefore have the chance to compete in the labour 

market after the contract.  Pre-employment training may be an element of this, but work 

Page 57



 Page 8 of 15 

experience in a supportive environment is also a key element.  In many occupations there 

are sufficient skilled/experienced workers in a Europe-wide labour market, so waiting for 

this flow to dry up is not an option: many young people and others that are disadvantaged in 

the labour market in B&NES could become permanently excluded – socially and 

economically. 

 

 

Setting targets is a critical part of the procurement of social value because: 

 

· good procurement practice determines that tender/contract requirements should be 

measurable and capable of being monitored and verified; 

· adopting a rational process for setting targets is important in obtaining the support of 

the whole procurement and contract management team; 

· the targets should be compatible with other contract priorities like quality, timely 

delivery and affordability. 

 

Also, understanding how targets can be set for each type of contract will enable projections 

of potential outcomes from a single contract or a programme of commissions to be made.  

This can influence which contracts should be prioritised in relation to social value, in the 

context where resources for facilitation and monitoring may be limited.  

 

In the construction sector there is a fairly well-established process for setting targets for 

‘new entrants’ to the industry based on: 

· a calculation of the overall labour requirement to deliver the contract e.g. number of 

people or person weeks; 

· a judgment of what % of these can reasonably be delivered by apprentices and new 

trainees, in the context of other contract requirements like quality, cost and timely 

completion. 

 

This has been developed because there is a profession – quantity surveyors – that have 

relevant knowledge and can offer this to clients to help set targets for individual contracts.  

 

A key issue in setting targets is deciding what the right % is for ‘new entrant’ weeks or jobs.  

There is considerable experience that suggests a bench-mark for works contracts in the 

region of 10% of total labour usage.  The most comprehensive data comes from nine years of 

Glasgow Housing Association investment: 34 contracts across 15 types of construction work.  

Overall, 11.4% of the Person Weeks used by contractors were delivered by New Entrant 

Trainees recruited through a local agency, of which nearly half were delivered by people 

from the most deprived communities in Glasgow.  However, as the table above shows there 

were considerable variations between types of work, and between contractors delivering 

the same type of work.  This demonstrates that outcomes relate more to the commitment 

and experience of the contractors than the type of work being delivered. 

 

This methodology can be applied to other sectors, albeit that the appropriate target % is 

different.  It is likely that at the outset some research will be required which informs the 

specification.  Key questions to ask are: 

Page 58



 Page 9 of 15 

· What is the best way of setting employment targets, numbers of workers or durations 

of work (e.g. Person Weeks)? The latter is appropriate where many ‘jobs’ are short-

term because the skills needed and the employers involved change as the project 

progresses, as in construction. 

· How many people (or how many Person Weeks) will be required to deliver the 

contract?  Does the commissioning team know this, if not research this with some 

potential suppliers through ‘soft market testing’. 

· What proportion of the workforce (or Person Weeks) can reasonably be delivered by 

new entrants to the sector before there are significant risks to quality, price, timely 

delivery etc.? 

· How long is it before a new entrant to the sector becomes productive, i.e. able to 

cover the cost of their employment in the value of the work they deliver for their 

employer.  This can help determine how long a new entrant should be counted as a 

‘new entrant’. 

· What is the typical labour turnover in the sector?  This may be important in enabling a 

‘new entrant’ to the sector to move into their second job and create a vacancy for 

another ‘new entrant’. 

 

Another consideration in identifying the scale of opportunities (and later the targets to be 

included in contracts) is the scale of demand for the opportunities that will be created, and 

what training is available locally.  To assess this it is useful to involve training providers that 

work in the sector being procured, and possibly general employment agencies: what number 

of trainees and job-seekers do they need opportunities for? 

 

From this information some reasoned targets for the specification, along with a definition of 

e.g. a New Entrant Trainee, can be determined by the commissioning team.  As can be seen 

from Housing Association data, the way contractors approach the delivery of the social value 

requirements has a big impact on what they can achieve.  In this context there seems to be 

some margin for error in setting targets. 

Example from a Local Authority 

The example local authority spends £12m per year on adult care of which 80%-90% is for 

labour costs: so roughly £9.6m per year.  

 

If a typical adult care worker costs £10 per hour including on-costs, this equates to £18720 

per year, so for a £9.6m budget Council expenditure is supporting 518 fte posts. In reality 

there will be many more jobs than this because of part-time working. If 10% of these were 

‘new entrant’ posts this would generate 52fte posts per year, or more if the target is 

delivered through part-time jobs. The number of opportunities would depend on how long 

each new entrant stays in the post, and this will depend on the approach that is developed. 

Options could include: 

· each new entrant progresses to a full-time post with the employer, but this 

makes assumptions about labour turnover in suitable posts that will create 

vacancies; 

· the opportunities are used as a temporary ‘first job’ for new entrants that are 

then helped to find a permanent work either in the care sector or in other 

Page 59



 Page 10 of 15 

sectors, in which case the opportunity could be time limited to perhaps 26 weeks 

and the 52 posts would support 104 new entrant opportunities per year. 

5.2 Opportunities for skilled/experienced workers 

There is also a need to maximise the recruitment of local skilled/experienced workers in 

order to increase spending power in the local economy and help reduce the environmental 

impact of commuting, and to accommodate an sense of fairness in the local community.  It 

would be possible to set a target number of opportunities to be provided, but take-up is 

unpredictable because skilled/experienced workers have many more options than new 

entrants to the labour market.  In this context it is common to merely require all vacancies to 

be notified to named local agencies or advertised locally – rather than setting measurable 

targets – and then monitor the numbers of local people that benefit.  This is the approach 

proposed in B&NES. 

5.3 Supply-chain Opportunities 

A key issue when seeking to target subcontract and supply opportunities at local 

organisations is the danger of the Council, as client, taking responsibility for the work of the 

local organisations and any increased costs incurred by the main contractor using them, as 

‘nominated suppliers’.  The Council does not want to take this risk.  

 

In this context the aim should be that local organisations are provided with the opportunity 

to tender for the contract.  Whether this is awarded to them will depend on their suitability, 

capacity and price, and the Council should not get involved in this.  It would be reasonable to 

require that (e.g.) two organisations with a BA post-code be included in each list of 

organisations invited to tender or price for supplies or subcontracts ‘where suitable 

organisations exist’.  

 

B&NES is also keen to ensure that contractors hold ‘meet the buyer events’ to make sure 

that local organisations become aware of forthcoming opportunities, and it will support 

efforts to help local organisations improve their capacity and competitiveness. 

5.4 Revising the Specification and Procurement Method 

The Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 recognises that contracting authorities should not 

act in isolation when identifying both what social value can be achieved through a contract, 

and through how that contract is procured.  Local organisations – and specifically social 

enterprises, charities and not-for-profit organisations – can offer additional value that is 

often not recognised in the specification for a contract.  With this in mind the Council should 

consider whether or not to enter into wider consultation with the marketplace as well as 

service beneficiaries when considering both the specification for a contract and the method 

of procurement.  

 

If commissioning/procurement teams want to further increase opportunities for local 

suppliers then they can consider changing the specification for the contract or the way in 

which the contract is arranged and procured.  Amongst others, two approaches can be 

considered: 

Page 60



 Page 11 of 15 

Break the contract into Lots 

The biggest barrier to local organisations winning public sector contracts – including 

many that have traditionally relied on this work – can be that the scale and value of 

the contract is beyond their management and financial capacity.  This can be 

addressed by aggregating demand – and so advertising one procurement – but being 

willing to disaggregate delivery by offering tenderers the opportunity to bid for one or 

more Lots, i.e. smaller packages of work. 

Incorporating social value into the specification 

In terms of achieving social value, the hope is that local organisations will be more 

competitive in bidding for contracts where these have taken into account the social 

value that can be achieved – whether this is TR&T or targeted supply chain 

opportunities, or otherwise.   

 

When undertaking a process of consultation (or, if no consultation is thought to be 

needed, when considering internally the scope of a contract) the Council should 

consider how social value is built into the specification of the contract bearing in mind 

the experiences and expertise of those consulted with.   

 

The B&NES Social Value Procurement Policy allows commissioning/procurement teams 

to consider whether they want to include additional social value in a procurement 

where some tests are met – see 1.4 above. 

6. Specifying other social value requirements 

A key aim of the Public Services (Social Value) Act is to encourage purchasers to think 

differently about the content of their specifications – especially in service contracts –

introducing good practice that has been pioneered by existing providers (and perhaps 

especially by social enterprises and community-based organisations). It is anticipated that 

some of this innovation will require contractors to deliver services differently within the 

same budget, or possibly to deliver savings over the life-cycle of the contract. The Act 

requires commissioners to think about this at the scoping stage of the contract and to 

consider undertaking review and consultation that could lead to innovation in the 

specification and subsequently the contract conditions. 

 

The B&NES Social Value Procurement Policy encourages this research process and sets out 

(in paragraph 1.4 above) some conditions that should be met before a commissioning team 

make ‘social value’ innovations.   

 

There are a number of ways that the research process can be undertaken: 

· Literature reviews, especially in trade journals and good practice publications; 

· Networking with colleagues in other organisations commissioning similar services; 

· Working with local service-user organisations; 

· Consulting a range of existing delivery organisations prior to the commencement of 

the commissioning/procurement process: ‘soft market testing’. 

 

Page 61



 Page 12 of 15 

In addition to this process of review and consideration prior to a procurement process, in 

some circumstances the procurement process itself can be used to seek further innovation.  

Particularly, if the competitive dialogue procedure is available, it can be used to provide a 

process whereby bidders develop a response to the Council’s requirements – in this case for 

innovation to achieve social value – and then bring forward proposals for discussion.  This 

gives the commissioning team an opportunity to discuss bidder responses during the 

development of the bids. 

7. The Procurement Process – Staying Safe 

In general the Social Value Procurement Policy should be implemented with reference to 

and in compliance with the Council’s Contract Standing Orders.  These reflect the 

requirements of the Public Contract Regulations 2006 and the Council’s Best Value duties 

and will enable social value to be procured on a way that will reduce the risk of legal 

challenges. 

 

In relation to innovation and social value the following good practice should also be adopted. 

7.1 Local and Non-local bidders 

To comply with EU law principles (in particular non-discrimination and equal treatment, in 

keeping with the concept of free movement within the EU), the social value requirements 

should not favour local over non-local bidders. Case law has indicated that requirements 

where knowledge of local training arrangements or having a local workforce would give an 

advantage to a local bidder are not permitted unless the potential to disadvantage non-local 

bidders is ameliorated in some way. 

 

In relation to employment and training the policy aim is to maximise opportunities for 

BANES residents, but the way this is reflected in the specification provides a ‘level playing 

field’ for local and non-local bidders: 

· all have a specified number of New Entrant Trainees that they have to recruit from a 

named source; 

· all have to notify vacancies to a named source; 

· all have to provide the same monitoring information. 

 

Case law has determined that the tender documents cannot require that bidding 

organisations have premises in the area where the works or services are to be delivered (but 

one may be needed during the life of the contract). 

7.2 Types of organisations 

The procurement process should not favour one size or structure of organisation.  So a 

specification cannot state that bidders must be (for example) small businesses or social 

enterprises.  However, the procurement process can be designed to maximise the 

opportunities for organisations that might otherwise find it difficult to participate e.g. by 

breaking the work into Lots so as to provide opportunities for organisations with more 

limited capacity (as discussed above).  Some elements of social value have perhaps been 

provided in the past by some contractors but not all – these requirements can lend 

Page 62



 Page 13 of 15 

themselves to organisations that would otherwise be at a disadvantage in the tendering 

process, because of the specialist expertise or sector knowledge held by those organisations.   

7.3 Equalities Legislation & Freedom of Movement 

In relation to employment and training requirements care must be taken to ensure that the 

impact is not discriminatory.  For example, if an area has several communities with very 

different characteristics – distinguished, by race, gender, religion etc. – and the proposed 

service or development is in just one of these, there could be a case for ‘indirect 

discrimination’ if the employment and training benefits were just targeted at this 

community. 

 

Likewise the European Treaties allow individuals from any EU country access to jobs in any 

other country. 

 

To address this it is important that the named job-matching agency(ies) operate an equal 

opportunities policy and although it may focus its outreach work with disadvantaged 

communities in one or more areas it also provides a service for other people that seek its 

help, e.g. by registering with it.  This does not mean that it needs to seek out other 

registrations. 

 

Offering candidates with a range of skills and experience will also help the named job-

matching agency to build a good relationship with employers by being able to meet all of 

their labour needs, not just the need for New Entrant Trainees.  So it is also good practice. 

8. Contract Notice 

The use of social considerations in procurement must be mentioned in any OJEU contract 

notice by a contracting authority.  The following model wording is suggested, typically under 

the section in the OJEU Notice headed ‘Additional information’. 

 

“Under the Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 the contracting authority 

must consider: 

(a) how what is proposed to be procured might improve the economic, 

social and environmental well-being of the area where it exercises 

its functions, and 

(b) how, in conducting the process of procurement, it might act with a 

view to securing that improvement. 

Accordingly, the subject matter of the contract has been scoped to take into 

account the priorities of the contracting authority relating to economic, social 

and environmental well-being. These priorities are described in the invitation to 

tender/negotiate/participate in dialogue and are reflected in environmental 

and social characteristics in the evaluation criteria for the award of the 

contract” 

Page 63



 Page 14 of 15 

9. Pre-qualification Questionnaire (PQQ) 

In any pre-qualification questionnaire the following questions can be used in the section of 

the questionnaire that assesses technical capacity and ability: 

 

“Please give examples of your involvement in each of the following: 

· generating employment and training opportunities for long-term 

unemployed people; 

· providing training opportunities for young people; 

· promoting supply-chain opportunities to new and small enterprises. 

What was your exact involvement in each of the above activities?  Which of the 

examples you have cited have been more successful, and which have been less 

successful, and why?” 

 

The answers to the PQQ questions can be scored as a part of the selection process for the 

those to be invited to tender, even if the requirements are only ‘a condition relating to the 

delivery of the contract’ and not an ‘award criteria’.  All of the bidders invited to tender 

should be capable of delivering the contract conditions. 

 

Where a standard PQQ pro-forma is in use it will be important to ensure that changes are 

made to include social value questions. 

 

An important outcome from including social value questions in the PQQ is that it raises 

awareness of the social value requirements, with procurement staff and bidders, at an early 

stage. 

10. Award Criteria 

The award criteria, and the weightings attached to them, to be used in the award of the 

contract have to be included in the tender information.  Where a social value requirement is 

relevant to the ‘subject matter of the contract’ then it can be included in the award criteria – 

as a part of the ‘quality’ score.   

 

Where a social value requirement is not considered to be relevant to the subject matter of 

the contract, these should not form part of the award criteria.  Information on these 

requirements should still be included in the Contract Notice, PQQ, Specification and contract 

conditions, but do not form a part of the tender scoring process.  This might be considered 

appropriate where: 

· there is uncertainty about the status of the social value requirements as relevant to 

the subject matter of the contract; 

· to include the requirement within the quality evaluation criteria could give excessive 

weight to the social value requirement in the award of the contract – e.g. where the 

quality criteria are limited; and 

· the commissioning team are not confident they could properly evaluate the social 

value ‘offer’ from bidders. 

 

Page 64



 Page 15 of 15 

The B&NES Social Value Procurement Policy has been designed to allow 

commissioning/procurement teams to include social value requirements as a part of the 

subject of the contract. 

 

As can be seen from Section 3.4 above it is the Council’s view that social value requirements 

should not normally exceed a 10% weighting out of the overall award criteria, and that a 5% 

weighting for any one social value requirement should be sufficient to get proper attention 

from bidders. 

11. Specification 

Model specifications for targeted recruitment and training and supply-chain opportunities 

are available.  

 

A Method Statement is normally provided with the tender and is used as a basis for scoring 

in the award process. 

 

Where commissioning/procurement teams are seeking to include other social value 

requirements in their tenders/contracts then it should be noted that the model approach 

includes the following key elements that the team should consider: 

· definition of terms used; 

· information on what is required of the contractor, e.g. provision of a Method 

Statement with the Tender; 

· information on where the bidders can find information that will help them complete 

the social value element of the tender even if they don’t have local knowledge; 

· the required outcomes; 

· the monitoring and verification information that will be required; 

· a statement making clear that the contractors is responsible for obtaining 

subcontractors compliance as necessary to deliver the contract; 

· a disclaimer in relation to any support provided by the Council to help achieve the 

required outcomes; 

· a pro-forma Method Statement: obtaining information on a standard format makes it 

easier to use a standard scoring framework and avoids the possibility of bidders 

providing too much irrelevant text. 

 

Page 65



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



Printed on recycled paper 1

 

Bath & North East Somerset Council 
 

MEETING/
DECISION 
MAKER:  

Cabinet 

MEETING/
DECISION 
DATE:  

3rd December 2014 E2598 

TITLE: 
Review of the Council’s Street Trading Policy, conditions and 

guidance 

WARD: All 

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

List of attachments to this report: 

Annex A- Copy of the responses to the consultation exercise on the proposed revised 

Street Trading Policy, conditions and new guidance 

Annex B- Copy of the proposed Street Trading Policy, conditions and new guidance 

including amendments (in red) 

Annex C- Copy of the current Street Trading Policy  

 
1 THE ISSUE 

1.1 To review the Council’s street trading policy which was last updated in 2010.   

1.2 This report brings the findings of the consultation exercise carried out on the 
proposed revision of the Council’s Street Trading policy, conditions and new 
guidance. 

2 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 The Cabinet adopts the revised policy and notes the proposed conditions and 
guidance provided at Annex B. 

3 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCE, PROPERTY, PEOPLE) 

3.1 Finance and Property:  The revised policy proposes that there will be a preferred 
set of standards for the design and appearance of stalls and compliance is 
expected from all street trading pitches.  Stalls within the main shopping area of 
Bath will be expected to use a particular design in recognition of the importance 
of this area and the world heritage status of the city.  This area will include the 
central spine of Milsom Street down through Union Street, Stall Street and 
Southgate Street in addition to other popular areas such as Kingsmead Square, 
Sawclose and Terrace Walk.  

Agenda Item 13

Page 67



Printed on recycled paper 2

3.2 It is proposed that all new applicants will be required to adopt the new standards 
from when they are granted a street trading pitch; existing pitches will be 
required to upgrade their units by 1st January 2017.  To assist both existing 
applicants and new street traders, the Council has produced guidance notes 
which identify the types of stalls and standards of quality and design which would 
achieve compliance.  In anticipation of this change, the Council has already been 
working with existing street traders to help them upgrade their units.  For both 
existing and new traders, the Council intends to purchase a number of units 
which could then be rented to the trader on a cost recovery basis for the period 
that they have a street trading consent.  This prevents the trader from paying a 
large, upfront cost to help them with their business from the outset.  The unit 
would remain the property of the Council but be retained by the trader during the 
period of time that they retain the street trading consent. The trader would also 
be responsible for insuring the unit against theft and/or damage.  

3.3 The cost of the units is expected to be under £10k in total, which would be found 
from within existing Licensing revenue budgets in 2014/15 or 2015/16.  The 
annual anticipated total rental income from the units is likely to be c£3k until such 
time as the cost of each unit has been recovered.  Thereafter there may be a 
small charge to traders to cover the on-going cost of repairs and maintenance of 
the units.  This will be structured such that there is no surplus or deficit to the 
Council. 

3.4 All fees charged in respect of street trading will remain on a cost recovery basis. 

4 STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS AND BASIS FOR PROPOSAL 

4.1 The basis for this report stems from a need for the Council to review its street 
trading policy and ensure that it remains up to date. The Council is keen that this 
revision of its Street Trading Policy emphasises the importance of street trading to 
both the local environment and local economy and the role it plays in helping small 
businesses to establish and grow 

4.2 All streets in Bath and North East Somerset are designated as ‘consent streets’.  
The effect of this is that, with certain exceptions, selling, exposing, or offering for 
sale any article in a street requires a street trading consent issued by the Council.  
Persons trading without a consent are liable to prosecution for an offence and if 
convicted can be fined up to level 3 on the standard scale, currently £1000. 

 
4.3 Street Trading consents are issued under Schedule 4 of the Local Government 

(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982. Paragraph 7 provides that:  
 

(1) An application for a street trading consent or the renewal of such a consent 
  shall be made in writing to the district council. 

(2) Subject to sub-paragraph (3) below, the council may grant a consent if they 
  think fit. 
(3) A street trading consent shall not be granted- 

(a) to a person under the age of 17 years; or 
(b) for any trading in a highway to which a control order under Section 7 

   of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 is in  
   force, other than trading to which the control order does not apply. 
(4) When granting or renewing a street trading consent the council may attach 

  such conditions to it as they consider reasonably necessary. 
 

Page 68



Printed on recycled paper 3

(5) Without prejudice to the generality of sub-paragraph (4) above, the   
  conditions that may be attached to a street trading consent by virtue of that 
  sub-paragraph include conditions to prevent-  

(a) obstruction of the street or danger to persons using it; or 
(b) nuisance or annoyance (whether to persons using the street or 

otherwise). 
 

(6) The council may at any time vary the conditions of a street trading consent. 
 
(7) Subject to sub paragraph (8) below, the holder of a street trading consent 

shall not trade in a consent street from a van or other vehicle or from a 
stall, barrow or cart. 
 

(8) The council may include in a street trading consent permission for its holder 
to trade in a consent street- 
(a) from a stationary van, cart, barrow or other vehicle; or 
(b) from a portable stall. 

 
(9) If they include such a permission, they may make the consent   subject to 

conditions- 
(a) as to where the holder of the street trading consent may trade by  
 virtue of the permission; and 
(b) as to the times between which or periods for which he may so trade. 
 

(10) A street trading consent may be granted for any period not exceeding 12  
 months but may be revoked at any time. 

 
(11) The holder of a street trading consent may at any time surrender his    

consent to the council and it shall then cease to be valid. 
 

4.4 When granting or renewing a street trading consent, the Council may attach such 
conditions to it as they consider reasonably necessary. 

 
4.5  A copy of the Council’s current Street Trading Policy and Conditions is produced 

at Annex C. 
 

5 THE REPORT 

5.1 The Council has completed a twelve week consultation on the review of its Street 
Trading policy, conditions and new guidance for stalls.  This report brings to the 
Cabinet the findings of the consultation together with officer comments and 
recommendations.   Copies of the comments received are provided in Annex A. 

5.2 A copy of the amended Street Trading policy conditions and guidance, which 
includes the officer recommendations, is provided in Annex B.   Amendments are 
shown in red. 

5.3 The revised policy, conditions and guidance has been discussed and endorsed by 
the Licensing Committee in its meeting on 6th October 2014.   

6 RATIONALE 

6.1 The rationale for this report stems from a need on the Council to regularly review 
its Street Trading policy.  

Page 69



Printed on recycled paper 4

7 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

7.1 Advice has been sought from the Council’s Legal Services and the Council’s 
Monitoring Officer (Council Solicitor), and Section 151 Officer (Resources 
director) have had the opportunity to input to this report and have cleared it for 
publication. 

8 CONSULTATION 

8.1 The consultation included the persons listed below: 

• The chief officer of police for the area; 

• All Ward Councillors, Town Councils and Parish Councils 

• Existing Street Traders 

• Visitors to Bath City Conference 

• Student Community Partnership 

• Night Time Economy Group 

8.2 In addition a stakeholder workshop was held on 23rd July 2014 which was 
attended by street traders, representatives of the Bath Improvement District, 
Council Officers and Councillors.  Presentations were delivered by Sark Kenny, a 
street trader in Bath, David Dixon, the Council’s Stronger Communities Manager 
and Andrew Cooper from the Bath Improvement District.  Approximately 30 
people attended and feedback indicated that 67% of those attending confirmed 
the workshop fully met their needs.  

8.3 This report has not been sent to the Trades Unions because there are no staffing 
issues. 

9 RISK MANAGEMENT 

9.1 A risk assessment related to the issue and recommendations has been 
undertaken, in compliance with the Council's decision making risk management 
guidance. 

 

Contact person  Cathryn Humphries, Licensing and Environmental Protection 
Manager (01225 477645) 

Background 
papers 

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an 
alternative format 

Page 70



 

Printed on recycled paper 5

 

Page 71



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



Annex A- Street Trading Policy 2014 Consultation Responses 
 

1 
 

The following responses were received; where necessary, the response from the Licensing Team 

follows in blue: 

Question 1: Respondent (by type) 

 

The respondents in the ‘other’ category were Council Officers (Including Property Services and 

Transportation), the Bath Business Improvement District and the Local Food Steering Group. 

Question 2: The style of stall: 

 

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

Street Trader Local resident Ward/Parish/Town
Councillor of

B&NES

Other

In what capacity are you responding to the 
Street Trading Policy consultation? 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Variety Prescribed Did not respond

Do you think that there should be a prescribed 

style of stalls or a variety of styles? 

44% 

28% 28% 

Page 73



Annex A- Street Trading Policy 2014 Consultation Responses 
 

2 
 

Response from the Licensing Team about the responses concerning stalls: 

The Council is for the first time introducing the guidance about stall designs.  In doing this the 

Council is not wishing to water down the diversity of the traders within the City but wanting to 

achieve an element of uniformity and consistency in the canopies. 

Question 3: The size of stalls: 

 

Question 4: There is an ambition to have more street markets throughout B&NES.  Can you 

suggest any suitable locations? 

Bog island (Terrace Walk, Bath) or outside Guildhall on wide pavements; Stall Street; Abbey 

Churchyard and Kingston Parade; Bath Street; Closing streets and using these - High Street; Bath 

Southgate and Henry Street/Kingston Parade; Southgate Street; Keynsham; Midsomer Norton; 

Thank you for the comments. It is considered that space restrictions would make it challenging for 

there to be a street market in Bog Island (Terrace Walk).  Again, a street market outside the 

Guildhall would be challenging due to likely obstructions to the pavement and road.   

The Licensing Team do support applications for Farmers Markets and we work with organisers to 

ensure that they are successful.  The team will consider a review of Bath City centre pitches and 

have discussion with Keynsham and Midsomer Norton Town Councils on street trading in these 

locations. 

These suggestions will be forwarded to the Economic Regeneration Team so that they can be fed 

into the formulation of a strategy for markets in B&NES. 

 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

Yes No Did not respond

It is intended that the size of each stall will be no 

greater than 3m x 3m.  Is this acceptable?   

0% 

22% 

53% 

Page 74



Annex A- Street Trading Policy 2014 Consultation Responses 
 

3 
 

Please provide any other comments you have about the Street Trading Policy, Conditions 

and Guidance: 

The following responses were received; where necessary, the response from the Licensing Team 

follows in blue: 

“I run the Bath Leather Goods stall at the junction of Stall Street and York Street and have been 

trading there for a number of years. The proposals for stall design and size all seem reasonable 

and similar to my current stall design. There is only one point that I would like to make: 

Street traders should be offered the option of a fixed power supply for lighting, a utility bollard or 

weatherproof and lockable power box could easily be fitted on the pitch site. As a craft seller I 

really need to light my goods all year round and especially in the winter. The power cable can be 

connected to the nearest street light, which in my case is only ten feet away. I would be willing to 

pay the costs of connection and a lighting charge could be added to my pitch fee if it meant I didn't 

have to run a generator every day. I accept that not all traders want a power supply but the 

improvement to my display would make it worth it for me. An example of the kind of power bollard 

that I have used in other places is here: 

http://www.esi.info/detail.cfm/Furnitubes-International/Doric-cast-iron-major-service-bollard/_/R-

32498_SE108RD 

Many other designs for bollards or wall boxes are of course available and I would be happy to do 

the research and provide options if the council can arrange installation. Thank you”. 

Thank you for the comments.  The Council is carrying out a feasibility study into the provision of 

electrical power for a pilot area in Stall Street, Bath.  Feedback from this pilot will be given when it 

is available. 

“Policy fine but is there a more detailed schedule of conditions and restrictions?” 

In this policy review guidance notes have been added for the first time and these are considered to 

be fit for purpose based upon the feedback that has been received during the consultation. 

“Peter Dawson Planning Policy Group Manager has asked me to respond to this consultation in 

light of the work I carried out on the Bath Transport Package last year. 

During my time in the Bath Transport Package Team (BTP Team) delivering the City Centre 

Access restrictions forming part of the wider Bath Transportation Package, I had some close 

dealings with the street traders and Andy Tapper in Licensing. It became clear from our early 

consultation events at the Guildhall that the Street Traders were going to be our main objectors to 

the TRO we were trying to deliver. They had a strong representation at all consultation events and 

were incredibly vocal in their objections.  In the end we had to concede and give them an 

exemption to the restriction for access purposes despite the fact that all premises based traders, 

delivery companies, taxi companies and Council services including Waste agreed to work around 

the restricted access hours. If we did not concede they would have forced a Public Inquiry into the 

Traffic Regulation Order Proposed.  We understood the safety concerns that the traders had in 

carrying their equipment to the pitch locations however it was felt that equipment could be carried 

Page 75



Annex A- Street Trading Policy 2014 Consultation Responses 
 

4 
 

in from surrounding streets safely although a little less conveniently. This was not found to be 

acceptable to the traders.  We found it incredibly frustrating that the Street Traders were not willing 

to buy into the Councils vision of a vehicle free, pedestrian friendly and generally more attractive 

City Centre which would of course benefit their potential customers and perhaps even boost 

footfall past their businesses. We also found it frustrating that all other stakeholders were willing to 

work with us however the street traders who we (The Council) license had the power to potentially 

block the councils future vision for the city centre. The City Centre Access restrictions were 

eventually approved and are due to be implemented by the end of the summer this year. We 

would not be looking to remove any exemptions already agreed with the street traders. However I 

would request that as part of any future licensing agreements with Street Trader applicants that we 

should mention the Councils vision of a vehicle free city centre and state that they do not have a 

vehicular right of access to areas within the city centre that have current/future access restrictions 

proposed. I think if it is set out at an early stage then traders will be forced to adhere to it along 

with all other stakeholders. You could argue that it may put some off from applying in future, 

however I would argue that this would be highly unlikely given the known benefits to street traders 

being able to trade in the busiest city centre streets. We would also look at mitigating the effects to 

the traders by improving loading facilities in the surrounding streets. 

 I hope that you are able to take on board the comments I have raised and thank you for the 

opportunity given to do so.” 

Thank you for your comments.   

Para 4.2 of the Policy does highlight that the Council will take Traffic Regulation Orders (TRO) into 

account when creating new street trading pitches. 

The Guidance Notes to the Street Trading Conditions will be amended to make existing consent 

holders aware of current TRO’s and possible future TRO’s.  The Council is also exploring ways to 

find storage facilities for street traders which would reduce the need to carry stalls/stock in and out 

every trading day. 

“Para 4.1: The link takes one only to the opening page of the public web site. How does one 

navigate after that? I did eventually find via Business/Street Trading details of the occupied and 

vacant sites, but those details are not a map.” 

Para 4.1:  Yes, we will make this link specific so you can navigate to the page more quickly.  

“Para 5.3: The criteria in para 4.2 are essentially about public safety and nuisance. What about 
unfair competition with shops or too many stalls selling the same thing?  Do you need to also refer 

to the overriding criteria in para 1.2? There are also criteria in para 12.” 

 
Para 5.3: The Council is subject to the EU Services Directive which is designed to ensure fair 

trade.  Para 12.2 of the policy does state that consent will not normally be given for the sale of 

goods which will may conflict with goods sold by nearby shops etc. Agree that overriding criteria in 
Para 1.2 should also be included. 

 

Page 76



Annex A- Street Trading Policy 2014 Consultation Responses 
 

5 
 

“Para 6.3: What does most suitable mean? It is the nub of the Licensing Manager’s discretion, but 

is not defined.   Do you need to refer again to the criteria in paras 4.2 and 1.2? Is there any appeal 

against the Manager’s choice between competing bids”. 

 

Para 6.3: The manager's discretion is exercised having regard to the policy as a whole.  Always 

open to hearing comments about decision, but the final decision must rest with the manager and 

the statute does not provide any appeal process.  

“Para 8: What criteria will be applied?” 

Para 8: Each application will be judged on its merits in accordance with the policy as a whole.  

“Para 9.2: Do you need to refer to para 1.2 as well?” 

Para 9.2: Yes, a reference to Para 1.2 will be included.   

“Para 10.2:  It is not clear what the second sentence is implying. Does it simply mean that the 

sites will be where busking will not cause nuisance to local residents and businesses?  That 

seems a bold promise, because it depends on how the busking is performed.  Do you intend to 

apply conditions to buskers in these sites which will restrain excessive noise or amplification?  If 

so, should you say so explicitly, rather than implicitly by cross-reference to the criteria in para 4.2 

which include noise?”   

Para 10.2: The purpose of this policy provision is to permit the otherwise unlawful sale of goods by 

buskers and other street entertainers.  The standard street trading conditions cover public 

nuisance and the Busking Code of Practice will be attached to the consent.  If necessary, 

enforcement action will be carried out by the Environmental Protection Team using provisions of 

the Environmental Protection Act 1990. Agree that reference to Para 1.2 should be included. 

“Para 14.5: see comment on para 6.3.” 

Para 14.5: The manager's discretion is exercised having regard to the policy as a whole.  Always 

open to hearing comments about decision, but the final decision must rest with the manager and 

the statute does not provide any appeal process. 

“Para 14.7:   What is a relevant offence?  ‘Any other reason’ seems unlimited is our power of 

revocation so total?  Do you mean breach of the conditions of the licence?” 

Para 14.7: An example of a relevant offence would be the sale of counterfeit goods.  Our powers 

of revocation are wide and are ultimately determined by the Licensing Sub-Committee.   

 

 

 

Page 77



Annex A- Street Trading Policy 2014 Consultation Responses 
 

6 
 

“Para 15.1:  What does reasonable mean? I have understood (am I wrong?) that the Council may 

not recover by way of street trading fees in aggregate more than its costs of administering and 

enforcing the street trading regime, but within that aggregate fees may vary according to the 

characteristics of the site.   If my understanding is correct, should you say so?” 

Para 15.1: The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 does allow local 

authorities to charge variable fees depending upon pitch locations.  The Council is allowed to take 

account of costs including overheads and pitch locations in setting fees.  

“We frequently deal with noise complaint from busker's pitches. It might be useful to have some 

guidance on what is acceptable (e.g. noise ranges, amplification) in the policy. I'm aware that the 

BID have hosted and written an unofficial set of guidelines in this area, but there is no enforcement 

or sanction for those who exceed the guidelines.” 

Thank you for your comments. 

The standard street trading conditions cover public nuisance and the Busking Code of Practice will 

be attached to the consent, which does provide further guidance.  If necessary, enforcement 

action will be carried out by the Environmental Protection Team using provisions of the 

Environmental Protection Act 1990.  Further information is provided by this team at 

environmental_protection@bathnes.gov.uk 

“Para 13.4: This provision makes it a requirement to register with the Food Safety Team and Para 

14.8 states that the application will not normally be delayed .....unless advice of Food Safety team 

is required.  

 

The H&S team would like it to be a requirement to ensure that any street traders have a valid gas 

safety certificate on grounds of public safety. A recent campaign with mobile food traders resulted 

in a prohibition notice being served on a stall holder in Southgate because of a very poor standard 

of gas fitting. If the Council is granting permission for street trading - we should be ensuring that 

we are promoting good standards of safety and hygiene.” 

Thank you for your comments. 

Agree.  An extra provision will be included requiring all consent holders to comply with relevant 

H&S regulations including gas and electrical safety and Para 14.8 will also be amended to include 

the Health and Safety Team. 

“Street trading makes Bath stand apart from other cities in England by giving locals and tourists a 

sense of individuality and uniqueness to the city; showing locals that they have independent 

traders who put money back into the city and provide a small unique service to the customer which 

is sadly lacking in the big shopping chains!  The customer can have a chat about the weather or 

the problems with a product they may have without having to go through big company protocol.  

The same applies to the tourist who is eager to meet a real local and get a sense of the English 

and how we live.  Often the street trader is the first port of call if they are lost or need help!  People 

need to meet people to understand the city.  So my only comment would be PLEASE leave street 

trading to be individual each stall being different to show that bath is not just a Standard city; that 

Page 78



Annex A- Street Trading Policy 2014 Consultation Responses 
 

7 
 

you allow it's locals to breath and show their  creativity and uniqueness.  This is what will make 

Bath stand out from the crowd!  I would like to thank the Council for giving me the opportunity to 

sell and paint for the years I have been doing it!  I love the job and would hate to see it go and 

change I try my very best to represent Bath and its people.” 

Thank you for your comments.  By introducing the guidance about stall designs the Council is not 

wishing to water down the diversity of the traders within the City but wanting to achieve an element 

of uniformity and consistency in the canopies 

“A good variety of shops but shop front should become less stringent to alter.  The new shop front 

on Anthropologie has transformed the area and the ability to do this elsewhere (within reason) will 

show Bath is evolving and keeping up with other major cities.” 

Thank you for your comments.  Shop based trading is outside the scope of this policy consultation. 

“Some stalls have become too large and adversely affect those next to them - they dominate.  

Some stalls come out too far and when told to move back will do so but then slowly move out 

again -NOTHING is ever done about this - it really affects the stalls next to them.  I suggest a line 

12 feet out that we are not allowed to go over - this would be an easy method to stop 

encroachment.  3m x 3m is fine for some but 4m x 2.25m would be better for others i.e. mine.  

Parking for loading and unloading is always difficult - help and understanding of our problems 

would be appreciated.  Stalls that create noise and crowds SHOULD NOT be put next to other 

stalls - it noticeably affects trade - people often cannot get to my stall and can only walk on the 

other side of the street - not great for business and shouting from the stall doesn't help either.  This 

is the same for buskers who create crowds. Buskers ( who are mostly pretty good these days) are 

also often too loud  - amplifiers turned up too loud.  Generators are noisy and create fumes - a 

simple solution would be to provide electric points like many other towns and markets. This would 

make a HUGE difference for us.  Approach has been made to electric companies who could do 

this easily and not too expensively but blocked by council who weren't prepared to look for 

solutions - if there is no solution there is no problem - and there IS a problem here. Also with the 

planned repaving it could be sorted so easily.  GULLS - is anything ever going to be done about 

the menace - the streets are disgusting and not much fun for those who have to spend time out 

there!!!- the councillor who didn't realise there was a problem obviously doesn't get out much !!!  

Hope this is all helpful for you.  ps the fees are high - note the recent high turnover of stalls -should 

the council be making a profit from consents (not licences)or should fees just be covering costs?” 

These comments are welcomed and will be addressed outside of the policy consultation.  

However for information the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 does allow 

local authorities to charge variable fees depending upon pitch locations.  The Council is allowed to 

take account of costs including overheads and pitch locations in setting fees.  

In addition the Council is carrying out a feasibility study into the provision of electrical power for a 

pilot area in Stall Street, Bath.  Feedback from this pilot will be given when it is available. 

 

Page 79



Annex A- Street Trading Policy 2014 Consultation Responses 
 

8 
 

“The key issue is that the Council is prescriptive about the location of the pitches and acceptable 

trading uses to ensure that there is a relationship between the street trading activity and the 

adjacent retail units.” 

Para 12.3 and Para 1.2 confirms that the types of goods being sold are considered on a pitch by 

pitch basis and that the inter-relationship with shop-based trading is also taken into account. 

“This joint response to the street trading policy represents the views of members of the B&NES 

Local Food Steering Group and Public Health Representatives: 

Public Health Representatives: 

• Bruce Laurence: Director of Public Health  

• Paul Scott: Assistant Director of Health Improvement  

• Judy Allies: Director of Public Health Award Coordinator 

• Jo Lewitt: Commissioning and Development Manager 

Local Food Steering Group: 

• Jane Wildblood: Corporate Sustainability Manager  

• Denice Burton: Assistant Director of Health Improvement 

• Sophie Kirk: Corporate Sustainability Officer (Food) 

• Jameelah Ingram: Public Health Development and Commissioning Manager 

• Mark Minkley: Green Infrastructure Manager 

• Graham Evans: Horticultural Manager 

• Virginia Williamson: Transition Bath Food Group Convenor 

• Lorinda Trebaczyk: Waste Campaigns Officer 

Introduction: 

Food retail including street trade affects the provision of, and access to, healthy and unhealthy 

food in our district and can influence peoples’ dietary decisions. This joint-response recommends 

that guidance is incorporated into the street trading policy to encourage the provision of healthy 

food by street vendors.  

Addressing diet-related ill health and increasing access to healthy food are key priorities outlined 

in the respective Joint Health and Wellbeing strategy and the draft B&NES Local Food strategy. 

We recommend that the street trading policy aligns with the above strategies by introducing 

guidance that encourages the provision of healthy food to support people to make healthy dietary 

choices. We recommend that the following guidance is incorporated into the street trading policy: 

 

Page 80



Annex A- Street Trading Policy 2014 Consultation Responses 
 

9 
 

Section 12: Nature of goods and trading hours:  

Incorporate guidance that encourages the provision of healthy food choices in permit to trade.  

Example wording: “The Council is committed to promoting healthy eating and consideration will be 

given to the type and quality of food sold. In the case of stalls selling hot food at least one healthy 

meal option should be provided.” 

Section 12.3: Nature of Goods and trading hours:  

Amend the wording of this section: 

Example wording: “Goods will normally consist of craftwork, fresh flowers, fresh fruit and 

vegetables, local produce, ice cream or soft drinks.” 

These comments are welcomed and we have amended our policy to reflect some of these 

recommendations. 

“Other recommendations:  

Insert another box into the Street Trading Pitch Request Form below “Please enter the types of 

goods you wish to sell” asking “If food items, which healthy options will you be providing?” 

https://www.bathnes.gov.uk/form/street-trading-pitches 

The Council can ask if an applicant will be providing healthy options but this should not prejudice 

the application if healthy options cannot be provided due to the nature of the products being sold. 

• Include wording around the role of markets and/or street trade in promoting healthy eating and 

providing local food 

• Include wording around the role of markets in promoting environmental sustainability such as 

local food and low food packaging 

Further information: 

Further guidance on healthy street food vending can be found on the “Healthy Places” website, 

and interesting examples of related work by Guildford Borough Council and Islington Council can 

be found at the following web links:  

http://www.healthyplaces.org.uk/case-studies/?entryid38=1206 

http://www.islington.gov.uk/publicrecords/library/Economic-development/Business-

planning/Strategies/2010-2011/(2010-07-06)-Street-Trading-Strategy-2008-to-2012.pdf 

These comments are welcomed and we have amended our policy to reflect some of the 

recommendations. 

“I would like to see continued support for the Farmers' Markets in Keynsham and Midsomer 

Norton. 

I believe there is an opportunity for a weekly Farmers type produce market in the city centre, 

probably Southgate Street. As regards the street trading pitches I believe a review of locations in 

Page 81



Annex A- Street Trading Policy 2014 Consultation Responses 
 

10 
 

Bath city centre might be useful. Also a discussion with Keynsham and Midsomer Norton Town 

Councils about street trading pitches in those locations.” 

Thank you for your comments.  

The Licensing Team do support applications for Farmers Markets and we work with organisers to 

ensure that they are successful.  The team will consider a review of Bath city centre pitches and 

have discussion with Keynsham & MSN Town Councils on street trading in these locations. 

“Any new traders should complement the retail offer of the local shops & street traders.  

 

If the council is going to provide the stall holders with a uniform canopy both trader and council 

should make provision for the replacement or refurbishment of the street trader’s canopies every 5 

years. This will ensure that standards are maintained over the long term.” 

Thank you for your comments. 

This is agreed. The implementation of replacement units will be phased in over a number of years 

and it is hoped to introduce a rolling programme to maintain standards. 

“Thank you for inviting Paul and myself to yesterday’s workshop.  I thought this was well run and 

stimulated a positive discussion.  

 

1. Strategy on Street Trading 

There was a feeling that the workshop mainly focussed the practical aspects of licensing and 

street trading without asking the question ‘What do we want Street Trading to look like?’ “ 

Thank you for your comments. 

Street Trading has evolved over many years and the task of re-siting all of the existing pitches 

would prove to be extremely difficult and subject to likely challenge from the street trading 

community.  However the Council recognises the point being made about the street trading offer 

and will endeavour to consider this when allocating pitches, bearing in mind this is very much 

driven by the application process and legislation. 

“The discussion did linger a lot on page 5 section 13. (look of the stalls).” 

The Council recognises that this is an important issue and this review is an opportunity to get the 

right balance between uniformity and variety of design for our street trading stalls. 

 

 

 

 

Page 82



Annex A- Street Trading Policy 2014 Consultation Responses 
 

11 
 

“As previously cited in the document 2010 written by Sarah Mansfield and myself; we feel that 

your review of street trading is a great opportunity to address some of the more strategic questions 

about how our retail offer should look and feel to the consumer, and how street trading can serve 

to complement and enhance this.  This was a view expressed at both the BID Board and the 

Property Landlords forum.” 

As previously stated the Council recognises the importance of the street trading offer and working 

with the retail sector.  We endeavour to support this within the restrictions imposed by the EU 

Services Directive and the applications which we receive. 

“The business community is very supportive of street trading and we must eliminate any previous 

niggles about small vs. large or chain vs. independent, but instead concentrate our efforts of using 

street trading and markets to grow and support our retail economy in a collaborative way for 

mutual benefit. Retailers and businesses wish to see a vibrant, aesthetically pleasing and well-

managed street trading offer.” 

Yes, agreed. 

“At present Street Trading is seen as a function of licensing. The management of street trading 

from a retail perspective is left alone and this has a detrimental impact on our retail offering, and it 

reflects badly on the World Heritage Status. This has been supported with pictures of pallets and 

roll containers sprawled in the street, badly spelt signs and a poor presentation of product.” 

The legislation governing street trading does not allow for the Council to consider the management 

of the retail offer within this policy.  However, we welcome discussions on how the BID and the 

Council can work in partnership to support street traders in terms of business advice in the future.  

The situation described has much improved since the photographs were taken. 

“Licenses are granted on a reactive basis rather than considering the retail mix and proactively 

seeking to fill the gaps in our retail offer.” 

Inevitably the allocation of pitches are driven by the applications received however the Council 

endeavours to consider the retail offer for the city within the restrictions of the legislation. 

“Para 4.2 The council reacts to request for pitches rather than stating where and how we want the 

street trading to look. In a recent application, a coffee vendor asked to be located outside M&S at 

the top of St Lawrence St. Because of the reactive nature of the policy, the council and retailers 

had to go through a process of objecting to this proposal. This costs valuable time and waste 

money for the council. Instead the policy should be stating how the pitches are located and the 

preference for type of retail use (as a landlord would do) This would then reduce bureaucracy and 

improve the retail offer.” 

The Council cannot refuse to accept an application for a street trading pitch and cannot state a 

preference for a type of retail use in a particular location given it does not own the highway.  Quite 

rightly there is a democratic process on the allocation of pitches so that everyone has an 

opportunity to express a view.   

Page 83



Annex A- Street Trading Policy 2014 Consultation Responses 
 

12 
 

“In the presentation yesterday, I mentioned Kingston-upon-Thames. The council in Kingston works 

in partnership with the BID to unlock funding and transfers council services for mutual benefit in 

enhancing their markets/street trading. This is something worth exploring.” 

This will be considered. 

“The Bath BID would like the opportunity to discuss with you formally, as part of this review, how 

we can use BID funding and agree a way of ‘protecting the council income on Street trading’ but 

also enhancing offer through ‘better Retail Management and working together’.” 

This is outside the scope of this policy consultation however the Council welcomes having the 

discussion. 

“Is there an arrangement that meets the statutory function while at the same time addresses the 

retail and management issues? I believe there is and there is a feeling that commercial 

opportunities are being missed along with an opportunity to be more ambitious. We would like to 

explore this. This was welcomed by you and your colleagues at yesterday’s meeting.” 

Discussions would be welcomed on this point. 

“At present Street Trading is seen as a function of licensing. The management of street trading 

from a retail perspective is left alone and this has a detrimental impact on our retail offering, and it 

reflects badly on the World Heritage Status. This has been supported with pictures of pallets and 

roll containers sprawled in the street, badly spelt signs and a poor presentation of product.” 

The legislation governing street trading does not allow for the Council to consider the management 

of the retail offer within this policy.  However, we welcome discussions on how the BID and the 

Council can work in partnership to support street traders in terms of business advice in the future.  

The situation described has much improved since the photographs were taken. 

“Licenses are granted on a reactive basis rather than considering the retail mix and proactively 

seeking to fill the gaps in our retail offer.” 

Inevitably the allocation of pitches is driven by the applications received however the Council 

endeavours to consider the retail offer for the city within the restrictions of the legislation. 

Para 4.2 The council reacts to request for pitches rather than stating where and how we want the 

street trading to look. In a recent application, a coffee vendor asked to be located outside M&S at 

the top of St Lawrence St. Because of the reactive nature of the policy, the council and retailers 

had to go through a process of objecting to this proposal. This costs valuable time and waste 

money for the council. Instead the policy should be stating how the pitches are located and the 

preference for type of retail use (as a landlord would do). This would then reduce bureaucracy and 

improve the retail offer.” 

The Council cannot refuse to accept an application for a street trading pitch and cannot state a 

preference for a type of retail use in a particular location given it does not own the highway.  Quite 

rightly there is a democratic process on the allocation of pitches so that everyone has an 

opportunity to express a view.   

Page 84



Annex A- Street Trading Policy 2014 Consultation Responses 
 

13 
 

“In the presentation yesterday, I mentioned Kingston-upon-Thames. The council in Kingston works 

in partnership with the BID to unlock funding and transfers council services for mutual benefit in 

enhancing their markets/street trading. This is something worth exploring.” 

This will be considered. 

The Bath BID would like the opportunity to discuss with you formally, as part of this review, how 

we can use BID funding and agree a way of ‘protecting the council income on Street trading’ but 

also enhancing offer through ‘better Retail Management and working together’. 

This is outside the scope of this policy consultation however the Council welcomes having the 

discussion. 

“Is there an arrangement that meets the statutory function while at the same time addresses the 

retail and management issues? I believe there is and there is a feeling that commercial 

opportunities are being missed along with an opportunity to be more ambitious. We would like to 

explore this. This was welcomed by you and your colleagues at yesterday’s meeting.” 

Discussions would be welcomed on this point. 

“2. Strategy on Markets 

It was not clear yesterday what is the strategy for markets. The only reference is section 9 stating 

that the council activity supports the provision of temporary street markets. We again would be 

keen to discuss this with you.” 

A strategy regarding markets in B&NES is being progressed outside of the policy consultation. 

“3. Practical Considerations 

Many of the practical considerations and solutions are listed in my email of 26th February 2014. 

(below) and were discussed at length yesterday. Tethering, light, power, design of carts, storage, 

etc.” 

These issues are being addressed outside of the policy consultation. 

“The solution about the council buying capital equipment and renting back – I could not find the 

detail on this. The purchase of capital equipment for street traders has always been a stumbling 

block to improvement.  We are keen to work with the council and find joint solutions as per point 1. 

May be this could be speeded up before 2017 if we can work in partnership?” 

The use of capital funding for procuring stalls is not considered to be a stumbling block and it is 

anticipated that all the new stalls will be in place well in time for 1 January 2017. 

“4. Other aspects of the Policy 

*How will the policy address pedlars? Other than section 3.1, Page 2” 

Pedlars are not within the scope of this policy and any pedlar trading illegally will be subject to the 

appropriate enforcement action. 

Page 85



Annex A- Street Trading Policy 2014 Consultation Responses 
 

14 
 

“Para 10 on buskers, Page 4, is a welcome step to manage buskers and formally get them to 

agree the code of conduct.” 

The purpose of this policy provision is to permit the otherwise unlawful sale of goods by buskers 

and other street entertainers.  The standard street trading conditions cover public nuisance and 

the Busking Code of Practice will be attached to the consent.  

“*Para13.2 Many felt that opportunities for a wider discussion about the role of street trading have 

passed as a date of 1st Jan 2017 has been set.”  

This date is considered to give a reasonable time period for compliance.  Feedback from the 

consultation does not indicate that this date is a problem for the street trading community. 

“*Para11.3 The BID has the license for this area (Kingston Parade)and it continues to be listed on 

your web site – thank you. 

 

*The policy does not consider opportunities for incubation, new businesses start up help and 

business support – this is an important economic aspect.” 

The Council recognises the importance of street trading in assisting start-up businesses and 

welcomes discussion on how to provide business/marketing support in partnership with the BID in 

the future. 

“5. Communication 

I would echo the comments made about communication on the ground and how this has 

improved. Credit goes to Andy Tapper for being available, on hand and a willing to engage and 

respond. Thank you. 

 

To reiterate we welcome the invitation from Cllr. Dixon and yourself to meet and discuss this 

further. I hope this is helpful and supportive to the overall process.” 

Thank you for this comment. 

I lead a team of 4 valuers in the commercial estates team, looking after approximately 70% of the 

retail property here in Bath which generates significant income for the Council. 

 

I think what Andrew Cooper said at the recent meeting is very relevant. A whole approach should 

be taken to the issue taking into account retailers, street traders and markets. 

 

The Council recognises the importance of the street trading offer and working with the retail 

sector.  We endeavour to support this within the restrictions imposed by the EU Services Directive 

with the applications we receive. 

 

 

Page 86



Annex A- Street Trading Policy 2014 Consultation Responses 
 

15 
 

“No market or street trader should be in competition with existing retailers in the street. Any 

licensing should be appropriate for the street. As an example last year, someone wanted to 

operate a Milk Bar directly outside Jolly's in Milsom Street - this was totally inappropriate for such 

a flagship store.” 

 

See above comment.  In the example given the application was not progressed. 

“Obviously our retailers pay significant rents and rates to the council and it can be quite irksome 

when a stall trader pitches up not paying anything like these sorts of sums.” 

Clearly the fees for street trading are not the same as for retail lets.  However the street traders do 

not receive the same benefits as retail lets.  For example, street trading pitches are subject to the 

unpredictable factors such as bad weather which has a detrimental impact on their day to day 

trading ability. 

“We have actually had quite a lot of negative comments from our retail tenants when it comes to 

the Christmas market. It may generate revenues for the stall holders, but quite a few of our tenants 

say it hits their takings during this period, people should be encouraged to visit the rest of Bath; 

not just the market. In fact, quite a few of our retailers now take stalls in the market to combat this. 

This trend is definitely increasing.” 

 

The provision of a street trading permit for the Christmas Market is subject to a democratic 

process each year and if retailers have issues, this is the time to voice their opinions so that they 

can be properly taken into account. 

“Stalls and traders should not be allowed to pitch in front of existing retail windows and doors, 

blocking their legitimate displays and entrances.” 

 

Care is taken to ensure that stalls do not pitch directly in front of existing windows and doors of 

retail premises. 

“Specifically on the Policy:- 

 

Para 5.3: whilst referring to 4.2, should also refer to 1.2 as well. Agreed 

Para 9.2: should refer to section 1 as well, as should 10.2 Agreed 

We agree with 12.2. & 12.3. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 87



Page 88

This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

Annex B-Proposed Street Trading Policy 

1 Purpose 

1.1 Bath and North East Somerset Council understands that street trading is important to 
both the local environment and local economy.   Street trading can provide vibrancy and 
interest to the local environment and an opportunity for small businesses to establish 
themselves and grow.    
 

1.2 The Council’s vision for Bath and North East Somerset is to create a street trading 
environment which: 
 
o complements premises-based trading 
o is sensitive to the needs of residents 
o ensures that public spaces become active spaces 
o provides diversity and consumer choice; 
o seeks to enhance the character, ambience and safety of local environments 
o promotes healthy eating 
o provides local food 

2 What is Street Trading? 

2.1 Street trading means selling, exposing or offering for sale any article in a street. The term 
‘street’ includes any road, footway or other area to which the public has access without 
payment. 

2.2 The Council has adopted Schedule 4 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) 
Act 1982 for the whole of its area and has designated all streets in the area as ‘Consent 
Streets’ for street trading purposes. 

2.3 The effect of this designation is that street trading in any street is prohibited, subject to 
legal exemptions, without first obtaining a street trading consent from the Council. 

2.4 Consents may also be issued to mobile artists who sketch or paint, sell their own work 
and move from location to location. 

2.5 Specific sites for buskers will be established in the centre of Bath.   Only these sites can 
be used by performers who also want to sell items connected with their performance e.g. 
CDs.  This will change to: 

Street trading consents for buskers wishing to sell items associated with their 
performance (e.g. CD’s) will be established 

2.6 Consents may be issued to mobile vendors such as Ice Cream Traders to operate in 
specific locations outside of the central area of Bath. 

 

 

Page 89



 

2 
 

3 Exemptions from the need to obtain a Consent 

3.1 The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 states that the following are 
exempt from the need to obtain Street Trading Consent: 

· trading by a person acting as a pedlar under the authority of a pedlars’ certificate 
granted under the Pedlars Act 1871 

· anything done in a market or fair the right to hold which was acquired by virtue of a 
grant (including presumed grant) or acquired or established by virtue of an enactment 
or order 

· trading in a trunk road picnic area 
· trading as a news vendor 
· conducting a public charitable collection 
· trade carried out by roundsmen e.g. milkmen 
· trade carried on at a petrol filling station, and 
· trade carried on at premises used as a shop or in a street adjoining premises so used and 

as part of the business of the shop 
 

4 Pitch assessment 

4.1 The Council will maintain a map showing the location of street trading pitches.  This map 
is available on the Council’s web site at www.bathnes.gov.uk/services/business/street-
trading 

4.2 The Council may from time to time identify new pitches for street trading and will consider 
applications for new pitches.  In determining whether to create a street trading pitch the 
Council will have regard to: 

· an overriding public interest 
· any effect on road safety, either arising from the siting of the pitch, or any loss of 

amenity caused by noise, traffic or smell 
· existing Traffic Orders e.g. waiting restrictions 
· any potential obstruction of pedestrian or vehicular access 
· any obstruction to the safe passage of pedestrians; and 
· the safe access and egress of customers and staff from the pitch and immediate 

vicinity 
· any land owners permission which may be required from a private land owner or a 

relevant Council service e.g. Environmental Services (Open Spaces), Commercial 
Estates or Economic Regeneration 

 

5 Application Process for a New Pitch 

5.1 Before new pitches are created the Council will consult and seek written observations 
from: 

· occupiers of premises immediately adjacent and opposite 
· existing holders of street trading consents in the immediate area 
· relevant ward councillors 
· relevant parish or town councils 
· Avon & Somerset Constabulary 

Page 90



 

3 
 

· relevant Council Services including Development Control, Highways, Property 
Services, Environmental Services (Open Spaces), Commercial Estates, Trading 
Standards and Food Safety 

· a relevant land owner 
· any other stakeholder considered by the Council’s Licensing Team to be relevant to the 

application 
 

5.2 In addition to the above, public notices will be placed in a clearly visible location at the 
site of the proposed new pitch. 

5.3 The Council will consider any responses received in relation to public notices and any 
objection from consultees will be assessed against the criteria in paras 1.2, 4.2 and 
Section 12 and may be referred to the appropriate Licensing Sub-Committee for 
determination. 

5.4 Any proposed change to conditions attached to a consent will be in consultation with 
consent holders and others, as specified in 5.1 above, if relevant. 

6 Application Process for an Existing Pitch 

6.1 When an existing or new pitch becomes available, the Council will publish details of the 
vacancy, inviting applications for the pitch.   The details will be published on the Council’s 
website. 

6.2 Applications will be determined by the Licensing Manager.   If no suitable application is 
received then the pitch will be re-advertised. 

6.3 In situations where there are competing applications then the Licensing Manager will 
decide the most appropriate applicant in consultation with the Service Manager.   The 
pitch will be offered to the applicant whose proposal is considered the most suitable for 
the particular location. 

7 Mobile Street Artists 

7.1 Mobile street artist consents may be issued to persons who sketch or paint and sell their 
own work and move from location to location. 

7.2 Applicants for mobile street artist consents must give a minimum notice period of 48 
hours to the Licensing Team in relation to their application. 

8 Mobile Traders 

8.1 Any mobile trader e.g. ice cream vans, will require a street trading consent. 

8.2 Before issuing a consent the Council will consult with relevant bodies, as specified in 
section 5.1, and will require details of the daily routes and times of the rounds. 

9 Street Markets  

 
9.1 The Council actively supports the provision of temporary street markets within the district 

and special consideration will be given to markets which are considered beneficial to the 
local area. 

Page 91



 

4 
 

9.2 Applications for temporary street markets will be considered using the same criteria set 
out in Para 1.2 and in sections 4 and 5 of this policy. 

 

10 Pitches for Buskers 
 
10.1 The Council will issue Street Trading consents for use by buskers who wish to sell items 

associated with their performance (e.g. CD’s).  
 
10.2 Applications for pitches for buskers will be considered using the same criteria set out in 

Para 1.2 and sections 4 and 5 of this policy. 
   

11 Pitches for Charitable Street Trading 

11.1 The Council issues permits to enable charitable street trading.   Charitable street trading must 

not be undertaken in any street or public place unless the Promoter has obtained a consent 

from the Council.  The only exception to this is where the collection is exempt under schedule 

4 of the 1982 Act (see section 3) 

11.2 In relation to charitable street trading, the Council has a designated street trading pitch for 

this purpose at Kingston Parade, Bath.  This pitch will be available to registered charities, or 

organisations demonstrating that they are a ‘not-for-profit’ organisation.  Use of this pitch will 

be subject to the Council’s standard street trading conditions. 

11.3 The charity or organisation must obtain permission from the Principal Consent Holder 

responsible for the pitch at Kingston Parade whose details can be obtained from the 

Licensing Department. 

12 Nature of Goods and Trading Hours 

12.1 The nature of goods which may be sold from any pitch and the trading hours will be 
specified in the consultation process. Any subsequent application for a change in the 
nature or type of goods sold or the trading hours will require a further application and will 
be subject to the level of consultation as set out in section 5.1 above. 

12.2 Until 1st April 2015, the Council will not normally grant a consent for the sale of goods or 
services which conflict with those provided by nearby shops or nearby street trading 
pitches.  (After this date, changes to Schedule 4, Local Government [Miscellaneous 
Provisions] Act 1982 come into effect which promote open competition). 

12.3 Goods will normally consist of craftwork, fresh flowers, fresh fruit and vegetables, ice 
cream or soft drinks. Other types of goods, including services, will be considered on a 
pitch by pitch basis and have particular regard to local needs, product diversity and 
balanced with other retailers in the immediate vicinity. 

12.4 Street trading hours will normally mirror those of shops in the immediate vicinity.  
Extended trading hours will be determined on a pitch by pitch basis. 

12.5 In the case of stalls selling hot food trading hours will be determined on a pitch by pitch 
basis.    

Page 92



 

5 
 

12.6 Late night food traders operating after 11:00 pm will be subject to the requirements of the 
Licensing Act 2003 regarding the need for a Premises Licence.  Greater consideration will 
be given to the impact on the night time environment and the possibility of crime and 
disorder on the streets as a result of the granting of a street trading consent. 

13 Design and Appearance of Stall, Barrow, Van, Cart etc.  

13.1 The design and appearance of the stall, barrow, van or cart etc. to be used must be 
agreed by the Council. 

13.2 The Council has a preferred set of standards of design and appearance that they wish to 
achieve for all street trading pitches based in the central area of Bath. 

· All new applicants will be required to use an approved design unless a suitable 
alternative is agreed 

· All existing Consent Holders will be required to change to an approved design by 1st 
January 2017, or upgrade the whole or parts of their units, as appropriate 

13.3 The condition of all pitches will be monitored regularly to ensure that the required 
standards are maintained. 

13.4 All consent Holders trading in food products are required to be registered and inspected 
by the Council’s Food Safety Team.  Contact details of the Food Safety team can be 
found on the Council’s website. 

13.5 All consent Holders are required to comply with relevant health and safety regulations 
including those relating to electrical and gas safety. 

14 Issue of Street Trading Consents 
 
14.1 An application for a street trading consent or the renewal of such a consent shall be made, in 

writing, to the Council.  Applications can be e-mailed to the Council at: 
licensing@bathnes.gov.uk . 

14.2 Consents will not normally be issued for a period of less than six days per week, unless 
the applicant can provide an alternative scheme acceptable to the Council. 

14.3 Where a consent has expired the pitch will become subject to paragraphs 14.4 and 14.5 
below. 

14.4 When an existing or new pitch becomes available, the Council will publish a notice 
inviting applications for the said pitch on its website. 

14.5 Applications for an existing pitch will be determined by the Licensing Manager or other 
authority delegated by the Council. Each pitch will be offered to the applicant whose 
proposal is considered most suitable for the particular pitch. If no suitable application is 
received then the pitch will be re-advertised. 

14.6 Any application received by a person less than 17 years of age will be considered by 
taking into account the provisions contained in the Children and Young Persons Act 1933 
and the Children and Young Persons Protection at Work Regulations 1998.   

Page 93



 

6 
 

14.7 An application for an existing pitch may be refused or revoked if the applicant is found to 
be unsuitable to hold the consent by reason of having been convicted of a relevant 
offence, or for any other reason. 

14.8 The issue of a street trading consent will not normally be delayed where other approvals, 
permits, licences are required by other departments or statutes except in the case where 
advice is required from the Council’s Food Safety and Health and Safety teams. 

15 Fee Structure 

15.1 The Council may charge such fees as it considers reasonable having regard to pitch 
location, the size of the Pitch, trading days, hours and the description of goods offered for 
sale.   

15.2 The fees will be reviewed and set on an annual basis and any variation advertised by notice 

in a local newspaper.  

15.3 Fees for consents must be paid in full in advance: 
  

· in the case of Direct Debits, on a monthly basis 

· all other methods, three months in advance 

15.4 Failure to maintain payments as above may result in the consent not being renewed. 
Where a payment is not made by the due date the Council may charge an administration 
fee as determined by the Licensing Manager.  This will include cheques or Direct Debit 
requests that are not honoured.  

15.5 The Council cannot guarantee that pitches will be available every day and accepts no 
liability for the loss of earnings in relation to street trading consent holders or their 
employees. 

15.6 In the event of roadworks, utility or service repairs and other genuine circumstances that 
affect the use of any pitch, the Licensing Manager will consider appropriate refunds on a 
case by case basis, provided a written request has been made by the consent holder.  

16 Street Trading Consents for which fees are not payable 

16.1 The Council will not require the payment of fees for the following street trading activities:  

· fetes, carnivals or similar community based and run events 
· non-commercial or charitable events 
· farmers markets (producer-managed marketplace for local producers to sell their own 

produce direct to local people); and 
· sale of articles by householders on land contiguous with their homes 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 94



 

7 
 

17 Conditions and Enforcement 

17.1 Standard conditions will be attached to every street trading consent detailing the holder's 
responsibilities to maintain public safety, avoid nuisance and generally preserve the 
amenity of the locality. 

17.2 Specific conditions will also be attached such as the days and hours when street trading 
is permitted, the goods which may be sold and the size of the pitch. 

17.3 Failure to comply with conditions may lead to revocation or non-renewal of a consent. 

17.4 Persons trading without a consent and who are not exempt (see 3 above for examples) 
will be the subject of enforcement action in accordance with the Council’s Enforcement 
Policy.  Copies of the Enforcement Policy can be obtained from the Council’s Licensing 
team or website. 

17.5 The consent Holder is required to obtain and maintain their own Public Liability Insurance 
to a minimum of £5m.  This will be required to be produced for inspection before any 
consent is issued and on demand when requested by an officer of the Council. 

18 Equality  

18.1 The Council is committed to equality of opportunity and believes that the diversity of the 
community is a major strength which contributes to the social and economic prosperity of the 
area.   

18.2 The Council commits to ensure that no resident of, or visitor to, the area or other person 
associated with the Council is treated inequitably or in an unlawful or unjustifiably 
discriminatory manner.  

18.3 The Council will take positive steps to stop any unfair/unlawful discrimination, and will carry 
out positive action where discrimination is found. 

 

19 General 

19.1 Through its tourism service and by other means, the Council will seek opportunities to 
promote street trading activities. 

19.2 This policy will complement and inform other Council initiatives including those on street 
markets and the public realm. 

19.3 This policy will be the subject of periodic monitoring and review. 

19.4 This policy will inform the detailed conditions attached to every street trading consent. 

19.5 This policy will be applied in a manner which is consistent with the Council's equalities 
policies. 

Page 95



Page 96

This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

Annex B-Street Trading Standard Conditions  

Standard Conditions (attached to each Street Trading Consent) 

1. The holder of this Consent (which expression where appropriate includes joint holders of 

this Consent) and any person employed to assist on the Pitch shall produce the Consent 
on demand when so required by a Police Officer or a duly authorised officer of Bath & 
North East Somerset Council (the Council). 

2. The holder shall return this Consent to the Council immediately on revocation or surrender 
of the Consent. 

3. The holder shall not trade otherwise than strictly in accordance with this Consent. 

4. The holder shall notify the Council’s Licensing Team at Bath & North East Somerset 
Council, Lewis House, Manvers Street, Bath BA1 1JG immediately of any convictions or 

cautions obtained by the holder of this Consent. 

5. The holder shall not cause any obstruction of the street or danger to persons using it and 

shall not permit persons to gather around him or any van, cart, barrow, other vehicle or 
stall included in this Consent so as to cause a nuisance or annoyance or danger to any 
persons lawfully using the street and shall not park any such van etc. on the footway or 

verge of the street. 

6. The holder shall not use or suffer or permit any music playing, music re-producing or 

sound amplification apparatus or any musical instruments radio or television receiving sets 
whilst trading under this Consent, save as varied by a special condition of this Consent or 
in relation to Consents relating to buskers. 

7. The holder shall not place on the street or affix to any equipment placed on the street any 
advertising material of any description whatsoever except with the consent, in writing, of 

the Council’s Licensing Manager. 

8. The holder shall not make any excavations or indentations of any description whatsoever 
in the surface of the street or place or fix any equipment of any description in the said 

surface. 

9. The holder shall not use the street for any trading purpose other than the purpose as 

permitted by the Consent and then only during the permitted hours. 

10. The holder shall not place on the street any furniture or equipment other than as permitted 
by the Consent and they must maintain the same in a clean and tidy condition and not 

place them so as to cause any obstruction. 

11. The holder shall not do or suffer anything to be done in or on the street which in the 

opinion of the Council may be or become a danger, statutory or common-law nuisance or 
annoyance to or cause damage or inconvenience to the Council or to the owners or 
occupiers of any adjacent or neighbouring premises or to members of the public. 

12. The holder shall not assign underlet or part with his interest or possession under this 
Consent or any part thereof but they may surrender it at any time. 

Page 97



 

2 
 

13. The holder shall observe and comply with any directions in relation to the use of the street 

given by any duly authorised officer of the Council. 

14. The holder shall keep the trading position and the immediately adjacent area in a clean 
and tidy condition during the permitted hours and also leave the same in a clean and tidy 

condition and unobstructed at the end of each daily period of use under the terms of this 
Consent. 

15. The holder shall provide at their own cost and expense litter bins or similar receptacles for 

the deposit of cartons, wrappings, containers and similar discarded items and remove 
them and their contents at the end of each daily period of use under this Consent. 

16. The holder shall retain with any van, cart, barrow, other vehicle or stall included within this 
Consent any water used or waste produced until the end of each daily period of use under 
this Consent and then remove it and dispose of it elsewhere, and in particular shall not 

deposit any such waste near or into any street drain or channel. 

17. The holder shall indemnify and save harmless the Council and their agents, servants and 

workmen from and against all proceedings damages claims or expenses in respect of an 
injury (including personal injury) which may be sustained by the Council or any person or 
persons body or company whatever arising out of or in any way connected with his trading 

and the provision of facilities under this Consent. 

18. The Consent Holder shall arrange their own Public Liability Insurance for a minimum value 

of £5M. 

19. This Consent may be revoked by the Council at any time and the Council shall not in any 
circumstances whatsoever be liable to pay any compensation to the holder in respect of 

such revocation. 

20. The Consent holder or any person employed by them to assist them on the Pitch shall at 

all times wear the identification badge issued by the Council whilst trading from the pitch.  
The badge shall be worn in a conspicuous position on the upper body. 

21. The holder shall return the identification badge(s) to the Council immediately on revocation 

or surrender of the Consent. 

22. Street Trading Fees 

All street trading fees are due in advance: 

i. Where fees are paid by cash or cheque then they need to be paid before the 

      1 January, 1 April, 1 July and 1 October each year unless; 

ii. The Consent Holder has in place arrangements to pay the street trading fee by 
monthly Direct Debit installment whereas the Consent will be renewed on an 

annual basis commencing on 1 April. 

iii. Failure to maintain Direct Debit payment as above may result in the consent 
being revoked or not renewed. 

iv. Where the payment fails to be made by the due date the Council may charge an 
administration fee as determined by the Licensing Manager. 

  

Page 98



 

3 
 

Notes: 

1. Street trading in a consent street without a Street Trading Consent, or from a van, cart 
etc., not specifically permitted by Consent, or contravening certain conditions attached to a 
Consent, amounts to an offence for which proceedings may be instituted. 

2. A Street Trading Consent does not confer immunity from the provisions of any Street 
Parking Places Order or General Traffic Restriction Order unless an exemption has been 

specifically approved. In case of doubt about the effect of any such Order, enquire at 
Licensing Services, Bath & North East Somerset Council, Lewis House, Manvers Street, 
Bath BA1 1JG.  Any abuse of a specifically approved exemption may lead to the privilege 

being withdrawn for all traders. 

3. The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 provides as follows: 

Schedule 4, paragraph 10 

1. A person who: 
  

b)  engages in street trading in a consent street without being authorised to do so under 
this Schedule: or 

 
d) being authorised by a street trading consent to trade in a consent street, trades in that 

street: 

 
i) from a stationary van, cart, barrow or other vehicle; or 

ii) from a portable stall, 
 

without first having been granted permission to do so under paragraph 7 (8) (of this 

Schedule); or 
 

e) contravenes a condition imposed under paragraph 7 (9) (of this Schedule), shall be 
guilty of an offence. 

 

2. It shall be a defence for a person charged with an offence under sub-paragraph (1) above 
to prove that they took all reasonable precautions and exercised all due diligence to avoid 

commission of the offence. 

3. Any person who, in connection with an application for a street trading consent, makes a 
false statement which  they know to be false in any material respect, or which  they do not 

believe to be true, shall be guilty of an offence. 

4. A person guilty of an offence under this paragraph shall be liable on summary conviction 

to a fine. 

 

Page 99



Page 100

This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 

 

Annex B-Guidance Notes for Street Trading Stalls in Bath and North East 

Somerset 

These guidance notes should be read in conjunctions with the Council’s Street Trading Policy and 

Standard Conditions. 

The aim of these guidance notes is to provide help to stall holders on what type of stall they should 

provide and the quality and design of the stall that the Council expects. 

Primarily any stall should be visually appealing, be so constructed that it does not present a 

danger to the public or people working on the stall, it should not create an obstruction of the 

highway allowing the free flow of pedestrian traffic and it should not cause a nuisance or 

annoyance to the public or to local residents and businesses. 

The Council accept that there is no one design which will be suitable for all locations or for all 

uses, so these notes are a general guidance and for further detail any stall holder, or potential stall 

holder, should contact the Council’s Licensing Team first of all. 

General Stall Design 

In general stalls should be of a portable ridged frame market umbrella system, they should be of 

robust construction, should be able to withstand all weathers, should not present any health and 

safety risk to the public or people working on the stall and should be suitable for the purpose that it 

is intended for whether it is a stall selling craft goods or a stall selling hot food. 

Ø Stalls should be appropriate for the area that they are situated and should allow a 

thoroughfare of at least 2 metres for the free movement of the public.    The 2 metre rule 

may be increased where there is particular heavy footfall or there are obstructions such as 

bus stops, bicycle stands, or benches. 

Ø As a general rule no stall should cover an area larger than 9.0 square metres e.g. 3.0m x 

3.0m.   Stalls can only be larger than this if agreed by the Council and in some 

circumstances additional fees may be required for stalls which are larger than the 9.0 

square metres. 

Ø Stalls should have a suitable canopy which is designed for everyday use, is robust, 

adequately covers the stall and provides some protection to the customer. 

Ø Ancillary equipment and stock must be kept within the footprint of the pitch. 

Ø Trading from vehicles or caravans on paved areas will not normally be permitted due to the 

damage that may be caused to the paving. 

Ø The use of loudspeakers will not normally be allowed due to potential noise nuisance to 

local residents and businesses. 

Ø The stall holder will be required to provide their own power supply.    Where a generator is 

used then sufficient precautions should be taken to prevent any possible nuisance from 

noise or spillage of fuel. 

Ø Canopies and awnings must be secured to the support structures neatly and securely, with 

adequate tension and no sharp projections.   

Ø Street trading consent holders wishing to advertise on or from their stall must, prior to any 

advertisements being displayed, seek written permission from the Council’s Licensing team. 

Ø The use of advertising A-boards will not be allowed. 

Page 101



 

2 

 

Stalls in the Central shopping area of Bath 

The Council have carried out a trial of what it considers to be suitable stalls for the central 

shopping area of Bath.   The trial consisted of three stalls at the top of Southgate Street and 

considered visual amenity and practicality of the stalls.   The design of the stalls also took into 

account the importance of the central shopping area and the world heritage status of the city.  

Following the success of the trial it has now been decided to expand this design to the rest of the 

central shopping area of Bath.    

Canopies and awnings which are a pastel coloured are preferred.   Examples of the preferred style 

are given below. 

 

The main central shopping area consists of the central spine of Milsom Street down through Union 

Street, Stall Street and Southgate Street.    It will also include other popular areas in the centre 

such as Kingsmead Square, Sawclose and Terrace Walk. 

 

 

Stalls outside the central shopping area of Bath 

Stalls should comply with the general stall design principles however, although the Council will not 

require the same standards as for the centre of Bath, the stall will still need to be in keeping with 

its immediate surroundings. 

Street Markets 

Applications for temporary street markets will be taken on a case by case basis and the general 

stall design principles will still apply.   Details of the number of stalls, the area to be used, the 

design of each type of stall, what each stall will be selling and the number of trading days and 

days taken to erect and dismantle the stalls will be required. 

Page 102



 

3 

 

In certain circumstances planning consent may be required for street markets, for further 

information on whether or not this applies then the Council’s Development Control team should be 

contacted. 

Buskers Pitches 

The Council have set up specific pitches for people who busk to sell items associated with their 

performance.   These pitches will be in predetermined locations in the city centre.    Items to be 

sold from the pitch must be relevant to the performance. 

Mobile Stalls 

These are the stalls such as ice cream vendors but do not include rounds men, which are exempt 

from the street trading legislation. 

People intending to use a mobile stall should submit details of the vehicle or stall they intend to 

use, the items they intend to sell and details of the daily routes they intend to use. 

Healthy eating 

The Council is keen to promote healthy eating (where possible) through the provision of street 

trading consents.  The following website provides information on healthy options for street food 

vending. 

http://www.healthyplaces.org.uk/case-studies/ 

 

 

Page 103



Page 104

This page is intentionally left blank



Annex C- Existing Street Trading Policy 
 

1 Purpose 

 
1.1 Bath & North East Somerset Council’s (the Council) street trading 

policy is to create a street trading environment which complements 
premises based trading, is sensitive to the needs of residents, 

provides diversity and consumer choice, and seeks to enhance the 
character, ambience and safety of local environments. 

 

2 What is Street Trading? 

 

2.1 Street trading means selling, exposing or offering for sale any article in 
a street. The term ‘street’ includes any road, footway or other area to 
which the public have access without payment. 

 
2.2  The Council has adopted Schedule 4 of the Local Government 

(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 for the whole of its area and has 
designated all streets in the area as ‘consent streets’ for street trading 
purposes. 

 
2.3 The effect of this designation is that street trading in any street is 

prohibited, subject to legal exemptions, without first obtaining a Street 
Trading Consent from the Council. 

 

2.4 The Council may also require Street Trading Consents for traders who 
operate in Council car parks, riverside walks and other similar areas 
where the public have access without payment. 

 
2.5   The Council requires the organiser of any car boot sale or similar 

event on private land where the public have access without payment, 
to obtain a Street Trading Consent.  The Council must be satisfied that 
the approval of the land owner has been obtained, and that the local 

police have no objections. 
 

2.6 The Environmental Monitoring and Licensing Manager may consider 
issuing Street Trading Consents to organisers of events such as the 
Christmas Market, Farmers Markets, Street Markets, car boot sales 

etc.  The organiser will thereby become a Principal Consent Holder 
which will allow them to be responsible for numerous traders operating 

in certain areas and/or for a limited time. However, both the Principal 
Consent Holder and individual traders will still be subject to the 
Council’s Street Trading Policy and Standard Conditions in relation to 

street trading. 
 
3 Exemptions from the need to obtain a Street Trading Consent 

 
3.1 Some types of trade are legally exempt from the need to obtain a 

Street Trading Consent. These include: 
 

§ a person trading under the authority of a Pedlars Certificate granted 
under the Pedlars Act 1871; 

Page 105



 2 

§ trading as a news vendor within a maximum area of 0.25 square 
metres; 

§ trade carried on at a petrol filling station or at premises used as a 

shop or in a street adjoining premises and used as part of the 
business of the shop; 

§ trade carried out by roundsmen e.g. milkmen. 
 
4   Pitches 

 

4.1   The Council has identified suitable pitches for street trading.  Details of 

these pitches can be obtained via the Council’s website or by 
contacting the Council’s Licensing team. 

 

4.2 From time to time the Council may establish new pitches based on the 
criteria in paragraph 4.3 below. 

 
4.3   In determining whether to create a street trading pitch the Council will 

have regard to: 

 
§ any effect on road safety, either arising from the siting of the pitch or 

from customers visiting or leaving;  
§ any loss of amenity caused by noise, traffic or smell; 
§ existing Traffic Orders e.g. waiting restrictions; 

§ any potential obstruction of pedestrian or vehicular access; 
§ any obstruction to the safe passage of pedestrians; 
§ the safe access and egress of customers and staff from the pitch and 

immediate vicinity; 
§ any land owners permission. This may be required from a private 

land owner or the relevant Council Service e.g. Environmental 
Services (Open Spaces), Commercial Estates, or Tourism Leisure 
& Culture. 

§ the sale of goods or services which conflict with those provided by 
nearby shops or existing trading pitches.  

 
5 Applications 

 

5.1 When an existing or new pitch becomes available, the Council may 
publish details inviting applications for the said pitch. The details will 

be published on the Council’s website. 
 
5.2 Applications will be determined by the Environmental Monitoring and 

Licensing Manager.    If no suitable application is received the pitch 
will be re-advertised.  

 
5.3 In situations where there are competing applications then the 

Environmental Monitoring and Licensing Manager will decide the most 

appropriate applicant in consultation with the Divisional Director 
Environmental Services and/or the Cabinet Member for Customer 

Services. The pitch will be offered to the applicant whose proposal is 
considered most suitable for the particular location.    

 

Page 106



 3 

5.4 A Street Trading Consent cannot be issued to a person under the age 
of 17 years.   

 

5.5 Before a new pitch is created the Council will consult with and seek 
written observations from: 

 
§ occupiers of premises immediately adjacent and opposite where 

appropriate; 

§ existing holders of Street Trading Consents in the immediate area; 
§ relevant ward councillors;  

§ relevant parish and/or town councils; 
§ Avon & Somerset Constabulary;  
§ relevant Council Services including Development Control; Highways;   

Property Services; Environmental Services (Open Spaces);    
Commercial Estates; Trading Standards; Tourism, Leisure & Culture; 

Asset Review Group; Parks and Open Spaces; 
§ relevant land owner; 
§ others as the Council’s Licensing team considers relevant to the 

application (e.g. food safety team for food related pitches). 
  

 The Council may also consider any responses received in relation to 
public notices on the highway. 

 

5.6 Current Street Trading Consent holders seeking to change the nature 
of their existing pitch may be subject to the same consultation as in 5.5 
above. 

 
5.7   Any objection from consultees will be assessed against the criteria in 

4.3 above and may be referred to the appropriate Licensing 
Sub Committee for determination. 

 

5.8 The complete application process may take up to three months, to 
take into account the consultation period, and in the case of 

contentious applications, a hearing before the relevant Licensing Sub 
Committee. 

 
6 Nature of Goods and Trading Hours 
 

6.1 The nature of goods which may be sold from any pitch and trading 
hours will be specified in the consultation process.  

 

6.2 The Council would not normally grant a Street Trading Consent for the 
sale of goods or services which conflict with those provided by nearby 

shops or existing trading pitches. 
 
6.3 Goods will normally consist of craftwork, fresh flowers, ice cream or 

soft drinks. Other types will be considered on a pitch by pitch basis 
and have particular regard to local needs shopping. 

 
 

Page 107



 4 

6.4 Street trading hours will normally mirror those of shops in the 
immediate vicinity. Extended trading hours will be determined on a 
pitch by pitch basis and may be allowed for special events such as the 

Christmas Market. 
 

6.5 Late night food traders operating after 11 pm will be subject to the 
Licensing Act 2003 requirements regarding Premises Licences. 
Greater consideration will be given to the impact on the night time 

economy and possibility of crime and disorder on the streets as a 
result of the possible grant of a Street Trading Consent. 

 
6.6 The design and appearance of the stall, barrow, van or cart etc. used 

must be agreed by the Environmental Monitoring and Licensing 

Manager. 
 

6.7 Any subsequent substantial change to the Consent may be subject to 
the level of consultation in 5.5 above. 

 

7 Issue of Street Trading Consents 

 

7.1 Street Trading Consents will normally be issued for a period of three 
months. At the discretion of the Environmental Monitoring and 
Licensing Manager, consents for shorter periods may be issued for 

block bookings e.g. organised street markets, mobile street artists etc.  
Consents may also be issued annually for regular pitch holders. 

 

7.2 Street Trading Consents will normally be issued for a minimum of six 
days per week, unless the applicant can provide an alternative 

scheme acceptable to the Environmental Monitoring and Licensing 
Manager.     

 

7.3 Where a trader has been granted a Consent for six days a week then, 
at the discretion of the Environmental Monitoring and Licensing 

Manager, the Consent may be extended to seven days a week at no 
extra cost. 

 

7.4 No refunds will be given if traders are unable to trade (subject to 
paragraph 8.7). 

 
7.5 The transfer of Street Trading Consents is not permitted.  If a consent 

holder no longer wishes to trade that persons consent will be 

terminated and the pitch will be advertised and a new consent issued. 
 
8 Fees 

 
8.1 Fees for Street Trading Consents must be paid in full in advance. In 

the case of quarterly re-issues, payments must be made on a quarterly 
basis and are due before the following dates: 

 
§ 1 January  
§ 1 April  

Page 108



 5 

§ 1 July  
§ 1 October 

 

At the discretion of the Environmental Monitoring and Licensing 
Manager, consideration will be given to allowing alternative 

arrangements, on a case by case basis, to making payments. 
 
8.2 Failure to maintain payments as above may result in the Street 

Trading Consent not being re-issued. If a cheque is dishonoured by a 
bank this will result in the revocation of the consent unless payment is 

made in cash within 5 working days. In such cases an administration 
charge will also be imposed, and any early payment discount 
previously allowed will be withdrawn, leaving the full fee to be paid. 

 
8.3 The Environmental Monitoring and Licensing Manager will determine 

any written request to increase the authorised pitch size, which may 
be subject to the level of consultation in 5.5 above and may incur an 
increased daily fee. 

 
8.4 If a Street Trading Consent holder exceeds the authorised pitch size 

without permission from the Environmental Monitoring and Licensing 
Manager, an additional fee will be charged at a daily rate per extra 
square foot above the allowed area.  

 
8.5 The fee structure will primarily reflect pitch location, trading days and 

hours. 

 
8.6 The Divisional Director Environmental Services in consultation with the 

Cabinet Member for Customer Services has delegated authority to set 
fees and to annually review the fee structure. 

 

8.7 The Council cannot guarantee that pitches will be available every day, 
and accepts no liability for loss of earnings in relation to Street Trading 

Consent holders or their employees. In the event of roadworks, utility 
or service repairs and other genuine circumstances that affect the use 
of any pitch, the Environmental Monitoring and Licensing Manager will 

consider appropriate refunds on a case by case basis, provided a 
request has been made in writing from the consent holder. 

 
8.8 When a Street Trading Consent is surrendered or revoked the Council 

may refund the whole or part of any fee paid as they consider 

appropriate. 
 
9 Street Trading Consents for which fees are not payable 

 
9.1 The Environmental Monitoring and Licensing Manager may consider 

reducing or exempting fees for the following street trading activities: 
 

§ fetes, carnivals or similar community based and run events e.g. 
Keynsham Victorian Evening, Mardis Gras, Christmas Lights Switch 
on events etc.;  

Page 109



 6 

§ non-commercial or charitable events; 
§ farmers markets (producer-managed market place for local producers 

to sell their own produce direct to local people); 

§ sales of articles by householders on land contiguous with their 
homes. 

 
 
9.2 Charitable Street Trading 

 

 Persons may be permitted in any street or public place to collect money 

or sell articles for the benefit of charitable or other purposes. The Council 
issues permits for charitable street collections. Collections cannot be 
held in any street or public place unless the Promoter has obtained a 

permit.  
 

 In relation to charitable street trading, the Council have named a pitch at 
Kingston Parade, Bath as its official street trading charity pitch. This pitch 
will be available to any organisation that is a registered charity, or any 

organisation that can prove it is a ‘not-for-profit’ organisation. It will be 
subject to the Council’s standard street trading conditions. 

 
 The charity using the pitch must be able to prove its non-profit status by 

providing any of the following proofs: 

 
§ A copy of their charity registration document; 
§ An official letter confirming the organisation is exempt from charity 

registration; 
§ A letter from the Inland Revenue if the organisation is recognised as 

a charity for income tax purposes; 
§ An official letter confirming that the organisation is a ‘not-for-profit’ 

organisation. 

 
 The charity must obtain permission from the Principal Consent Holder 

responsible for the pitch at Kingston Parade. 
 
10 Mobile Street Artists  

 
10.1 Mobile Street Artist Consents may be issued to persons who sketch or 

paint, and sell their own work and move from location to location. 
 
10.2 Applicants for Mobile Street Artist Consents must give a minimum 

notice period of 48 hours to the Licensing Team in relation to their 
applications. 

 
11 Mobile Traders 

 

11.1 The Council may consider issuing Mobile Street Trading Consents to 
traders such as ice cream vans who operate within a specified area 

e.g. Radstock/Midsomer Norton, Keynsham or Twerton/Whiteway. 
 
12 Conditions and Enforcement 

Page 110



 7 

 
12.1 Standard conditions will be attached to every Street Trading Consent 

and Mobile Street Artist Consent detailing the holder's responsibilities 

to maintain public safety, avoid nuisance and generally preserve the 
amenity of the locality. 

 
12.2 Specific conditions will also be attached such as the days and hours 

when street trading is permitted, the goods which may be sold and the 

size of the pitch. 
 

12.3 Failure to comply with conditions may lead to revocation or the Street 
Trading Consent not being re-issued. 

 

12.4 Persons trading without a Street Trading Consent and who are not 
exempt (see 3.1 above for examples) will be the subject of 

enforcement action in accordance with the Environmental and 
Consumer Services Enforcement Policy.  This will include any person 
who holds a certificate granted under the Pedlars Act 1871, but who 

fails to operate in accordance with the Act. 
 

12.5 The Council will follow the principles set out in its Public Protection 
Enforcement Policy, which proposes that a graduated response is 
taken where offences against legislation are found or where licence 

conditions have been contravened.    More serious offences may 
result in a referal to the Licensing Sub-Committee, the issue of a 
formal caution or a referal for prosecution. 

 
13 General 

 
13.1 Through its tourism service and by other means, the Council will seek 

opportunities to promote street trading activities. 

 
13.2 This policy will complement and inform other Council initiatives, 

policies and visions including those on street markets 
 
13.3 This policy will be the subject of periodic monitoring and review. 

 
13.4 This policy will inform the detailed conditions attached to every Street 

Trading and Mobile Artist Consent. 
 
13.5 This policy will be applied in a manner which is consistent with the 

Council's equalities and enforcement policies. 
 

 

Page 111



 8 

The conditions below have been reworded and reproduced in red. 
 
Standard Street Trading Conditions 

 
 

1 The holder(s) of this Consent (the holder), or any person employed to 
work on the stall, must produce the Consent when required to do so by 
a Police Officer or a duly authorised officer of Bath & North East 

Somerset Council (the Council). 
 

2 The holder shall return this Consent to the Council’s Licensing 
Services immediately on revocation or surrender. 

 

3 The holder shall trade strictly in accordance with this Consent. 
 

4 The holder shall notify Licensing Services immediately of any convictions 
or proceedings arising out of the use of this Consent. 

 

5 The holder shall not cause any obstruction of the street or danger to 
persons using it.   The holder shall not permit persons to gather 

around him or any van, cart, barrow, other vehicle or stall included in 
this Consent so as to cause a nuisance, annoyance or danger to any 
persons lawfully using the street. 

 
6 The holder shall not use or permit any music playing, music re-

producing or sound amplification apparatus or any musical 

instruments, radio or television receiving sets whilst trading under this 
Consent, unless varied by a special condition of this Consent. 

 
7 The holder shall not place on the street, or affix to any equipment 

placed on the street, any advertising material, unless varied by a 

special condition of this Consent. 
 

8 The holder shall not fix any equipment, nor make any excavations or 
indentations in the surface of the street. 

 

9 The holder shall not use the street for any trading purpose other than  
as permitted by this Consent. 

 
10 The holder shall not place on the street any furniture or equipment 

other than that permitted by this Consent.  All such furniture or 

equipment must be maintained in a clean and tidy condition, and must 
not obstruct the entrance to, or exit from, any premises. 

 
11 The holder shall not do anything in the street which may cause danger, 

nuisance or annoyance, damage or inconvenience to the Council, any 

adjacent/neighbouring premises, or to members of the public. 
  

12 Unless acting as a Principal Consent Holder, the holder shall not 
transfer, assign or sublet this Consent, but he may surrender it at any 
time. 

Page 112



 9 

13 The holder shall observe and comply with any directions in relation to 
the use of the street given by the Council’s Environmental Monitoring 
and Licensing Manager, or Directors of the Council’s Property 

Services or Planning and Transport Development Services. 
 

14 The holder shall keep his trading location and the immediate area in a 
clean and tidy condition during the permitted hours and at the end of 
each daily period of use, and shall provide a litter bin for their 

customers where necessary. 
 

15 The holder shall not deposit any water or waste product into any street 
drain or channel, but shall dispose of it in an appropriate place. 

 

16 The holder shall indemnify the Council and their agents, servants, 
workmen etc. from and against all proceedings, damages, claims or 

expenses in respect of an injury (including personal injury) which may 
be sustained in connection with the trading pitch and the provision of 
facilities under this Consent. 

 
17 This Consent is issued on the understanding that the relevant and 

appropriate Public Liability Insurance is in place with a minimum cover 
of £5,000,000. 

 

18 The holder must obtain permission from the Environmental Monitoring 
and Licensing Manager and the Council’s Highways Department if 
they wish to utilise electrical power taken from the mains or a 

generator. 
 

19 The Council may revoke this Consent at any time and shall not be 
liable to pay any compensation to the holder in respect of such 
revocation. 

 
20 The holder, or any person employed to work on the stall, shall at all 

times wear the identification badge issued by Bath & North East 

Somerset Council whilst trading from the pitch.  The badge shall be worn 
in a clearly visible position on the upper body. 

 
21 Where a Street Trading Plate is issued it must be displayed in a clearly 

visible position where it can be read by prospective customers. 
 
22 The holder shall return any Council issued identification badges and 

plates to Licensing Services immediately on revocation or surrender of 
this Consent. 

 
23 The holder shall pay the street trading fees in advance.  Quarterly fees 

shall be paid by 1 January, 1 April, 1 July and 1 October each year. 

 
24 This Consent does not relieve the holder, or any person employed to 

work on the stall, of any obligation to comply with all other general and 
local legislation, and in particular the Road Traffic Acts; the Food 
Safety Act 1990; the Town and Country Planning Acts; the Control of 

Page 113



 10 

Pollution Act 1974; the Environmental Protection Act 1990; the 
Licensing Act 2003; any Orders or Regulations made thereunder; and 
local Byelaws.  It shall be the obligation of the holder to famili larise 

themselves and their employees with any such legislation. The Council 
may revoke this Consent upon any breach. 

 
 
Additional Notes: 

 

1 Street trading in a consent street on foot or from a van, cart, etc.: 

 
a) without a Street Trading Consent; or 
b) not specifically permitted by a Consent; or 

c) contravening certain conditions attached to a Consent; 
 

is an offence for which proceedings may be instituted. 
 
2 A Street Trading Consent does not confer immunity from the 

provisions of any Street Parking Places Order or General Traffic 
Restriction Order. In case of doubt about the effect of any such Order, 

enquire at Licensing Services. 
 
3   Schedule 4, paragraph 10 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 

Provisions) Act 1982 provides as follows: 
 

1 A person who: 

 
 b) engages in street trading in a consent street without   

 being  authorised to do so under this Schedule: or 
 
 d) being authorised by a street trading consent to trade in  

 a consent street, trades in that street: 
 

    i) from a stationary van, cart, barrow or other vehicle; or 
ii) from a portable stall, 

   

  without first having been granted permission to do so   
 under  paragraph 7 (8) (of this Schedule); or 

 
 e) contravenes a condition imposed under paragraph 7 (9)  

 (of this Schedule), 

  shall be guilty of an offence. 
 

 2 It shall be a defence for a person charged with an offence 
 under sub-paragraph (1) above to prove that he took all 
 reasonable precautions and exercised all due diligence to 

 avoid commission of the offence. 
 

 3 Any person who, in connection with an application for a street 
 trading consent, makes a false statement which he knows to 

Page 114



 11 

 be false in any material respect, or which he does not believe 
 to be true, shall be guilty of an offence. 

 

4 A person guilty of an offence under this paragraph shall be 
liable on summary conviction to a fine to level 3 on the 

standard scale of fines (£1,000). 
 
 

 
 

 
[Last updated 30.09.2010] 
 

Page 115



Page 116

This page is intentionally left blank



Printed on recycled paper 

 

Bath & North East Somerset Council 
 

MEETING/
DECISION 
MAKER:  

Cabinet 

MEETING/
DECISION 
DATE:  

03 December 2014 

EXECUTIVE FORWARD 

PLAN REFERENCE: 

E 2678 

TITLE: Procurement of Leisure Contract 

WARD: All  

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

List of attachments to this report: 

 

 
 

1 THE ISSUE 

1.1 The award of long term contracts for the development, management and 
operation of the Council’s 1) Leisure Facilities and 2) Golf Courses.  

2 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 The Cabinet delegates authority to the Strategic Director for Place in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods, Cabinet Member for 
Resources and s151 officer to award the contract to the preferred bidder.  This 
authority extends to agreeing a lease, or other appropriate arrangements, with 
the Recreation Ground Trust and all other decisions that may be required to 
secure the contract. 

3 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCE, PROPERTY, PEOPLE) 

3.1 The procurement seeks significant investment into the Council’s leisure facilities.  
This is proposed to be funded as follows 

(1) Up to £12 million Corporately Supported Council Borrowing which is expected 
to be funded from increased income through the contract in the form of a 
payment back to the Council from the selected operator. This is being 
considered by Cabinet for inclusion in the February 2015 budget report to 
Council and will be formally approved through the Council’s capital approval 
processes. 

(2) A minimum of £3 million contractor capital finance 

Agenda Item 14

Page 117



Printed on recycled paper 

3.2 This is expected to deliver improvements to Bath Sports and Leisure Centre (c. 
£7.5 million) and a new Leisure facility in Keynsham (c. £7 million) to replace the 
current leisure centre with other small improvements made to the other sites. 

3.3 The details of the financial implications and contract length will be finalised 
through a dialogue process with bidders and final discussions with the preferred 
bidder once selected. 

4 STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS AND BASIS FOR PROPOSAL 

4.1 Children, public health & inequalities 

5 THE REPORT 

5.1 The procurement process to date has involved : 

• Successful evaluation of PQQ with responses from 10 bidders 

• Four leading industry contractors shortlisted for lot 1 (leisure facilities) and two 
for lot 2 (Golf Courses) 

• Contract specification and all associated documentation circulated to bidders on 
time 

• The Invitation to Submit Detailed Solutions was sent to shortlisted bidders on 
the 22nd August 2014 

• All 4 bidders submitted a bid by the deadline of 22nd October 2014 for lot 1 

• One bid was received for lot 2, with the remaining shortlisted contractor 
declining to bid 

• Bids received are currently being evaluated 

5.2 Following a shortlisting exercise, it is the intention of the Project Team to reduce 
the number of bidders to 2 and then to undertake a targeted dialogue process 
which will last approximately 3 weeks. This will be conducted in December 2014 
and early January 2015. 

5.3 The Project Team will then call for final tenders from the 2 remaining bidders. It 
is anticipated at this point that final bids will be returned in February 2015. The 
Project Team will evaluate the bids and a report to the Project Gateway Board is 
anticipated for end of February 2015 for the award of Preferred Bidder to be 
made. 

5.4 Award of contract is anticipated for the end of February 2015 and a contract 
commencement date of 1st July 2015. 

5.5 The evaluation process is based upon a quality/price/risk matrix that has been 
externally verified and sign off by the Leisure Procurement Project Team. 

6 RATIONALE 

6.1 A robust evaluation process, based on ensuring the delivery of Council priorities 
has been agreed to determine the preferred bidder ensuring a competitive 
process which will result in the best possible outcome for the Council. 

6.2 A delegated decision is requested as the timescale for awarding of preferred 
bidder and award of contract is required in January when there is no Cabinet 
Meeting scheduled. 

Page 118



Printed on recycled paper 

7 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

7.1 No other options have been considered due to the timescales involved 

8 CONSULTATION 

8.1 Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods, Strategic Director of Place, Divisional 
Director Environmental Services, Section 151 Officer, Monitoring Officer, 
Procurement, Finance. 

9 RISK MANAGEMENT 

9.1 A risk assessment related to the issue and recommendations has been 
undertaken, in compliance with the Council's decision making risk management 
guidance. 

 

Contact person  Matthew Smith  01225 39 6888 

Background 
papers 

 

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an 
alternative format 

 

Page 119



Page 120

This page is intentionally left blank



Printed on recycled paper 

  

Bath & North East Somerset Council 
 

MEETING Cabinet 

MEETING 6th December 2014 

EXECUTIVE FORWARD 

PLAN REFERENCE: 

E 2719 

TITLE: Connecting Communities: Update 

WARD: 
All- but with recommendation 2.4 particular relating to Bathavon North, 
Bathavon South and Bathavon West wards 

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

List of attachments to this report: 

None 

 

 
1 THE ISSUE 

1.1 This report sets out progress so far on the Connecting Communities programme 
(including establishing Connecting Communities Forums), provides an update on 
Bath City governance, and recommends next steps. 

2 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 Note the progress made in implementing the Connecting Communities 
programme, particularly the establishment of the three Connecting Communities 
Forums in the Keynsham, Chew Valley and Somer Valley  areas 

2.2 Note the removal and reduction in duplication of meetings and therefore savings 
in staff time arising from this work, as set out in Paragraph 5.3 

2.3 Continue to develop the work of the Forums in order to: 

a) Better understand local needs and priorities  

b) Engage effectively with parishes, partners and local people 

c) Continue to streamline local partnership arrangements and remove duplication 

2.4 Extend the Connecting Communities Forum approach to Parish Cluster Groups 
2 and 3 (encompassing Bathavon North, Bathavon South and Bathavon West 
wards).  

2.5 Note that the fourth Bath City Conference is currently proposed to take place in 
June 2015 

Agenda Item 15

Page 121



Printed on recycled paper 

2.6 Request officers to begin planning for a “conference”- style event for the 
parished area, comparable to the Bath City Conference. 

 

3 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCE, PROPERTY, PEOPLE) 

3.1 The delivery of the programme is primarily through existing staffing resources. 
Support for the Bath City Conference (and any conference for the parished area) 
and for the Connecting Communities Forums comes primarily from existing 
Strategy and Performance staff. In addition, officers from Council and partner 
services contribute to Forum agenda items as appropriate. It should be 
emphasised that the Connecting Communities Forums have replaced and 
simplified a number of existing bodies which were absorbing a substantial 
amount of officer time and which often duplicated discussions. More information 
on how Connecting Communities has reduced and rationalised staff time spent 
in community engagement, and the potential to remove duplication still further, is 
set out in paragraph 5.3. 

 

4 STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS AND BASIS FOR PROPOSAL 

4.1 Relevant considerations include the impact of Connecting Communities on the 
wellbeing of local communities including crime & disorder, sustainability, natural 
environment, planning, human rights, children, public health & inequalities.  
Connecting Communities Forums do not have decision-making powers or 
budgetary resources and therefore do not require any delegations from Council. 

 

5 THE REPORT 

5.1 Connecting Communities was agreed by Cabinet in May 2013 as the Council’s 
Local Engagement Framework. It aims to achieve better, more consistent 
engagement between public services and local communities in Bath and North 
East Somerset. It does this through:  

• Establishing local “Connecting Communities Forums” which involve parishes 
and elected members and which replace a range of existing locally-based 
groups, removing duplication and providing a single basis for engagement 

• Wider “Conference”- style events, such as the Bath City Conference to 
encourage broad participation and to celebrate local achievements 

5.2 Three Connecting Communities Forums have now been established covering 
the Somer Valley, Chew Valley and Keynsham areas. These Forums each 
comprise parish councils, local elected members and community groups and 
have Director-level sponsors to highlight and champion their work in the Council 
and with other agencies. Each Forum is drawing on local Area Profiles to assess 
local need and to identify priorities. The launch event for the Keynsham and 
Chew Valley Forums was accompanied by an “Ask the Leader” session 

5.3 Action Plans for each Forum will draw together partner activity as well as – 
crucially-  utilise the capacity and skills of local communities themselves to 

Page 122



Printed on recycled paper 

address key issues and improve the efficiency and effectiveness of local 
services.  The three Connecting Communities Forums so far have replaced the 
following previously-existing engagement processes in the areas concerned: 

• “Local Partnership” meetings covering these areas (Somer Valley Partnership 
and Chew Valley Area Partnership) 

•  “Parish Cluster Group” meetings covering these areas (Groups 1,4 and 5).  

•  “Partners and Communities Together” (PACT) meetings covering these areas. 
These meetings, held quarterly and organised on a ward basis, had previously 
required significant officer time to attend, with a dedicated Council 
Neighbourhood officer allocated to each PACT meeting, as well as Police 
attendance and other agency involvement as required. The Connecting 
Communities Forums mean that separate PACT meetings are no longer 
required, saving officer time as well as providing a more “joined up” approach to 
the public. 

5.4 In addition to rationalisation of meetings in this way, Council officers have also 
been able to use the Forums to co-ordinate consultations- eg on the 
Placemaking Plan.  In this way, as the Forums progress, it is envisaged that the 
Forums will be the “single point” of engagement for Council officers with local 
communities. There is also a significant opportunity to work with other partners 
both to rationalise engagement mechanisms and to create a more integrated 
local service offer.  

5.5 Connecting Communities also provides an important opportunity to join up local 
needs assessment, engagement and prioritisation by involving a range of 
partners and the local community.  Linking the Council’s research, needs 
assessment and corporate planning with those of Public Services Board partners 
will also help with better targeting of resources as well as reducing duplication.  

5.6 Within Bath, the Forums have not been progressed, following the Council’s 
decision to establish a cross-party working group to consider options to 
strengthen community representation and civic governance within the City. This 
working group reported to Council in September, where it was agreed that 
further work would take place on establishing the evidence base. Preparations 
will also be taking place, working with our steering group, for the fourth Bath City 
Conference, provisionally planned for June 2015. In addition, the successful 
Bath City Centre PACT meeting will be retained due to the specific nature of the 
issues and demands in this locality. 

5.7 Parish Cluster groups 2 and 3 (covering the Bathavon North, Bathavon South 
and Bathavon West wards) are not currently included in the Connecting 
Communities “Forum” approach. There is therefore an opportunity to extend the 
Connecting Communities to these areas, including establishing a Forum or Fora, 
drawing on experience so far and working closely with local parishes and elected 
members.   

6 RATIONALE 

6.1 The establishment of Connecting Communities Forums in Keynsham, Chew 
Valley and Somer Valley has delivered a significant rationalisation of local 
engagement and reduced duplication and deployment of officer time at 

Page 123



Printed on recycled paper 

meetings. It has also laid the basis for longer-term, constructive conversations 
between Bath & North East Somerset Council, parish councils, partners and 
local communities.  It is therefore considered appropriate to extend the approach 
to the remaining part of the parished area. In Bath, which is unparished, it is 
considered appropriate to await the outcomes of the review of community 
representation in the City before proceeding with the establishment of Forums. 
However, the Bath City Conference and other local engagement in the City will 
progress the overall approach to Connecting Communities, for example by 
“joining up” consultation events. 

7 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

7.1 The option of not proceeding with the Connecting Communities “Forum” 
approach in the remainder of the parished areas was considered but it was 
considered that this would lead to less effective engagement with parishes and 
elected members in these areas.  

8 CONSULTATION 

8.1 Parishes Liaison received an early in indication of the proposals contained in this 
report at its meeting of 22nd October. Other consultation was carried out directly 
with:  

Cabinet members 

Section 151 Officer 

Monitoring Officer 

Resources Director 

Director of Strategy and Performance  

 

9 RISK MANAGEMENT 

9.1 A risk assessment related to the issue and recommendations has been 
undertaken, in compliance with the Council's decision making risk management 
guidance. 

 

Contact person  Andy Thomas, 01225 394322  andy_thomas@bathnes.gov.uk  

Background 
papers 

Connecting Communities 

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an 
alternative format 

 

Page 124



Printed on recycled paper       e:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\9\7\0\ai00013079\$jgzrywgo.docx 

 
1

 

Bath & North East Somerset Council 
 

MEETING: Cabinet 

MEETING 
DATE: 

3rd December 2014 

EXECUTIVE FORWARD 

PLAN REFERENCE: 

E 2713 

TITLE: Saltford Station Business Case 

WARD: Saltford  

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

List of attachments to this report: Report by CHM2Hill 

 
1 THE ISSUE 

1.1 The Cabinet, at its meeting in June 2012, agreed that a High Level Option 
Assessment should be commissioned into the potential for reopening Saltford 
Station.  The initial conclusions of that report were shared at a public exhibition in 
May this year.  Cabinet now needs to decide if it wishes to take this project 
forward and, if so, in what timescale.  

2 RECOMMENDATION 

The Cabinet agrees that: 

2.1 Work should continue to develop the Business Case for a station at Saltford and 
that this should include the option of opening a station to the west of the village 
where future development may support the new facility.  

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 The Cabinet is considering inclusion of a capital budget of £250k in the February 
2015 budget report to Council for Saltford Station – reopening feasibility work. 
This will be formally approved through the Council’s capital approval processes. 
The budget is proposed to be funded by Corporately Supported borrowing. 

3.2 There is a risk that any expenditure will revert to revenue if the feasibility work 
does not lead to a capital project. 

3.3 Details of the potential financial liabilities arising from this project are detailed in 
paragraph 5.8 below 

4 CORPORATE OBJECTIVES 

• Promoting independence and positive lives for everyone 

• Creating neighbourhoods where people are proud to live 

Agenda Item 16

Page 125



Printed on recycled paper       e:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\9\7\0\ai00013079\$jgzrywgo.docx 

 
2

 
 
5 THE REPORT 

5.1 Introduction: Saltford Station was closed in 1970 at which time the platforms and 
station buildings were removed.  The site of the station has not been redeveloped 
since and has been used for a variety of building and storage purposes.  A 
campaign to reopen the station has been pressing for this project in the local 
media and with well supported petitions.   

5.2 The Metro West project Phase 1 will increase the frequency of local trains serving 
Keynsham and Oldfield Park providing a ½ hourly service, and it is these trains 
which could also stop at a new station at Saltford.  The Metro West project, which 
will re-open the railway line to Portishead, is not due to be completed until 2019 at 
the earliest.   

5.3 The site of the old station is located 8km west of Bath Spa Station on the line 
towards Bristol Temple Meads some 11km further.  Trains stopping at a new 
Saltford Station would have to fit into with those services which stop at Keynsham 
and/or Oldfield Park Station.  These two stations currently enjoy an hourly service.  
It is unlikely that the rail industry would wish to or could afford to stop other 
regional (as opposed to local) services at a Saltford Station.   

5.4 Following the Cabinet report in 2012, CH2MHill were commissioned to undertake 
an initial review of the demand for the station in Saltford and surrounding areas, 
the suitability of the existing station site to support a new facility and assess 
whether a site to the west of the village, nearer to Keynsham would provide a 
better location for the station.  Finally, the initial conclusions of the CH2MHill work 
were shared at a public exhibition in February 2014.   

5.5 CH2MHill’s report: The report by CH2MHill is summarised below. 

(1) The former station site is probably in the optimum location within the context 
of the current Core Strategy, having significant advantages over others to the 
west (e.g. at Chelwood Road).  Alternative sites would have the advantage of 
better access arrangements and parking.  These might need to be revisited in 
the light of any review of Core Strategy 

(2) Whilst modelling for the timetable for Metro West project has confirmed that a 
new station could be fitted into the service pattern, there are a number of 
risks:   

• The new station may need an additional unit of rolling stock which would 
add significant costs to the revenue support needed. 

• Network Rail will need to be confident that the new station does not 
increase the risk of any delays accrued spreading to the wider MetroWest 
route 

(3) Potential patronage is estimated to be some 200,000 users/annum (i.e. about 
370 persons per day) assuming there were 2 trains an hour.   

(4) This patronage could provide £770,000 p.a. in new fares to the Train 
Operating Company but would still require revenue support   

(5) The station would require a 200 space car park including a new car park near 
to the station 

Page 126



Printed on recycled paper       e:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\9\7\0\ai00013079\$jgzrywgo.docx 

 
3

(6) Parking fees would provide a significant revenue stream which would support 
the running of the station and any subsidies required for the services stopping 
there. 

(7) On-street parking control would be needed to reduce pressure in adjoining 
streets. 

(8) The station would cost between £4 - £6m to build (excluding land acquisition, 
Train Operating Companies (TOC) compensation and traffic management. 
These costs will be identified in due course).  .   It should be noted that in 
some scenarios, high costs lead to a low Benefit-Cost Ratio (BCR) which may 
be a risk to the Business Case. 

(9) The access to the station from the A4 would require improvement which might 
be controversial locally. Cost of this unknown at the moment and would 
depend on which option is taken forward. 
 

5.6 The public exhibition in February 2014 was a busy and well-attended event with 
over 300 people attending.  The results of their responses are summarised in the 
CH2MHill report and showed very strong support for the station.  The main 
reservations expressed during the discussion and in the response was the 
potential impact on parking in the vicinity of the station and concerns over any 
need to introduce on-street parking control. 

5.7 Salford Parish Council considered the initial findings of the CH2MHill report at 
their meeting on 7th October and passed the following resolution: 

“Following the results of the informal public consultation exercise launched at the 
public exhibition held in Saltford in February 2014 regarding the possible re-
opening of Saltford Railway Station, Saltford Parish Council asks B&NES 
Council Cabinet to consider the Higher Level Output Assessment (HLOA) report 
and to take the project to GRIP (Governance in Railway Projects) stage 3 of 
Network Rail's GRIP process for railway development.” 

5.8 Costs of a new Station:  There are a number of costs which the Council would 
have to cover in order to take this project forward these include developing further 
the business case and of designing the new station.  This would take a number of 
years and would require a budget of approximately £250,000.   

5.9 There are three areas of work which should now be progressed.  They are: 

(1) Rail Industry Engagement – Working with Network Rail on operational issues 
in particular confirmation of the timetable for trains stopping at the new station. 
Discussions with Train Operating Companies which would run the service and 
with DfT that would support the new station. 

(2) Project funding / governance – Confirmation of who will agree to the new 
station and what source of funding is available  

(3) GRIP 3 (Option development) / 4 (Single Option Design) – This can only be 
taken forward when the location of the station is agreed.  Once this is 
confirmed we would have to engage with Network Rail on the detailed design 
of platforms and signals etc.  There may be complications here given the 
electrification work; to date we have sought ‘passive provision’ for the station 
at its original site we would have to seek similar assurance for any new site.  
Finally, Network Rail may not have the capacity to fully engage with this 

Page 127



Printed on recycled paper       e:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\9\7\0\ai00013079\$jgzrywgo.docx 

 
4

project given their work on electrification and the leading role they will be 
taking on the Metro West Project and in particular the promotion of the 
Development Consent Order for the re-opening of the Portishead line. 

5.10 The capital cost of constructing the station, signals and car park would be up to 
£6m.  While we could seek Major Scheme funding (like for the Bath Transport 
Package) - these are now devolved to the WoE LEP and are fully committed to 
funding Metro West phases 1 and 2 until 2024.  Alternatively, the project could be 
funded by the Council using its own resources. 

5.11 Finally, once the station is open, the Council would have to provide revenue 
subsidy to the TOC for servicing the station. Currently this subsidy is required for 
at least 3 years.  The size of this subsidy is not known at present and would be a 
new pressure on budgets. 

5.12 Core Strategy review: Since the report was finalised the Council has agreed 
that it will need to review its Core Strategy with other WoE authorities, and in 
particular strategic housing needs. If this were to conclude that additional housing 
should be provided in the medium term in the vicinity of Keynsham and/or Saltford 
then a different location for a new station at Saltford could have several 
advantages, for example:  new housing could be integrated with the station, 
adequate parking could be provide and developer contributions could be sought to 
reduce the call on public funds for the new facility. 

5.13 Conclusion: The work to date has established that a station at Saltford has a 
positive business case.  However there are a number of significant constraints in 
re-opening the original station which could be avoided if an alternative site were 
found.  It is therefore recommended that the work streams identified in the 
paragraph 5.9 above (1) and (2) are progressed and that a further review of 
opportunities to relocated the station to the west of Saltford is undertaken to help 
inform the review of the Core Strategy and avoid some of the costs and 
constraints with re-opening the station on its former site.  

6 RISK MANAGEMENT 

6.1 The report author and Lead Cabinet member have fully reviewed the risk 
assessment related to the issue and recommendations, in compliance with the 
Council's decision making risk management guidance. 

7 EQUALITIES 

7.1 An Equalities Impact Assessment has not been completed at the present time.  An 
assessment will be undertaken as part of the development of the Business Case 
for the re-opening of the station and will be more informed at that time. 

8 RATIONALE 

8.1 There is widespread support for the re-opening of Saltford Station which would 
provide a quick means of traveling into both Bristol and Bath allowing interchange 
to longer distance services.  Transfer of car users to train use would reduce 
pressures on existing road and reduce congestion. 

9 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

Page 128



Printed on recycled paper       e:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\9\7\0\ai00013079\$jgzrywgo.docx 

 
5

9.1 None. 

10 CONSULTATION 

10.1 Cabinet members; Section 151 Finance Officer; Chief Executive; Monitoring 
Officer 

10.2 A public exhibition was undertaken in May 2014 at which 371 people attended 

11 ISSUES TO CONSIDER IN REACHING THE DECISION 

11.1 Social Inclusion; Customer Focus; Sustainability;  

12 ADVICE SOUGHT 

12.1 The Council's Monitoring Officer (Divisional Director – Legal and Democratic 
Services) and Section 151 Officer (Divisional Director - Finance) have had the 
opportunity to input to this report and have cleared it for publication. 

 

Contact person Peter Dawson 01225 395181 

Sponsoring Cabinet 
Member 

Councillor Caroline Roberts 

Background papers  

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an 
alternative format 

 

 

Page 129



Page 130

This page is intentionally left blank



�

�������	
���
������	���	������
����
��������
����

� ��� � �����  ! �

��������	����
���	
���
�
�
��	�����	

� ��� �"�#� �

����	�	�����	����	��������	

�$!�%� ���
��

�
����������	
�

����
��
����
�������
	����

��������
��

��������

�

Page 131



Page 132



�


&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,� �

��������	

��������	
����
�	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	����

���������	�����
�	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	���

� ���
��������	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	����

���� ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��

���� ��
!���	�"�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��

������ #$
�
����	��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��

������ %
�
���
����
!
��
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��

����&� '
$��
��
����$
�
�������	�	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��

����(� )
*��	�
$	���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��

��&� "�������
��+���
��
$������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ��

� ������	��������������	���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	����

���� ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��

���� #$�������,�����	�
�����	��
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��

������ "��
�%
	���$������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ��

������ "-#.�
�
��	�	��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��

��&� #$�������,�)���� -
	���+�"
��+��������
������������������������������������������������������������������������ &�

��&��� "��
��
	���$������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ &�

��&��� "-#.�
�
��	�	��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� (�

� ���
���
����
�	
����
������	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	����

&��� "�
�����	��
	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������& ��

&��� �
��
�
���/
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������& ��

&�&� "���
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������& ��

&�(� "�
�������!���
����

����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������& ��

&�(��� #$�������,�����	�
�����	��
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������& &�

&�(��� #$�������,�)���� -
	���+�"
��+��������
����������������������������������������������������������& (�

&�0� ��
+
��
�����
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������& ��

� ������ 	�����	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	!���

(��� ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������( ��

(��� '�	������� �$�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������( ��

(����� "�
��������	�����������	�	���������������������������������������������������������������������������������( ��

(����� "���
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������( ��

(���&� )�� ���	�����������	�	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������( ��

(���(� "���
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������( &�

� ��������������	��� ����	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	"���

0��� ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������0 ��

0��� 1
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������0 ��

0����� 1��
�	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������0 ��

0����� %
�
�"����
	�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������0 ��

0�&� 2��
�
	�	�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������0 &�

0�&��� %
�
���
����
!
��
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������0 &�

0�&��� '
����
���
���
��
		����
	���������������������������������������������������������������������������0 &�

0�(� 2����
��
�
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������0 0�

0�(��� 3��/����
�
	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������0 0�

0�0� ���������
		
		�
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������0 ���

0�0��� .��
	�
������$	�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������0 ���

0�0��� '�	�	���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������0 ���

0�0�&� �
	���	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������0 ���

Page 133



���
��
)�����
��-���

�

� 
&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,�

� ������	���� ������	���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	#���

���� ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��

���� "�
�����!
����
�
��
		�
��
��
�
��	������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ��

��&� 4�������
���
��$
�5����+
������
	��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��

��(� �
�5�����
�
�
�
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��

� $�% ��	��&�%�����	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	'���

6��� ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������6 ��

6��� "��!
���
	���	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������6 ��

6����� #$������7�
	����	���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������6 ��

6����� %
����
$����7�
	����	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������6 (�

� (��)�	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	*���

���� 8
����	5����	��
�
����	��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��

���� )
*��	�
$	���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��

+�% ��	

.
��
�( �9�"�
�
����4�,������
���
$��
����	�	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������( ��

.
��
�( �9�"�
�
������ ��
$��
����	�	�:�;<��������
���=���������������������������������������������������������������������������( &�

.
��
�( &9�"�
�
����'� ��
$��
����	�	�:(;<��������
���=���������������������������������������������������������������������������( &�

.
��
�( (9�"���
��	
�����
���
$��
����	�	�:�����
�=�������������������������������������������������������������������������������( &�

.
��
�0 �9�"
��+�����
�
���
����
!
��
�+��
�
	�	���������������������������������������������������������������������������������0 &�

.
��
�0 �9�'
����
�����	����������
���
��
		����
�	�
�
	��������������������������������������������������������������������0 (�

.
��
�0 &9��
����	
�	�
��
		����"
��+����,������������
����
���
���
��
		����
�:�;�&=��������������������������0 (�

.
��
�0 (9�#�����	������$
����
�
����/������-
	���+�����
���
�

�:�;;( �;���+����
	=��������������������������0 ��

.
��
�0 09�)
�/��5��
����.��9��
����
��>��
��1
�5
�	�"�����:���	���
�������
+��4$�����;�&=�����������������0 ��

.
��
�0 �9�"
��+����	�
�����+����
��

��+��
�
	�	�,��
����
	
�:� ��
��	�$
������=�������������������������������������0 6�

.
��
�0 69�"
��+����	�
�����
��������
		
		�
���,�	��
��$��������$
��	���,��
����
	
�:�/� ��
��	�$
��

����=����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������0 �&�

.
��
�0 �9�"
��+����	�
�����
��������
		
		�
���,�	��
��$��������$
��	���,�	
�	���!�����
	
�:��
 ��
���

$
������=����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������0 �&�

� �

,�-�
��	

2����
�� �9����
���
��	�
�����	��
����
������$����	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ��

2����
�� �9����
���
��	�
��������
�����,�#$�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��

2����
�� &9����
���
��	�
��������
�����,�#$�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� (�

2����
�& �9�#$�������$��
���
��	�
�����	��
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������& &�

2����
�& �9�#$�������$��
���
��	�
������
�����/����$
�5����+
�����������������������������������������������������������������& (�

2����
�& &9�#$�������$��
���
��	�
�����	��
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������& 0�

2����
�& (9�#$�������$��
���
��	�
������
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������& 0�

2����
�0 �9�#�����	���������/������-
	���+�����
���
�

������������������������������������������������������������������������0 ��

2����
�0 �9�"
��+����	�
������
����
���
������
��+�
��
		�:#$������=����������������������������������������������������0 ��

2����
�0 &9�"
��+����	�
������
����
���
������
��+�
��
		�:#$������=����������������������������������������������������0 ?�

2����
�0 (9�"
��+����	�
������
����
���,����
��
$$��
������
�����	�:#$������=���������������������������������������0 �;�

2����
�0 09�.�����������4������	�
���41'��,�"�
�
����4�,�"
��+����	�
�����	��
�#$����������������������������0 �(�

2����
�0 �9�.�����������4������	�
���41'��,�"�
�
����4�,�"
��+����	�
�����	��
�#$����������������������������0 �0�

2����
�0 69�.�����������4������	�
���41'��,�"�
�
������,�"
��+����	�
�����	��
�#$����������������������������0 ���

2����
�0 �9�.�����������4������	�
���41'��,�"�
�
������,�"
��+����	�
�����	��
�#$����������������������������0 �6�

2����
�0 ?9�.�����������4������	�
���41'��,�"�
�
����'�,�"
��+����	�
�����	��
�#$����������������������������0 ���

2����
�0 �;9�.�����������4������	�
���41'��,�"�
�
����'�,�"
��+����	�
�����	��
�#$��������������������������0 �?�

2����
�6 �9��������
*���������	��!
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������6 ��

�

�

Page 134



�


&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,� ����

��������	�
�����	

�

�
$���9�

�� ���
�	�������.	,����%� ���	�����		

�

'��
��9��

/��&	0	1�
�&	����	����
���	������ 	

�

���@
���)���
�9�� �;(��?�4A�;;��&�

�
$����)���
�9�� �;(��?�4A�;;��&B;;��

�

.��	������
����
	��

���		�
��
���
�
��
��
	�+����/	9�

2�
����	 ����	 ����
������	 �
�����	%�	 2�
�����	%�	 3��
����	%�	

!;� ?���C��
��;�(� %�
+���
$����,������$��
�����

���	���
������
	$��	
	��

��� 3-� %'�

!�� �6���#����
���;�(� 2��
���
$����,������$��
������D)�"�

����
��	�

��� %'� %'�

� � � � � �

� � � � � �

� � � � � �

� � � � � �

�

�

�

�

�

�

Page 135



�


&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,� �+�

������
��	�������	

.��	��
$����������
	���
����
��
�
��
��+

	��������	����������
�$��
���
���
/�	�
�����
��"
��+������

�������	 �������	

./��	�
������$����	��
!
��

�����	��
�
��+���
��
��
��!
����
����	�,��

• #$������� ���
�$�
!���	�:��	�����=�	��
����4(��
�����
���/������	�)
�/��5��
����/�
���
��E�
���

• #$�������,�������������� /
	���+���
�����
����++�'�
�/������
�������
������
��

����
�����������

"-#.�
�
��	�	��+���������
����	�������
���
�5
��
�
�
��	������������
�!
��
�
	�
�����	
�!
��
�
	��+�



���	��
��

#$��������
	��
��
������
���!����/������
��
�����
��
�����	��
�/��5������	�	���
�
�����)
�/��5��
����
���


����
	��
$
�����+��������
���
��$
�5�������	��
��.�
�
�
�
�$��
���
����	��
�����
��	�/������
�
��
		�

+������
�4(����
����
*�	�������
++���	
+
����		�
	��/�����/������

������
����	��
�
�����������
��
	�����

.�
�	��
��
	���
��
�
+����+�
�$��
���
��	
����
������
�����/������(;;��/
�5������	�
��
��/������������
�

�	
��+���
�������
��$
�5�����

#$��������	����
�
�����
��
���
����/������"
��+������	
�+��/������	�
��
�
+���+������	
��	
�	�/
�5�������

�������������
�	�
��������/
!
����
�	�
�����/�����������
�
��
�����
�
��
		
�����!
����
�+����
����
��

�
	��
���
����
�����������
����
��
	��
���
��
�

������	�	���
�
�������
������������
��

�������������

/�����/������

�������
�
�7���
���
����������
�	��
���
	��
!
��
$
��������$��!��
��;;��
��$
�5����

	$
�
	��%�
������
����
������+���
��
�����
�5	��
�������
����������	��
�	����+��
���

���/��5	�/������
�

�
7���
�������$�
�
�����
�$�
�+���	�
���
		���
�
����+�
	�������
��

���
���
����
�	
����
������	���	�����	

4��������������$����	��
���
��
��!
�
��/�����
�
��	������+�
	�������
��#$��������	���
�$�
+
��
���$�����

����
��	��+��
���
!
��
�������:/������)
�/��5��
����
��=��$
��
�
���/
��
�����!���
����

�����

���	��
�
����	��.�
���	������	�
��������
������	�/
�������
��
������
�����
��:4(=�
����
	�
������	$
�
�

+��������
���
��$
�5�����

.��

���	��	�
�
���	�:�
	
�����$�
�+�������$�
*����
		��$����	�
����������
���=��
!
��

���
!
��$
��

+�����
��/���$����	��#$��������	���
���

$
���+���
��/���$����	��$�����$
������
������
��
���
��
������

�+�

���/��5	��
7���
������
��!
����
�$��
���
��	�
�������������	����	�������
���
���	���+�$��!�������+��;;�

�
��$
�5����	$
�
	�:/������
�	
����
����
��$
�5�������
������
!
��$
��+���#$������=��

� �����
��	3	 �����
��	/	 �����
��	�	

#$������� F(�;�������� F0�&�������� F�����������

#$������� F0���������� F����������� F��;��������

'�	�����	��
�
����	�������
�+����
	����
����
�
�
�
���$���
		��
	�/
���
	��;<����(;<��������
�������


�������+�����
�$�
�����
����
!
���+���
���!
	���
����	�
�����	�	�
�
��'�	�	��������������
�+���.#'�

���$
�	
�������
���
�7��	�����������
++����
�
�
�
����
7���
�
��	��

��������������	��� ����	

%
�
���+���"
��+����	�
������	�
	���
�
������
��;&�6;;����$	�$
��
�����
������
����
���	
�
��
!
�	�:�/� 

/
����!
�
��	=��.��	��
$�
	
��	�	��
��(6����$	�$
���
���
�
����
������&�0�����!���
�	��.��
���
!
�

���	��
!
���+��
�
�����
7���
	��/����
��	�$
����������	��$�
��"
��+������
����$��!��
�������
�
*�	�����

G	��$$
�H�	
�!��
	��
�/

���
���"$
�
������	����.
�$�
�1

�	��
5����
��
�������
��	��$�
�����
��
/�

1
����-
	��	��$$����	
�!��
��%
�
�������
�	��
�
������$	�������
���0;�;;;����$	�$
��
�����:(6(�

$
���
�=�/�����������
���
���$
�������
��
�"
��+����	�
������

3��		��
!
��
�+��
�
	������
��
�
�
�
�����"
��+����	�
������	�@�	���!
��F�����
	
�������
����
���
�
���

+��
�
	��+�����
�	�
�����
���
�	�
���� �� 	�
��������$���	����������
���+
�
	�$
��
����
	
�����8
��	�
���

Page 136



�,��
-�+��)-������


&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,� +�

#+����	��	��
�F�&�;;;��	�
�������
��������$	���
���
!
���
�	+
��
��+�������
��	�
����	��
����	���
�
+��
�

�����
���
!
��
�+�����
��
��/
���

���
���������
���/
��
��
	�����
��
�
�����
�
���������
���
!
��
������
��
��/
��+������$	���
��
�
�

$��
���
����	�$$�
		
��
	�
��
	�����+���
��
	����	
�!��
	����
�������
�
�
�	��$�
��
��
/�	�
������.�
�

�!
�
����
��G�
/H��
!
��
�+�����
��
��/
��
	�
��
	�����+�"
��+����	�
������
������$�
�
��
���	�F66;�;;;����

��
��
����
	
�:����
��	�$
������=��

1�	���	
�	�
��"
��+����/������
����
�������
�	�
������
		
���
����/��������
�!���
�
��+�"
��+����:	��
�6�<�

/�������5��
�����<�/������&5�=��1�	���+���
	
�$
�$�
�/�����/
�5������
�	�
������
������

��
���	��

�
�+��+�
���	�
������	
�	�
�
�+��
�
	�����/
�5����/
!
���
	��	���	
�!
��
�����
��	�
����	�:
������$
������
��


��8
��	�
�=�
�	�I

��
����������/�������!
������
�	�
�����+����/������� &5���+���
�	�
������

.�
��
��$
�5�
��"
��+����	�
�����/������
�
�$
���
��$
�5�����
�/�	
���
�	+
�	�	

5����+�

�$
�5����������

�
�	����+��
���:
	$
��
����+����8
��	�
�=��4		������
�	����
��$
�5������
��
�
	�8
��	�
���"
��+����

/������
�
�
�
�
���	��F?;�;;;�$
��
�����:�;�&�+����
	=��/�����/�������	
�/�����
�
����������
�

+����
��

.�
��
	���	��+���
�
��������
		
		�
��������
�
���
��#$��������
	���
�����
���'��:/������
��
��

�
$
�����������	��	�
�
�����+����
��

	��
��
���?&�������&=��4	�
����$
��	����
��������
		
		�
��	�

�
!
�
�	���	
����
�	
�	���!�����
	
��
�
���+��
�
	�	�:�
	
�������
���
���$
�������
��"
��+����	�
����=��

.�
��
	�����+����	�
		
		�
����	�
��
������������
�
���/�������!
	�
���/
���'���
�/

����(&�
���;�?��

:	�
�����	��
�#$������=��

$�
)��-	���	�
�����	�������
������	

.�
++����
�������

	��
	������������&;�$��	$

���
�
�
��
�
�
��

������
�
�������
�4(��
�����
�����

��
�!���������+���
�$��
���
��!
����
�
��
		������
�	�
������.��	������
�
	���
�
�/
�
�
*�	�����	
+
����		�
	�

�����
�
�

���

.��

���
++���
����

������$����	��
!
��

���
!
��$
��+���
��
		�@���������
�����
�����	�	�������	��4���

�
!
��

���
!
��$
��������	���
�����/�����D)�"���
++����++��
�	��.�
	
��
��
�+���������
�����
�!
������

�����
�
*�	���������/
���
������/����������	������� ���������
�+�����	���
��
��@��������/�������	������� 

������

.�
�$��
���
��	
����
���$
�5�������
������	���
�
�����������$
�����/�
���
����������$��!��
�
��


�������
���60�	$
�
	�
���
�����
�
�+����
�����
�	��+��+����$��!
�
��
������
����4����������
�����

	
��

/
�5������	�
��
����$
�
��/�������	
����!
�	�$
�5����/��������
�	�
������
��$
�5���
	��
!
����@����
��

���
���$���
����	�
���
������

	
����!
����
�!	��$
�
	���
�����+����	�
���		�.�
�"�
���/	��

$�% ��	��&�%�����	

4	�$
����+����	�	������D)�"�/
�
����
�
	�
������
��
���
��
!
���+�	�$$�����+�"
�+�����
	��
��	��
	�	����
�

$������
*���������
!
���/
	��
������.�
	�
���0���2
���
����;�(�
��"
��+����'���������'
���
�
���
�

	��!
���������
���.�
�
�/
�
�&6���
	$��	
	���+�/������?<������
�
����
���	�$$����+���
�$��
���
��

	�
��������"
��+�����

((<��+��
	$���
��	������
�
����
��/������	
���
�	�
��������
��
�������/

5����
	�	��/������
��
@�������+�


����
	$���
��	�	�
�������
��/�����/
�5������
�	�
������#+����	
�/���/�����$��
���
�������!
�
���$
�5��

�
�
��!
���
7�
������
�	�	$
��+�
����
��/�����$
�5������
�	�
������
��$
�5������ 	��

���

�6<��+��
	$���
��	������
�
����
����
��/�����	/�����+������
!
���������$��!
�
��
��:���!
�����$
		
��
�=�

����
�����+�
�	�
�����/
�
�$��!��
���?<�	�
�
����
��/�����	/�����+����
����
���
���	�
�����:
�	��
�����=��

(��)�	���	����	�����	

.�
�$��!�	�����+�
�	�
�����
��"
��+�����	�������

����!�
��
�/������
��
��!
����+���
�1
���-
	��$��$�	
�	�

$��!������
��/� ��
���$
�������+�
7�
�����+�	
�!��
��2����/�����
�
�����	��		���	�/����)
�/��5��
������

1
���-
	��$��$�	
�	�������
�������
����	�+������
������
�
��
�
		
		�
���	���
	�	���
�
��	�	�++���
���

�
$
����������
����
�
��
����
�������
�
���
�
*��
�	��$�
��"
��+�����

Page 137



�,��-
�+��)-������

+�� 
&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,�

���� �
!
����!���
����

�������!
	���
����	��
!
��

���
���
������
	�$
����+����	�	������������
�	�
����+�
�

	�
������	��
��!
�
��
�
��$��
���
�����
����	��2������	�	��/���
�������	�
������$����	�
�
���
��
���
����

�
��!
�
��
�����
��	��+�
����

������/����#$��������
������
�$�
+
��
��	��
���

3��������!
	���
����	�
�
��
7���
��������
�	�
�����
�	���
��������+���
��
���
����
�+���
��	�
�����	��
����

/�������
��
/�	�
������������
��������4�$
������
������	5��	���
�	�

$�
��
�5�
��������
�

	���+���
�

�
��/
�����
�����/�������
�

	�
���$�
�+����/������
����	�����
���4��������
�$��
���
�������
������
	�

�

��$��$�	
��:�����
��$�
�+�������������$��
	=��

.�
�$�
+
��
��	�
�����	��
��$������	����
�
�������
�+���
��:��	�����=�	�
�����	��
��/������	��/�
�����

)
�/��5��
������/
!
��$
���		���	�����
!
��$����	��
��������
�	�
�����/�����
!
�����
�
��

���/������
��

��!��!
���
���
�	+
���+��/�
�	��$�����D)�"�����	�����������
��:
	��
������
���+�
�=�
�������
����	���4��


�������+�������$
�����
����
��
�	���
��
7���
�����+
�����
�
���
�	�
�����
��
		�
��
��
�
��	��2����
��

������$
�����
���/������
��
7���
��+�����
�
�������
��$
�5����	��
�+���#$�����������
�
��

	���+���
�	�
�����


�������
�4(��
�����
���/������	�����
������/�
�����.�
�4!���'��������/����'�����

�

�

Page 138



���+��1	�	


&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,� 
'
�

���������
��	

 !  ���������
��	

�
���D�)������
	��"��
�	
��'�������:�D)�"=��
	��
���
������������
�/������
��
!
��$�
����+�

$��$�	
�	�+���
�$��
���
��	�
�����
��"
��+�����/������
���!
���/
��	������
�
���$�
$
�����
��
�������	����

3�����	��������$����
		���
�	�
�������/
��	���$�
�
��
�������

'��1�������
	��

�������		���
��������
��
5
�
����
��
�
��
��+

	��������	����������
�$��
���
���
/�

	�
�����
��"
��+��������������9�

• "�
��������
�����,����	��
�
������+�
��
��
��!
����
����	�+���
�"
��+����	�
����������������
��

������
��
	����
�����	����	��

• "���� 
��������
�
��	�	�,����
��
�
��
���
�
���+��
�
	�	�������������	
��������	�
���
��
		�

���
	�
��������
��	
���+�
���������
�
+��	��

• �
�5����
�����
++�����$
��	�,�	�I
��+��
��$
�5�����������+�
��
		�����
��$
�5�
���$��
���
��

��	$�
�
�
����
�����
++���
��
		����	�
������

• �������
*���������,�����������
��
!
������	

5����
���
	��
��	H�!�
/	�����$����	�+�����
�	�
������

 !" #���
���	�����	

.�
�$�
!���	�	������$����	�
������;������!��!
������ �
!
����!
	���
����	��������
�+

	���������+�

�
������������
�	�
�����
��"
��+�����
	�$
����+���
�/��
��	����������1
���-
	���
�/��5�$��$�	
�	��.�
�

	��������	��
�
����
����
������+�
�	�
����������
�$�
!���	�	�
�����	��
�������/�����
�
��	�����
�
���
���

�
$��
����	�	��

 !"!  $%����
���	

.�
�+������	��+���
�$�
!���	�	������������
����
����
�
��	�$��
���
����$
�
����
�����+�����
�
*�	��������
��

:������=�	
�!��
��
�/

���
���"$
�
������	����.
�$�
�1

�	�����
5
�
��
�������
��	��$������
����
�,�

/������������
�
��"
��+������

���$�	
�	�+���1
���-
	��
�	��������
��$��!�	����
����
�����
��:������=�	
�!��
��
�/

���
���"$
�
���

���	����.
�$�
�1

�	��/�����������
�	���
���
��
�"
��+����	�
������.��	�������$��
���
����$��!��
�
�	�
�����


��"
��+����/����
��
�+ �������	
�!��
��

 !"!" ������	���	�������	

4�	
��
	��+��
	$�5
�	$�

�	�

�����
�	�/
�
��
!
��$
�����
		
		���++
�
���
	$
��	��+���
�$��$�	
���
���


��
��
�
��	���
+�
��������
�
!
��
��
��
�
�
����
����
��+���
�	�����:)�."��#�����%2��
���-���	��!
�=��

.�
	
����
�	����	��
�
����
�+����/����
�
�
��	9�

• .��$	�
���
/�	�
����	�:���
*�	�����
����
�$
�
�����
	=E�

• '�
��
	�����
�
���
��
*�	�����	�
����	E�

• %�!
�	���	��+�
*�	��������$	�����
/�	�
����	E�
���

• "�$$�
		�����+��
�
������
*��
�	�
������
��	��

.�
������
���
�
���+��
�
	�	�+���"
��+����	�
�����	���
	��
���
�����		��
!
��
	��+�
���	��F&���;;;��

/�����/
	��
��!
��+�����!
��(;;��
����	�
�����
����
	�
���
*��	�:�!
����&�;;;�$
��
����=��.��	����		�

�
!
��
��	���
���+�
�������
�G���
����
�
��H����
���+�	�
�����$
����
�
�
��"
��+����
����
	��

��	
��


�
��	����
�
�������+��
!
��
���
���	�
�	��
��
��+�������
��	�
����	�:
*�	������
����	
�	���
��������
���

����
	=�
���$��
���
��	�$$�
		����+����	��$$����
���
������@����
�����
����
��
*�	�����	
�!��
��.��	�

�
	���	����
��
/�G�
���
!
��
H�+�����
��
��/
��+����
��+�
���	��F��(�;;;�$
��
������

Page 139



)��
����
���
���-�
����


'�� 
&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,�

�
�5�������	��
�
����	�
����
�	�
�����/
�
�������
�/����/�
���������
�
�������
�
�������
�$��
���
��

	��
�:/�������
����
@�����+�
	�������
��
7���
�
��	�,���
���
�
������/
��=�
���/
	����$
�
��
�/����

	����
��	�
����	��	
�������
�
*�	�����	�
������
����
������$
��	����.��	�$��!��
��
�������
���
��$
�5�

	�
������
$
������+�0; �;�	$
�
	��

��/
!
����
�
++
����+��
��$
�5�������$��
���
��	�
������	
�	���
	������
�
		
��������
���������
�
�
�

�
�/

���
�
���
�����
�
!
��
��������+�$
�5����
��
�	�
������
	��	
��+��� 	��

��$
�5����
������
�	�
�����

�	��+�
����	
�!
���
�$
������
�����	
7�
��
��+�
��
��$
�5����+

��	���
��
����

 !"!& ��%
���	���	�%����
�'	�����	

'
$��
����	�	�+���
�$��
���
��	�
�����
��"
��+����
�
��
$
��
��������
�+
������
	�$��!��
���/���������
��!
�

��	�	��	
���
	
�����$�
!���	�'��1������
	���
�
	�:��
/��+��������	����	����
	=��$��@
���
*$
��
��
�


���"$��H	�����
�����
��/
������	������	�	���

������
������
+�
�����
�

����	�
�
��+���
��
	����$���
		�/��������
�	������
���/
��
	�/
�
��
�
�+���

$��@
���
����������
������	�	�
	�
�$��$��������+���
����
���������	�	�:J(;<=���
	���	�
�������	�	������

������������+�	�������5�����++��
��/
�
�
$$��*��
�
��
��F0�0���������.��	���	��
�	����������
�������+���

����
�����	��������/
���
�/��5���
���$����
	
����
��
		�
���$
�5�������	��
�
����	��

#$
�
�������	�	�
�
��
$
��
��������
��
!
���+�$��!�	����:��
��	�
++
�=�
���/�
��
����+�	�
�
��
7���
���4�

�
��
��+�F&0�;;;����F�(;�;;;�$
��
�����/
	�
	���
�
��
	�
���5
����
��
��

 !"!( ����	���%�	

4�����
���+�5
��
		��$����	���
�����
�$�����
��
	
�+���"
��+����/
�
���
���+�
�������
������
��	������

3
���������
����
�	�
�������+���
�	���
��������+���
�
		��$����	��	��
7���
�����+����
���
!
��$���
��
	
��

�������������
��
�
��
���
�
���+��
�
	������
		
		�
����+��
$��
����	�	��������������!���
����

�����

�
7���
�
��	��
���
		
		�
����+���
++�����$
���
���$
�5����$��!�	�����
7���
�
��	��

 !& ���������	��	���	��%���	

.��	��
�����
���
$����	
�	�����+������	��+�+����
����!
	���
����	�����������9�

• '�
$�
����,�	�
�����	��
��$�������
���+��
����E�

• '�
$�
��&�,���+�
	�������
��
7���
�
��	E�

• '�
$�
��(�,��
$��
����	�	E�

• '�
$�
��0�,�	���� 
��������
�
��	�	E�

• '�
$�
����,��$������
!
��$�
��E�

• '�
$�
��6�,�$������
*��������E�

• '�
$�
����,���	5	E�
���

• '�
$�
��?� ��
*��	�
$	��

�

Page 140



���+��1	�	


&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,� �'
�

$%�
��	�����
�
���
��	

"!  ���������
��	

.�
�$��@
������
+���
���+�
���/��$��
���
�����
����	�+�����!
	���
�����/���������	�	������.�
	
�
�
�

��	��		
��������
��
�
����
��/��
���������
9��

• #$�������,���
�$�
!���	�:��	�����=�	�
�����	��
E�
���

• #$�������,������
�������������� /
	���+�"
��+��������
����

2����
�� ��	��/	���
����
����	��+���
�	�
�����	��
��$����	��4�������
��"-#.�:	��
����	��/

5�
		
	��

�$$��������
	�D����

�	=�
�
��	�	��
	��

�����$�
�
��+�����������
����	��
	�
�$�
�����
���
		
		�
����+�

��
�5
���		�
	��.��	���
$�
���
$���	���
�"-#.�
�
��	�	��+�

������
�������

�����
�+��	����	�
��
��	��
�!�	��	�/
�
��
���
���������+����
�����
�	�
���+

	���������+���
���++
�
������
����	�

/�����
�
��	���9�

• 4��
		�,�$
�
	���
�������
�
���!
����
E�

• ���
���
��+����
��$
�5���� ��� 	��
���� 	��

��
���
��
��
��!
�$
�5�������
����	E�

• ���
�����/������"
��+����,�$��*���������$�$��
����E�
���

• "���
��������+�	��
�,����
�������
�
�	�
�����+
������
	��

2����/���������
����!
	���
����	��������
�	���
��������+�

������
������+����
��
*
���
������+���
����
����	�

�
	��

���
���
���������
		
		�$��
���
����!���
����

������
7���
�
��	��/���������
��!
���	�	���
���+�
��

+���

���	��
���
	
�����$��
���
����!���
����

������
7���
�
��	��"��	
7�
�����
$�
�	�������
���
	
�

+������	�
���
		���
�
����	�	��

�

��������	
���
�������������
��������
����
��
���
���

• ��

• ��

Page 141



)��
��������
��������
�����
����

�'�� 
&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,�

"!" $%�
��	 	)	���	����
��	�
��	

"!"!  �
��	�����
%�
��	

.�
�$��
���
��	��
��	����
�
�����
������++���
�4(�
����
�

	�
���+����
��+�"
��+�����2����
�� ��	��/	���
�

���
������+���
�	�
�����	��
�#$������������	��
�������	�
��
��������	�+������
�	�
����������
��
�
���
���+�

"
��+�����

K
����
�
���$
�
	���
��
��
		�/������
�+������
�4(��.�
�)
�/��5��
����/�
���
����	�����
������	
��
	�
�

	���
�
��
���
���
	�
��
��
		�$������������
��
������
������
	�$��
���
��	$
�
�+����/��$�
�+���	�
��������
��

$
�5����	$
�
	��� 	��
��.�
�	�
�����	��
��	������
������
������
������
��������4(������
�	����E������
�������

�+���
��
������
���
�
��
�5�
������$	������
���
���
!
��:.�
�"�
���/	=�
��������
��
�
��	
����!
����

4�&;�$��	$

���������
	��

��
��$�
��
�������
�4(����	��
��+���
�$��
���
��	�
�����	��
��/����	�
����

	$

���
�
�
�
�����
++����
�������

	��
	��.�
!
������+����"
��+���������
�	�
���������!
�	�/������
!
�

����
����
�
�
�	�
�$��
���
���	�

$������$��������
��
+��������������
�	�
�����
��
		��%��!
�	���
!
������+����

�
�����/
��	�"
��+����	�
�����/������
���
!
������
�����
��
����
��	$

��������	����
 �
���
�
/
����
���

���$$�������	$

�����&;�$��
$$��*��
�
����;;�
��
	��
+��
����������������������
�	�
�����
��
		��

�

��������	����
�������������
���
����
��������
��
�

"!"!" �*$+	������
�	

.�
�+����/����	��
����	��/

5�
		
	���$$��������
	�
������

�	��
!
��

����
���+�
���/�����
�
��	������
�

$��
���
�����
������+���
�	��
9�

��
��-�&�	

• #���	�
�����	��
�,��
�/��5��
����/�
���
��E�

• ���
���
��+����/� $�
�+����	�
�����/�����
��$
�5���E�

• ��	�	��$����
�
�����	��
���
�	��
�,�
�
��
����	
��
	��
��	���
��
����/
�5����/��������
�����
��
		�

��
�	�
�����+����"
��+���E�

• 4��
		��++���
��
�����
���$��
���
��������
��
$�����!
�	�
���
�����
�
����
�	��+�E�
���

• )���� 	��

��$
�5����
�����4(��

Page 142



)��
��������
��������
�����
����


&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,� �'.�

4��)������	

• �����
��	$
�
�+����� 	��
��
��$
�5���E�

• ���
����
�	�/�������;; (;;���+�	��
���
��������$��
���
�����
��	
��+�����+���
���� 	��

��$
�5����

���	�
������	
�	E�

• 4��
		��		�
	���
������
���
�����,�	�

$������
���	�
�$��
����
��

�����
++����
�
�
�
���

�����
��������$�
�
E�
���

• "��
��!
���;;��/
�5���	�
��
�+�����
@�������+�"
��+����$�$��
������

����
��������	

• ���
���
��
!
��
��
��
���:$��!
�
 ��

��+�
��=�/������(;;��+���
�������
��$
�5������+��
�
���

�
7���
	E�

• "$
�
�+�����	
��
��$
�5�������	��
E�
���

• ���
�
�����
$$��
������"
��+��������
�	��+���������
���
���
++����	����4(���������"
��+����
���

��������	�����

+&
����	

• .�
���	�
��
��+���
�
�������
��$
�5����	��
�+������
�	�
������	���5
������������@����
�����
�

$
�
���
	�����
5
�����
		�
���
���!
�
	�
��
��
��
��!
�������!���E�

• ���
���
����
++�����$
����+��
����	
�	�/�����
!
������
�����	�
����E�

• ���
���
��+���	��
��� 	��

��$
�5�������	��
���
�	�/������(;;�
��
	��+���
�	��
�,��������
7���
�

��������
��$
�5����I��
	���������
��
���/����
	E�
���

• '������
�	
�
�	��
������+����A&?���	�	
�!��
���
���������
�����
���
�����
���$��
���
����

�����
������
7���
�
���+����
�����������+�
7�
�������	��	�����

"!& $%�
��	"	)	�����,*���	��	��������	������	

"!&!  �
��	�����
%�
��	

.�
�$��
���
��	��
��	����
�
�������
������
���
��
��+�"
��+������

����������"��

���2����
�� &�	��/	���
�

	�
�����	��
����
������/����
����$
��������	�
��
��������	�
���		�"
��+������

.�
�	��
��	����
������������+���
�����
������
�
�����
��

$����������.�
�
�	�������
�	$
�
�+����/��

$�
�+���	�����
����	�����
���
�����������	��
���
7���
�
����

�����/��5	�����
���+����
���
�


��
�5�
��	����+������$�
�+���	��.�
�	�
������	����
�
��/������
�����������
���	������
�������
�����
�����

��
�	�����
������	
	�
��!
���������	��
	��+���
����
���

K
����
�
��
		�/������
�+����'�
�/������
���/������
�$��
���
��+������ !
����
�
��
		����
�	���
�

�
��
�����
�	����
 ��
�5�$��!
�
���
���
�/

���/�����	
	L/
��
���
��
�	���++�)���
����
���%��!
�	�

��
!
������+�����
�����/
��	�"
��+����/�����������������++���
�4(��
������

��
	���
����
+�������)���
��

��
��
��������������'�
�/������
���.�
�
��	�$��!
�
��
���:$
����+���
������������
���
�
����
��

�����

������=�
�@
�
�����
�	�
�����	��
��/������������
��
�
�������
��$
�5�����

Page 143



)��
��������
��������
�����
����

�'�� 
&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,�

�

��������	����
�������������
���
����
��������
����

"!&!" �*$+	������
�	

��
��-�&�	

• "��
��	����
��
���
�������
�
��/������"
��+����,�$��
���
��+������
��
����	
�	����/
�5E�
���

• ���
���
��+����/� $�
�+����	�
������

4��)������	

• 4��
		���
�������
�	�
�����	��
��	�!�
��
	��
���
��	��

�	��/������	�����	���
��
���
��
!
���+���
++���

�
�
���+�����
�	�
����E�

• ��	�
��
		����
��������	��
���
�	�
�����/����������
�$�		���
E�

• �
7���
�
*�
�	�!
�
����

�����/��5	����+
�����
�
�	�
�����$�
�+���	�
���
��
		��������
��������E�


���

• 2����
��+����4(��/������
7���
����!
�	����G��!
��H�+������
�����
������������@����
�����
�$
�
�����

����
��������	

• �
���
!
��
��
�������	
�$��*���������$��
���
��	��
�+����
��$
�5�����

+&
����	

• ���
���
��+����� 	��

��$
�5�������'�
�/������
���"��
�������
��
���	�����������
�

����
		�

��������
��$
�5����I��
��	���$�
�
��
�E�

• "����+��
�������

	
������
++���
������
	��
���
����
�	�/������"
��+���E�
���

• �
���+����
��$
�5�����	�����
���������������	$���	�+�
��	�
����
��

�������������

�

Page 144



���+��1	�	


&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,� .'
�

& ��������������	��-�
�������	

&!  ����
��	�
���	

�
!������
���+�
����
����
��	�
�����	��
����
������$����	�
����
���
������
�"-#.�
�
��	�	����
��
*��	�
$�

/
	�����
�
����
�	�
�����	��
����
����	�������
��
�
���:$�
�+�������
����	��
��
		�
��
��
�
��	���
��

$
�5����
���=�
�����!
	���
�
���!���
����

�����
	$
��	��+�$��
���
��	�
������
	���	�:���������
=��
	�/
���
	�


�
�
��	��+�$
��
�
���/
��
���	���
�������	����
���

��	������	�	��������
��
!
��$
����

4�������
���
	5��$�	�����/
	����
��
5
���	����3����
��
�����#"��
$$�������
�)��"
�����
��4$$
���*��

+�!
 ���
���
��
�	�
���M�
����
$	�����
�����������
�	��
�!�	��������
��
��
�
�
����$�
		�����+���
�$��
���
��

	�
��������
����	��
���������	��
����
�	��
	��
	
�����+�����
@�������
��
9�

• �
���
!
��
������E�

• 	�I
��+�	�
������������������	���������+���$�����:!
��
	���
����

���/��5	=E�

• 
��
		�������E�
����

• 
�!�����
��
��+
����	��

�
���	�
�����	��
��
	�����
�
��
����
�������
�
�
�����������;��$�
�+�����
������/����
��
		�


��
��
�
��	�
����
��$
�5����+
������
	��4	�	�������
�$��
���
��	��
	��

������
!
�

	��
��
		����$������

��
�	��.�
�+��
������
�����/
	�����
5
�	��
����	����������+���
�	�
�����/����������
���$
�
�����


�!�����
��
������
��	���
�����/
��
��	�
���+
�������4�����
	
����	��
�
����	�/
�
��
5
�������
�������

��������
�
���+����
�$�
+
��
��	��
�+�����
�$��
���
��	�
������

8
�����	��
�
����	�+�����
�	�
�����	��
	����
/���������
�"-#.������
$�
����
��������
��
����

�����


		
		�
��	�������
��
��!
�
�
�	
���������
�	
��
	��+�
��
		�
���
����

������
�
�
��
�!
��
�
	�
���

��	
�!
��
�
	�+�����
�	��
	��
	�+����/	���

������	�	5	� �	�������	����	

• 4�!
��
�
�,�	$
�
�+���$
�5�����	�
!
��
��
�:
�@
�
������/
	�
���$�
�+���=��

• 4�!
��
�
�,���
�/���
�	�
����������������$
�5����
�

���	�/������)
�/��5��
����
����

• 4�!
��
�
�,���
��
��
		������
�$
�5����
�

����	
����:�
�������4(=��

• 4�!
��
�
�,�/
	�
���$�
�+����
�

�	

�	�����
��
!
��	������
�
������/
��	��
7���
���

• %�	
�!
��
�
�,�	$
�
�
����
������
���
����+���
�

	�
���$�
�+�����������
����	��
��
����������

��
�
�	

�	�����
�
������	$
�
�+���
�����������;��/��
�$�
�+�����

• %�	
�!
��
�
�,���
�

	�
���$�
�+����
�

�	

�	�����
����
��
��
�5�
���	��

���/��5	�
���

�
�
������/
��	��������
��
7���
��:���	��
���
�
!���
���	����
������
��$�
�+�������������$��
	=��

������	�	5	1�
�&�4���	��	�� ���
�	����� 	

• 4�!
��
�
�,�	�++���
���	$
�
�+���$
�5�����	�
!
��
��
�
��������
�	�
�����	��
��

• %�	
�!
��
�
�,	��
��
��
		����
�$��
���
��/
	�
���$
�5����
�

��	������$
���
����
!
��
��
��
��


*�
�	�����+�'�
�/������
��!�
���
�
*�	������
��

������������/������
��
7���
���

• %�	
�!
��
�
�,	��
��
��
		����
��

	�
���$�
�+����
���$��
���
��$
�5����
�

��	���++������:�++�

)���
����
���/�����/������
!
�����
�/��
�
���
����������
7���
�
��
�
������/
���/�����/�����

��+����
����
*�	�����$��$
���������
��
	=��

• %�	
�!
��
�
�,��
���/������
!
�����
�
�7���
��+�����
�	�
������$
�5����
���
��
		��

• %�	
�!
��
�
�,���
�5�
����
�	�
�����	��
��	�������������4	�	�����	$
�
�+���
�/
	�
���$�
�+�����	�!
���

�������
����
�
������/
��	�
�
���5
�������
��
7���
��������	�����������$�
�+���	��

Page 145



)��
����.������)
�-�
-�����/-������
)�

.'�� 
&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,�

&!" #��������	.��	

����I���
����
�5�
�����
��	��
!
��

��
	�
���	�
�����
		
		���
�	���
��������+���
�	�
�����	��
����
����	����

�
��	��+���
�5����!
���
���	����
�������
������+�#"��
$$����
����
���
��1����	�
������#�����
��
	���	�

�+����	�
		
		�
��������
�
���
�9�

• #$��������	����
�	��
�����
�����
���/������	���

��+���$�
�+���	��
�����
�$�
+
��
��	���
�����+���

	�������
/�	�
����	��

• #$��������	����
�
��	������
�����/������
�$
���
����/������
���
�	�������
�/

��
��
$$��*��
�
���

(;;;���
���	����!
�
���	��
�������
�5��-���
�	��
�������
�5��	�$�
+
��
��+���$�
�+���	�����	��
!
��

�+����!
���
��	����	��
�
��
���
!
��
�+���
�$�
�+�������
������)��
���
������	�
		��
����
����
�

��
�	�������������
	�/����
��
�����
�	�������
�/

��;������0;���/����
���
�	�������
������+�

�;��
���
��
*��������
�	$

���+��;;�$���

K
����
����
�5�
�����
��	��
!
�
�	���

�����	��
�
�������
�
����
���
�	���
��������+���
�	�
�����	��
�

�$����	�����
��	��+���
�5���
��
���
����
�	�
������
	�
���	�
���	������
�+�!
 ���
���
��
���+����	�
�

���

�����	�
�����	��
��$����	�
�
����
�
�����
���
�5�/����
���
��
����+��9�&�;��-���
�+�
��	
�����	��+���
�5�
�
�

$�
+
��
��+����
/�	�
����	�����	���
��
����	�/
����
��/���
��
�+
�����
*�����
���/
����
��
���+����
/�

	�
�����$�
�+���	��+��90;;��
������	���5
������
������
�����$����
�	�����
�������$��
���/����)
�/��5�

�
���	�
��
��	��

�
��
�������	�
�����	��
��$����	�
$$

������
�+

	���
�����
��	��+���
�5
��$
��
�
���/
��$
�
�
�
�	�
��

��
����
����	����	��
�
���

&!& �
'����
�'	

.�
�	���
������	�	�
���������������
�
��
��
�
����+�
*�	�����	���
�	����
���$�	�����	�
���
		���
�
����
�5�

�������	�/�����

������
�
		
		
��+������$
���������/������
�$��
���
��	�
��������
����	��.��	��
	������

��

���	��
�
��������	�	��������������	���5
�����
����
�	���
������	�	�
��/�����
7���
�����+��
��������
��
�
���+���

/�����/������
���
���+�
�����������
��
	����$���
		��+���
�	�
�������

2�����	�
��
��
��$�
�+����
��	���
/�	�
���	���
�	�/����
		���
�
���
������
�5��������	�
������
������
	
	�

/�����
��
7���
���4����� ���
�����
��	���
�������
7���
�
��	�/����
�	���
!
�����
�
*
���
���4	�
��
	����
�

�
� ��

��	���
������	��
�
�$�
��	�������
�$�����
��+���	�
�����	���
������
�

�
��3����&�	�
�
�:�$�����

	
�
�����=��.�
�+��
���$�����/����
!
���
�����
��
!
��$
��
��3����(�	�
�
�:������
��
	���=��"���
��$�	�����	�


�����
���	��$$����$��������
����	�/�����
�	��@
������
�	���
��	����������
���
�H	��
����
��
�����$�����

���3����0��
	�����

.�
��
7���
�
��	�
�
���5
�������
�	����
��
��
���
��	�
�����	��
��$������

&!( ����
��	�
�
�	��'
����
�'	

.�
�������
�	�
������
	���	����	��
�
��������	�	�����
�
��
	
�������
�+����/����
		��$����	��/�����
�
�

���������������	�
�����	��
��$����	9�

• "�
�����$�
�+���	�:��;������=E�

• '
��$
�5����	$
�
	�$��!��
�E��

• ��
�+���	�	�
��
�	�����
�$��!��
�E�

• %�	
�������%�	������
�����4���:%%4=�
��
		�
��
��
�
��	E��

• ��������
�$������
���
		�:���4=����	���
����+���
�����	�	�
��:'�"=�����	
�����������
�
!�	����

:''.K=�
���G�
�$������	H�����
�$��!��
�E�
���

• 4�
7�
�
�+
�������	��
7���
���

)��
���
������	�
		��
����
���
������	��
��D)�"����)�������
��
	��
���
�$�����
���+��
7���
��+���
���
��

�+���
�	�
�����	��
��$����	�����������
���	���+�������	������������
�������
���	��
	���
�
	��

Page 146



)��
����.������)
�-�
-�����/-������
)�


&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,� .'.�

&!(!  $%�
��	 	)	���	����
��	�
��		

.��	�	�
������$������	����
�
��
����
�+���
��"
��+����	�
�����	��
���
�/

���
�����
��:4(=�
���1
���
��
	�

	��/�����2����
�& ���#�
��+���
��
���
�!
��
�
	��+����	�	��
��	���
�
!
��
��������+�!
�
���	$
�
������	�/
	���

.��	�
�

��	�+�
������	����
!���	�

���/��5	�
���
		���
�
����	�	��
����	�/������)�������
��
	��

�
��������	
������
��
��
�������������
�������

2����
�& ��	��/	�
�������
��!
�	�
������
	�����
�����+���
���$�������	�
������.�
��
�����	
�!
��
�
��+�

���	�	��
��	���
����
������ 

	�
���$�
�+����
���%%4��
�$�/�����
!
�����
����������
��
��
�5�
�������


��������
��
�
������/
������������$��
	�/������
��
7���
�������
������

	��	��
��+���
�	�
��������	�$$����

��
�$�
�+����
���%%4�
��
		��
�$	����

Page 147



)��
����.������)
�-�
-�����/-������
)�

.'�� 
&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,�

�

��������	�������
��
��
�������������
�����
�������������������������

&!(!" $%�
��	"	)	�����,*���	��	��������	������	

.�
�	��
�	
�
��
���	����
�
��@�	�������/
	���+�"
��+����:
��
$$��*��
�
���1�����=�
	�	��/�����2����
�& &��

�

�
6	(���
����	���
��	���	������.�
��
���
�!
��
�
��+����	�	��
��	���
������	�	���
�
�����
��
���
����

/������"
�+����
���
	�	�����++
�	�

	��
��
		������
�/
	��!�
�'�
�/������
��/�����
���
!
��
��
����������

�
��$
�5����+
������
	����/
!
�����
��
����
7���
���	�$
����+���
��
��

�����������	�
���/������
!
�����
�


�7���
���

�

�
6	(���
����	���
��	���	�������

�
6	(���
����	���
��	���	������2����
�& (�	��/	�
�������
��!
�

	�
������
	�����
�����+���
���$�������	�
�����

.�
��
�����	
�!
��
�
	��+����	�	��
�+���	�
��������	����������	���
������	����
�
�������������
���
����
�	�
���

�+�
���
�	���������!
���/
��	���
�/
	���.�
�$�
�+���	�
���%%4��
�$	�/������

������
�������/��������
�

���������/������
���5
������	
7�
����
7���
�
���+���

�����
�
������/
��	�+�����
���	�$$�����

1	

Page 148



)��
����.������)
�-�
-�����/-������
)�


&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,� .'0�

2����
��
�!�����
��
��$������+�!�
/��$
!������
��
���+���$
�5�����
	���$
��	��������������		��+�

��

�	$
�
�
���
�������
����	�	��

�

��������	�������
�����
�������������
�������

�

�
��������	�������
�����
�������������
�����
���

1	

Page 149



)��
����.������)
�-�
-�����/-������
)�

.'1� 
&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,�

�

&!/ #��������	�����
��	

#$��������	���
�$�
+
��
���$���������
��	��+��
���
!
��
�������:/������)
�/��5��
����
��=��$
��
�
���/
��


�����!���
����

��������	��
�
����	��.�
�����	�
��������
������	�/
�������
��
������
�����
��:4(=�
����
	�


������	$
�
�+��������
���
��$
�5�����

4�$��
���
���
�
������/
����	�������
7���
��+�����
�

	�
���$�
�+���E���/
!
���	���������
��$�
�+���	����

������$��
	�������
�
	
���
��

��+������	��
�
������/
����4���$���
$���
��	��!
��
��
��
�
��	�
�
�	������

��
��+���+����	��	�
�+

	���
��$������

�!
���+���
�
�/
	�
��

��+���
��
�
������/
�������/�����������
������
�	��
�
������	��
	��������
		�



���/��5	�
�����	��$����	���
��#$��������.��	�+
���	�������
!
�
��
��	�!
���$
��������	�	�
	�/
�����

2�����
	
��

	��	�����	�
�����$
�
����
�����	��$������	��������
����
�+

	���
�
�����
���

$
���+���
��/����

�

�

Page 150



���+��1	!	


&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,� �'
�

( ��%
���	�����	

(!  ���������
��	

.��	���
$�
��	
�	�������
��
$��
����	�	�+���
�"
��+����	�
�����������	��
��$����	��������������
�
		��$����	�

�	
�������
�
		
		�
��	��.�
����
����	�	�������
���
����	�����������	���+���
�	�
������	���
������
������ 

���	�����������	�	�:�
	�����
!
��$�
���
���$��@
����
�
�
�
��=��'�	�	��������
�������+����
���


�7��	������:
	����
��

���
�=������
����$
�
��������$
���:.#'=����$
�	
���������������	����������

�����
���
��!
����	��+���	��
�
�������
��+��	���/����	
�	���!���
	��
	
�������
��
!
���+��������
���������������

��
���	��
		��$����	���
�
�����	��		���	�/����)
�/��5��
����
!
��
	���
��������	��
�
������+�
�����
��

�������
����
		��$�������
��$�
!���	����	
������
������������	��
5
	������
�������$�		���
�
��
��
��!
�

��!���
����

������
7���
�
��	�+�����
������
���$�
�+����:

	������=�
����
�����"
��+����	�
�����	��
�

:#$������=��
	�/
���
	������$�
�+���	�
��#$���������

�
��
�����

��
$��
����	��	�
�
���	��
!
��

���
!
��$
�9��

• "�
�
����4�,��	
	�
��;<��������
����
		��$�����
���	�
��
�����	���������$�/�������
��
��
��!
�

��!���
����

��������	��
�
����	�+�����
�$�
�+���	�:���	�	�
�
����/
	��	
�������
�
*���������
!
���

��	����	=�E�

• "�
�
������,��
5
	������
�������
��
��
��$�
�+�������	��
�
����	��/�����;<��������
���E�
���

• "�
�
����'�,�
������	�+���
��
��
��$�
�+�������	��
�
����	��
�����������
	�
�(;<��������
����

������
�/����)����	��		���	��

(!" ����	��
��,�%	

(!"!  ����
��	���������
��	�����	

"�
��������	�����������	�	�������
���
�+����/����+���

����$����9�

• "�
�����$�
�+���	�:��;������=E�

• '
��$
�5����	$
�
	E�

• ��
�+����	�
��
�	�
������5
���
����
	E�

• %�	
�������%�	������
�����4���:%%4=�
��
		E�

• 3������/��5	������������
����������L�
 $��+�����L	�
����	
�������
�
������/
��	��$�������
���E�

• 2
��������
��	�
$����
���	���
�
E�

• K
����
�
��
		����5��������/
�E�
���

• '���
�$
�5����$��!�	�����

)��
����������
�����
���/
��
��	�������
��+����
���
�7��	�������
7���
��+�����
�	�
�����
��L����
��$
�5����

+���.#'����$
�	
���������������	����������

.��
��	�
��������	�����������	�	�+���

���	�
������$�����
�����	�����	�
�
����
�
�	��/���
��/9�

� �����
��	3	 �����
��	/	 �����
��	�	

#$������� F��&��������� F&����������� F&�����������

#$������� F&����������� F(�;��������� F(�;���������

Page 151



)��
����������
�����)
)�

�'�� 
&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,�

(!"!" �
'����
�'	

�
	�����
��
	����	���
������	��������	��F��0�;;;�+���
���	���
�������
7���
�
��	�:����������
		���
�
��

�
�
���	=������
5
��������������
�+����3����$���
		��+��
	�������	�
��
�������
	�����
��������		����

�
���!
���.��	�
		��
	�
*�	��������

 
	$
���
����	���
�	������
�!���������+���
�	�
������
���
��
�
��
��


���
�
$�
�����	
!
������
��

�����$��!��
�
*��
�	���
�	�
���
7��$�
����4��
�������
����	���+�F&;�;;;�

�
	�
��

����

��������
��/��������
��
	
����	�����������	�	�+������4��'�"��''.K�
����
�$������	�
����
�

	�
�������

.��
����	��
		��$�����+���	���
������N�F��0�;;;�+���������$����	��

(!"!& ���,���������
��	�����	

)�� ���	�����������	�	���!
���!
�
����
	�����
!
��$�
���
���$��@
����
�
�
�
�����	�	������������

$�
�����
���/��5	��3����	�
�
��
!
��$�
�����
	����L�����		�������
���$�		
		�����
�
�
�
����4	���
�

�
!
��$�
����+���
	
���	�	�
�
�	�����
��
����� �
!
����
������
�$�
�����
����
���
��+���
���!
	���
����	��

��
���� ���	�����������	�	�
�
�$��!��
��
	�
�$
��
��
�
��+���
��
	
�	�
��������	�����������	�	�

:
*��������	���
��������	�	=���

.
��
�( ��������
	���
��
$��
����	�����	��
�
����	�+�����
�$��
���
��	�
������$����	����"
��+����/������	��


		��$�����	�
�
�����������������
����
����	
�!
��!
�
��������+���!���
����

������
7���
�
��	�+���

$�
�+���	���
��"�
�
����4��.�
��;<��������
�����
	��

���
�
��
��+������	�	�
�
�����

.
��
�( &�������
	���
��
$��
����	�����	��
�
����	�+�����
�$��
���
��	�
������$����	����"
��+����/������	��


		��$�����	�
�
����'��.��	�������
	�
����
����	
�!
��!
�
��������+���!���
����

������
7���
�
��	�+���

$�
�+���	���
��"�
�
����4�
���
�(;<��������
�����

.
��
�( ��������
	���
�$
��
��
�
�
		��$����	�+�����
�!
����	���� ���	�����������	�	�/������	��


		��$�����	�
�
����4��.��	�������
	�
��������
�����+��;<�
$$��
�������
����
��
�����	���������
���

�
!
��$�
�����	�	��/������	�	�
��
���$�
����
�
�����	�$�
�����
����
!
���+���!
	���
������

.
��
�( ��������
	���
��
$��
����	�����	��
�
����	�+�����
�$��
���
��	�
������$����	����"
��+����/������	��


		��$�����	�
�
�����������������
����
����	
�!
��!
�
��������+���!���
����

������
7���
�
��	�+���

$�
�+���	���
��"�
�
����4��.�
��;<��������
�����
	��

���
�
��
��+������	�	�
�
�����

.
��
�( &�������
	���
��
$��
����	�����	��
�
����	�+�����
�$��
���
��	�
������$����	����"
��+����/������	��


		��$�����	�
�
����'��.��	�������
	�
����
����	
�!
��!
�
��������+���!���
����

������
7���
�
��	�+���

$�
�+���	���
��"�
�
����4�
���
�(;<��������
�����

�������	
�� ������
�!��������������������
��� 

�����
��	3	 � ������	�	 ������	�	

+��� 	/���	�����
������	����		 � 7�8��"8'9:	 7�8�!�8"!:	

��-��  ��-	 � 7��"8:::	 7��"8:::	

)���'��	���������'�	�	� <��+��
	
� � �

'����
�����$�
�����
��
	� �;<� F(�0��0�� F�(��6;��

3����	�
�
	�(��
!
��$�
��� �<� F�&��0�� F&��(&0�

3����	�
�
�0��
�
��
���
	���� ��0<� F0���(0� F���;�?�

���@
���1
�
�
�
���D�"$��	��	��$� �;<� F�&��06?� F&�(�&0(�

.
	�����
��������		������� ��0<� F0���(0� F���;�?�

��		
		�����
�
�
�
��� ��0<� F0���(0� F���;�?�

.#'�'��$
�	
����� ;<� F;� F;�

�
���4�7��	�����������
	
��  � F;� F;�

+��� 	1��������
������	����	 � 7*9"8!�9	 7�8�!*8'#�	

��%	+��� 	 � 7�8�!#8��9	 7!8#�'8�:�	

'������
���� �;<� F��?��(&��&� F?�&�(�;�0��

+�+3;		 � 7!8:�"8!#�	 7"8"!:8'#�	

Page 152



)��
����������
�����)
)�


&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,� �'.�

�

�������	��� ������
�"�	����������
����#�$%��
���������&�

�����
��	/� � ������	�	 ������	�	

+��� 	/���	�����
������	����		 � 7�8:9�8'9:	 7!8:��8"!:	

��-��  ��-	 � 7��"8:::	 7��"8:::	

)���'��	���������'�	�	� <��+��
	
� �� ��

'����
�����$�
�����
��
	� �;<� F����60�� F�;��&;��

3����	�
�
	�(��
!
��$�
��� �<� F&;�?&�� F(;���0�

3����	�
�
�0��
�
��
���
	���� ��0<� F66�&(0� F�;;���?�

���@
���1
�
�
�
���D�"$��	��	��$� �;<� F&;?�&6?� F(;���0(�

.
	�����
��������		������� ��0<� F66�&(0� F�;;���?�

��		
		�����
�
�
�
��� ��0<� F66�&(0� F�;;���?�

.#'�'��$
�	
����� ;<� F;� F;�

�
���4�7��	�����������
	
��  � F;� F;�

+��� 	1��������
������	����	 � 7�8�9�8�:9	 7�8"!!8!!�	

��%	+��� 	 � 7!8!:98*99	 7"8#*:89*�	

'������
���� �;<� F����?�;� F���&���?6�

+�+3;		 � 7"8�9�8*'9	 7#8*�'8�'9	

�

�������	��� ������
�'�	����������
����#�$%��
���������&�

	�����
��	�	 � ������	�	 ������	�	

+��� 	/���	�����
������	����		 � 7�8:9�8'9:	 7!8:��8"!:	

��-��  ��-	 � 7��"8:::	 7��"8:::	

)���'��	���������'�	�	� <��+��
	
� �� ��

'����
�����$�
�����
��
	� �;<� F����60�� F�;��&;��

3����	�
�
	�(��
!
��$�
��� �<� F&;�?&�� F(;���0�

3����	�
�
�0��
�
��
���
	���� ��0<� F66�&(0� F�;;���?�

���@
���1
�
�
�
���D�"$��	��	��$� �;<� F&;?�&6?� F(;���0(�

.
	�����
��������		������� ��0<� F66�&(0� F�;;���?�

��		
		�����
�
�
�
��� ��0<� F66�&(0� F�;;���?�

.#'�'��$
�	
����� ;<� F;� F;�

�
���4�7��	�����������
	
��  � F;� F;�

+��� 	1��������
������	����	 � 7�8�9�8�:9	 7�8"!!8!!�	

��%	+��� 	 � 7!8!:98*99	 7"8#*:89*�	

'������
���� (;<� F��6�&�?0?���� F���6��&?&����

+�+3;		 � 7#8�'�8*"9	 7'89"�8�'#	

(!"!( �������	

.�
��
$��
����	�	�+���

���	�
�
�����
!
��

��	���
��	
��+�����
��/���$����	��
��/����.
��
�( (��

�������	��� �((�����)��
�������������
����#�
��)�)&�

� �����
��	3	 �����
��	/	 �����
��	�	

#$������� F(�;�������� F0�&�������� F�����������

#$������� F0���������� F����������� F��;��������

'������
����
		��$����� �;<� �;<� (;<�

��
�+������!��	�
		��$����� "�
��
��� '��	
�!
��!
� '��	
�!
��!
�

Page 153



���+��1	"	


&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,� 0'
�

/ ���
�,������
�	������
�	

/!  ���������
��	

4����$���
���$
����+���
�	���� 
��������
�
��	�	��	�������
�	�
���$��
���
���
�
���+�����
�	�
���������

�
��	��+���
�7�
������+�$
		
��
�	����5
���������	�:
����
	���
����	=�
����

�	��+�
��
		������
�	�
������

.��	�	
���������
+����
	����
	���
��
�
���+��
�
	�	��
���
����������������������
���
	���	�+����
�
����

�
����
���������	�
���
��
		����
��
���	��	
7�
���
��������
		
		�
��	�

#��$��	��+���
�	���� 
��������
		
		�
���/���������
�
����
�
�������
��	
���+�
���������
�
+��	�+�����
�

	�
���������	��
������		�
	�	����
	��
!
�	��+��
�
������$
����������/
������
	�����
����!
�
������
�

	
!���	�+���
�����
�	$�����	
�	��.��	�������
	�
��
		
		�
����+���
�)
����
	
���K
��
�:)�K=��+��
�
+��	�


����
�
+���'�	���
����:�'�=�+�����
�	��
�
�����
!
��$��������
���	��
		��
	
�+�����
�	�
������

����
����
�������
�
���������
�
+��	����
�	
�
��
�
���+��
�
	�	�:+���	�
�����	��
�#$������=��
!
��

��

�	
��+��������	�
�����	��
	��4����������
�
�
�
���++
�
��
	��+��
�
������
��
		�
��
��
�
��	����
��
�
�

	����
�������
�
��/�����
	$
��������
��
����
����
����+���
�	�
�������

/!" 0��������'�		

/!"!  0�����	

4�	
��
	��+�
$$��
��
	�
�
��
7���
�����
		
		���++
�
���
	$
��	��+�
��
/�	�
�����
��"
��+�����.�
	
�

���	��
�����

��
���
�
�
��	���
�����
��
��
�
��
���
��
�����
���
�
+��������
��
��/
������
�
	�
���	�
���

���������9�

• .��
�����$	��
�
�
�
�������
��
/�	�
����E�

• �*�	������
������$	���!
��
��+����
*�	��������$	������
��
/�	�
����E�
���

• "�$$�
		�����+��
�
���
��
*�	�����	�
����	����
��
*��
�	�
������
����

+��� 	�������	������	

%
�
���+��
�
	�����/��5����
��
5
��
	�$
����+���
�$�
!���	�"
��+����	�
�����	�����/
	�
�!
���������
!
��


		
		�
����
	
��
��������
�1
���-
	���
���$��$�	
�	�+�����
����	����
�

��.��	��	
����
�����/��

	$
��+����
����
�5�	�
����	�
	���
�+���	�+�����5
����
�
���
����
!
��
���$
��	��
		
���
����
����
������$�

�
�
�
$$��
�����

4	�$
����+����	�	��������
��
������
	��

����$��!
�����������	
��+�
�	��$�
���
!�������
���
����7�
��

/������
5
	������
���������
��
�
����	��$��
�/

��@����
�	�
����
����
��	�
��
�����
���+�	����
��

	�
����	���
��
		�����
����7�
	��
!
��

���	
�������
���+��
�	
��
	��+��
�
��L�
����
����
�
����	��$	�

+���	
!
�
����$
	��+���!
�
��	������������@����
�	��
�
��	����+����$���
����5
�	���
���
��$���
����5
�	�


���	

	������5
�	��
����
�/

��G���
$
��
��H�	�
����	�:	����
	�'��$$
��
��
���8
��	�
�=��G�
����
�H�

	�
����	�:	����
	��
���"$
�
������	����.
�$�
�1

�	=��G���
�H�	�
����	�:#��+�
����
�5���
����	�
��
���=�


����������	�
����	��
	���
���
�
��
��	���	��+�	�������$	��
����++
���"�
����	��	
�������
��
��
		���	�
�
�

��
/��+������
����
��-
	���+�����
���
�

����
����	�
	������
	�$�		���
��

����
�����	��	�������-	�
���	��	��<	�������	

4��
	���
�
��+���/��
������$	�
�
��
/������
��
��/
�������
�	+
������+�������
��	�
����	��	�
		
		
��

�	����
�	�
����������
����������
����	�����
�
�
��	
����	�	��
����
�
��+���/���
�@����
�	�+�����������

:���
�����
����
	
	=�����
	���
�����:��
��/��5=�!�
���
�
*�	�����	�
������	
���/�����)�."��
�
���
���+�
	��

���$
�
��/����
�	����
�����$��	������
��
/�	�
������

����
������	��	������	

.��	��
������!
��
�	���
����
����
�
�����$
����+���
�	�
�����/����
��
$$�
�	
���+���	���
�
������


*�	������
���$
		
��
�	������
�	��$$������
����-�
�
�
��
/�	�
������	���$�
�
��
�����
��
*�	��������
��

Page 154



)��
����0�)����'��������������)�)�

0'�� 
&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,�

��
�
��	�$��
���
�����
++
����
�
������	
�!��
	�$
		������������:
���	��$$���=�
����
��
/�	�
������
	�
�

�
	�����+��
����
�����@����
�����
	��.��	��
���
!
�
�	����+��
���
++
�������
!
��
��+���
�	
�!��
	�����
�

	��$$
��
��
��
/�	�
�����
�
�+
	��
��L����������	�
��
��/�
�
���
�@����
�����
�$
�
�����	���

�
��
��L���

+
�
	�$
���
�
�����
����
�����
����
��@����
�	��

/!"!" ����	�������	

4�����
���+��
�
�	����
	��
!
��

���	
������
!
��$��
�
���+��
�
	�	�+���"
��+����	�
������.�
	
�
�
�

������
�����
+����
��/��

1������ 	(�� 	+
��� 	��
���	=1(+�>	

.�
�)
����
���
���.�
!
��"��!
��:)�."=�$��!��
	�
	���
�
	��+���
�����
���+��
������$	�
��	�
����	����
�

������
��
�����$��
���
��
���������
	�������	�
����
	���
����	��+����$	��	������
��
����
�/��5����������

�
��	��+��
���@����
�	���
�	
�!
	�:��
�+��	������
��
��
�
�
����
	��	�
����	��	
�=�
�����
�G���
H��������
���

�
	���
������+����$	�:������������
����
����	�/�
�
���
��!
�
���@����
��	�
��
��
���+���	�
���	����
	�

���
��/��5�������
�����
�����
�����
����
��+�	�
�����
��
		L
��
		=��#��
��@����
����
�
��
��	���	�

�
��!
��+����)�."��
�
�������
	����5
����$
	��@����
��$��$�	
	�
���@����
��+�
7�
�����)�."��
�
��	�5
��

����
!
��$������
��
	$�5
���
!������$
����
��+���"
��+����	�
�������

?��(3�	

1#��4���	��	
�������
��
�������	�������+��
�
	����
���$
����+����
�
��
	����$
		
��
���
!
��
������������


�
��	������
�
++
����+���
��
	����
����
�
��
�	����
	�	��$$����$
��
��	����+�
	�������
�
�����������	���5�

�����
�$
		
��
������
�	��
���
��
�����
��
!
��
���$
����1#��4���	��	
�����
		
		����
�
��
���
��
	��

1#��4���	��	
+���������	�	����������
������
��
		
		���
�
++
��	����
*�	�����	
�!��
	��+���	���������
��
/�

	�
�����	��$��1#��4��/
	�$�
!���	���$��!��
�������
�	������

�������
�%+.�+����	
������
�1
����-
	��

	����
	����+���
�����+������
	
�$�
!���	�
�
��	
	��
	��

�������	
��������	�	���������
�
�
��	
����	��
���

+
�
L�
!
��
��
����
����	������������	$
��+���
		
		�
��	��
!
��

��$�		���
�+������	�	�������)��
���
��

��+���
�����+����1#��4���	�$��!��
��
	�����
���
��������+��
��
�
�����	�������
��
$���
�����
�

��	
���
�
�
��/
����
��������@
�$
���	
����	����+��
���
�������

1������ 	����������	���	�:��	������		

��$��
�����
���
�$����
���	�
��	���	�
�
��
5
��+�����;���'
�	�	�$�$��
�����+����
	�
���)
����
��

"�
��	���	�)���	��++���
���
������
�5
��	�
��	���	�+����;�;��
	$
���!
�����

@/3+�	0	@/3+
	

.�
�3�

�
�����	����1��
������2�
�
/��5�:3�12=�������
	��/������� ���
����
�	$�����
�
������
�	�

��
����!
��"
��+����
����
�	
�
��
!
���+���	
���
�
������/�
�
�3�4."��
	���	���

�
	���
�
���������	����
���

3�4.���	��
���
������
����.�
	
����
�	��
!
�$��!��
���
�
���
����
�
�
��	
����	����+���
��������


		�	�����	�
����������
����
������
�����
��
!
��$�
����+���
�	$����
���������
�
+��	���

������	��	(�� 	(�-� �����	=�((>	����������	5		

"�
�����$
		
��
�������	��.�
��
�
	��#���	�
�����	�
��	���	�/
�
�$����	�
�����2
���
����;�&��#���	�
�����

���
�	�
�
��	
��������@��������/����)�."�
���1#��4���
�
�����$�
�
���$�
	
����
��+����
	�
	��
7���
����

$�����-�
	������	,�
�������-	
���%��)	=$�,
>	5		

.�
��%2��	���
��	
	�5��/�
��
��+���
�
++
��	��+�	
�!��
�7�
������+
�
	�
���
*�
��
��+
����	�����
���

$
		
��
���
�
����
���$��!��
	�����
��
����
$$���������	�5��/�
��
������
�$�
$
�
������+�+��
�
	�	�

+�����!
	��
���
���	
�!��
�$�
�������K
��
	������
��%2���
���
��	
�����
		
		��
�
����
	$��	
	����

���
�
������
����$
�
������
��	���	��)��
���
��:��5
�1#��4�=���
��%2������
��	��
�
��
����
���	�

����
���
�������+��
���
������
���
��)��	$
��+����
�
��	��+���
���+���
������	
��+�����%2��/�����
�

������
��������	��
$�����

�������������������������������������������������������������
��)��
���
��"
��+����/
	����
��
���	����1#��4��
	�$
����+���
�G�
/�	�
����	�$
�5
�
H���
��/�����+����/���
	
����+�

1
����-
	��,���
��/���������
����
��	�$
�����������
��������
��	�$
����������"
!
����

���
��������	�

��:$�
	
��=��

$��	��
���������
�
���O
�
����� �
�5�:$�
	
��=�
������$�
�
��

Page 155



)��
����0�)����'��������������)�)�


&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,� 0'.�

/!& 
��������	

/!&!  ������	���	�������	

./��	�
�
���	��
!
��

�����	��
�
�E���
��
���+��
�
	��/����
��
�+���������$
�
�����:+��������
��
�
��

/����1
���-
	�=�
���
�	
�	���!����+��
�
	��/����
����������$
�
�������

����
��
	���	��+��
�
���

+��
�
	�	�
�
�	��/�����.
��
�0 ���

������*	
�� ����
�)�)�(��)���)���+������
��������

�$
����������

������A
������	 ?���	����	

���
����A&
	

�����������	����	

���
���A&
	

� ���
�� ��
�	+
�� ���
�� ��
�	+
��

4���
���
�
��� �;&�6;;� �0�&;;� �(?��6;� ����;;�

4���
���
!
��
� F��;;0�;;;� F�&�;;;� F6&��;;;� F(��;;;�

%
�����
�
���:
!
�
�
=� �(6� (?� (6(� &��

�

%
�
���+���"
��+����	�
������	�
	���
�
������
��;&�6;;����$	�$
��
�����
������
����
���	
�
��
!
�	�:�/� 

/
����!
�
��	=��.��	��
$�
	
��	�	��
��(6����$	�$
���
���
�
����
������&�0�����!���
�	��.��
���
!
�

���	��
!
���+��
�
�����
7���
	��/����
��	�$
����������	��$�
��"
��+������
����$��!��
�������
�
*�	�����

G	��$$
�H�	
�!��
	��
�/

���
���"$
�
������	����.
�$�
�1

�	��
5����
��
�������
��	��$�
�����
��
/�

1
����-
	��	��$$����	
�!��
��%
�
�������
�	��
�
������$	�������
���0;�;;;����$	�$
��
�����:(6(�

$
���
�=�/�����������
���
���$
�������
��
�"
��+����	�
������"��
�6�0<��+��
�
����	�+��
�
	������
�


*�	������
����	
�	���
�	+
������+�������
��	�
����	������
�
�

�:��	����8
��	�
��
���#��+�
����
�5=��

(������	

3��		��
!
��
�+��
�
	������
��
�
�
�
�����"
��+����	�
������	�@�	���!
��F�����
	
�������
����
���
�
���

+��
�
	��+�����
�	�
�����
���
�	�
���� �� 	�
��������$���	����������
���+
�
	�$
��
����
	
�����8
��	�
���

#+����	��	��
�F�&�;;;��	�
�������
��������$	���
���
!
���
�	+
��
��+�������
��	�
����	��
����	���
�
+��
�

�����
���
/��
!
��
�+�����
��
��/
����

���
���������
���/
��
��
	�����
��
�
�����
�
���������
���
!
��
������
��
��/
��+������$	���
��
�
�

$��
���
����	�$$�
		
��
	�
��
	�����+���
��
	����	
�!��
	����
�������
�
�
�	��$�
��
��
/�	�
�������

.��	��
	��

��
		
		
�������
���+�����
	��
������$	�
	�$�		���
���
������
�����$
		���������"
��+�������

��
�
*�	�����G	��$$���H�	
�!��
	��
�/

���
���"$
�
������	����.
�$�
�1

�	��
���
$$������
������

	
����

@����
�����
����
���/�+���
��
�������
��	��$�
��"
��+�����.��$	�$�
!���	������$���+����1#��4���
!
�

+���
����
��
	�	�+������	�
		
		�
���:����
	������

��$�		���
�����
 ����1#��4��+������	�	����=��4��/��

�����
�
�������
��@����
�����
�/
	�
��
�������
��
�
�
��	
��@����
�����
	��+���
	
����$	��
�����
�

�
!�	
���
�
����
����
�
���	����
�
	������
	��
��!
��+�����%2���.�
��
	�������	�$$�
		�����+��
�
���
��

	��
�F�6��;;;�$
��
�����:�;�&��
�
��=���

.�
��!
�
����
��G�
/H��
!
��
�+�����
��
��/
��
	�
��
	�����+�"
��+����	�
������
������$�
�
��
���	�

F66;�;;;������
��
����
	
�:����
��	�$
������=��
���F0���;;;������
�	
�	���!�����
	
�:����
���$
������=����

/!&!" ���������	���	������	�����	

.�
����
���
�
���+��
�
	�	��
!
��

��+����
��
�
��	
�������
���+����
����
����	���
��$��
���
���	
�	��+�
�

"
��+����	�
�����/��������
�+�����
	�/
���
	���
���5
������
	��+���
�	$������
��/������	
�����

�����
�

	�
������.��	��	��
	
��$���
��������
�
��	�	��+��	
�	�
��8
��	�
��	�
��������
���+�
��+����)�."��
�
��)�."�

�
�
�$��!��
	���
����
���������+����$	��
	�/
���
	���
����
��+���
�	$�����	
�����
��
		���
�	�
�������

�������������������������������������������������������������
��)��
���
��	�$$�
		�����	���
�	
�
����������
���
���	
�	���!�����
	
	��
	���
�	
�!��
���
��+���	���
�	
�������
���

$
������������
��
����
	
��	�
��
/�	
�!��
��+���/������
�
���	�$$�
		�����	�����
$$���
��
��

Page 156



)��
����0�)����'��������������)�)�

0'�� 
&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,�

.��$	��	����8
��	�
��	�
�����
	���
��������	�
�����+���
�����/
���@����
�����
��
��������5
��
����	����
�

	����
����5
��+����8
��	�
��/
�
����	��
�
��
	��
���������
��!
��+��	
�	�
��
		������
�	�
������.��	�

��+���
�����/
	�
*��
��
��+����)�."�
���
�@�	�
������
��
� �
$�
	
�����
�	$
��+���������	�
��
	�
��

"
��+�����.�
��
	�������+��
�
	��$
��
����+���!
�
��	�
������
	��+�	�
������	
�	��	�	��/�����.
��
�0 ���

������*	���'����(����)���������
����)��������(
)���������

"���)�
��,������(������
��

����&����	 4� )	 /��	 ��
		

$
�5
��

��
		

���$��++�

/���� �	 3;;	

�
		���
����5�� &(�0<� ;��<� 6�6<� ��?<� ��&<� (���<�

+�����������5�� ����<� ;��<� �;��<� ��&<� ��&<� ���(<�

+���������&�5�� ;�0<�  � ���<� ��(<� ;�0<� ?�?<�

+����&����(�5��  � ���<� (��<� ;�0<�  � 0�?<�

+����(����0�5��  � ;��<� ;�6<� ;��<�  � ���<�

+����0�����;�5��  �  � 6�;<� ��0<�  � ��0<�

1��
���
���;�5��  �  � ���<�  �  � ���<�

.#.4�� (6��<� ��?<� &���<� 6�6<� &�;<� �;;�;<�

����
�	��
������
����$�
*
�����������
�	���
�������������

�

.
��
�0 �������
�
	���
����	���	
�	�
��"
��+����/������
����
�������
�	�
������/��������
�!���
�
��+�"
��+����

:	��
�6�<�/�������5��
�����<�/������&5�=��1�	��/�����/
�5������
�	�
������
������

��
���	���
�+��+�


���	�
������	
�	�
�
�+��
�
	�����/
�5����/
!
���
	��	���	
�!
��
�����
��	����
��	�
����	�:
������$
������
��


��8
��	�
�=�
�	�I

��
����������/�������!
������
�	�
�����+����/������� &5���+���
�	�
������"����
����
�

�

	��
��
����������/������
!
��+����+����
��
/
��:��	�����$�����;5��+������
�	�
����=��
���!����
����
���

�+���
	
�/�����	
��
�	����	����$
�5����
������

����
�	�
������4���	��
	��
���	�
������	
�	�
�
�+��
�
	�����

�	
��
�	�
	�/�����/
�5��/�����$����(;<��+�
���	�
������	
�	����5�������$
�5�
����
�	�
�������

.
��
�0 &���
�	�
�
	���
	
��
����
���
������
�	$���	������$
		
��
������
�	�������
��+�
��
		�
���

�
����
�����	�
��
���
	
�������
��
����
�
���+��
�
	��+���"
��+�����+��(6����$	�$
���
���4���	���
�+��+�


������$	�
�
���5
�������
��
���
����	�����	�	���
	�����	��
�&�0�����!���
�	�
���!����
����
�	�
������4�5
��

+����
����.
��
�0 &��	���
��	��
���0�$
�$�
�
�
�+��
�
	������
�	

5�������$
�5�
��
��
����
�	�
�����

���

�
���4	�	������
��$
�5��
$
�������
���
�
���+��
�
	�	������
�
�/������
�	����������	
�	�
��"
��+����

/������
7���
�
�������&; �(;�	$
�
	�:
���/�����
�
���J��;<�
���	$
�
	�+�����	
��
���	
�	=��%
�
���

+��
�
	�	�
		��
���
���
��$
�5�����	�
!
��
��
��	��/������
���
��+�	$
�
	�/
�
����	��
��
����

2����
�0 ������	��
�
	���
���+���
��������.
��
�0 &����
��
$��	��/����/�
�
��	
�	��+�"
��+����	�
�����

���������
�+�����
�����
����
��+���
�	$�����	
�����
��
		���
�	�
�����:2����
�0 ��	��/	���
�/��
��

�
����
����/�
�
�2����
�0 &�	��/	�"
��+���������

�
���
�
��=��.��	���	�����������	��
	
�����
���
�
�
�

�
���
	��+�$�$��
�����/��������
���	�
��
��
����
����
��	��/���������
���

��	��
�@�	��
��	�
	�


$$��$��
�
�:	����
	����	�
������	
�	�+�����������+���
���!
��4!����
	�
��
	�����+�$����
��
		����"
��+�����

���
��
		�����
	�$
		�������
��	�
����	�
�������
�/
�=���

������*	���-�������������������� ����
�)������
�����������(������)��������(
)��#�$
�&�

����&����	 4� )	 /��	 ��
		

$
�5
��

��
		

���$��++�

/���� �	 3;;	

�
		���
����5�� ���� &� �0� �� (� �0;�

+�����������5�� (�� �� &&� (� (� ���

+���������&�5�� ��  � ��� �� �� &��

+����&����(�5��  � (� �(� ��  � �?�

+����(����0�5��  � �� �� ��  � &�

+����0�����;�5��  �  � �&� 0�  � ���

1��
���
���;�5��  �  � 6�  �  � 6�

.#.4�� �00� ?� ��0� �0� �;� &�0�

����
�	��
������
����$�
*
�����������
�	���
�������������

Page 157



)��
����0�)����'��������������)�)�


&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,� 0'0�

2����
�0 (�	��/	���
�	$����
$$��
��������
�	�
������1�	��	�
������	
�	�:
������60<=����
�+����/
	���+�

��
�	�
�����:��	��$��	����	���
���
�	�
������	����
�
�������
�

	�
���
��
��+�"
��+���=����/
!
�����
�
��	�


�����
�
��
����
��
		����
	�+���	�
������	
�	�+����

	�����/
	���+�"
��+�����/����$
�$�
�
$$��
������

��
�	�
�����+������
�

	���
����+
���
		���5
������/
�5�
������
���5
���������!
�:?�<��+�/
�5
�	����
�+����

��
�/
	�=��"��
�(0<��+��
�����$	�
�
�+��
�
	�����
$$��
�����
�	�
�����/
	�������
�������
�4(��

���	�������
����
�
�����	�$�������
����
	
�+��
�
	�	��
$�
	
���
��G
!
�
�
��
�H�
���;�&��
�
����
!
�	��


�����������
5
������
�������+�����
����	�����
�
����	����
	�	

	��
��!
��
��������5
/�	
���
�
���

+��
�
	�	�
�
��
	
�����$�
	
����
��$
����
�
�+����
���	
�!��
	��
�����
�
��	�
!
�����5
���������
���
�
���

/������	
����+����
��

����������+�����

.�
��
��$
�5�
��"
��+����	�
�����/������
�
�$
���
��$
�5�����
�/�	
���
�	+
�	�	

5����+�

�$
�5����������

�
�	����+��
���:
	$
��
����+����8
��	�
�=��'�
��
	�	��������
�
+��
�
�	���
����	�	�
���/����8
��	�
���

/���������
�������	�	�F��&;����$
�5�+���
��
��:����
	��,�F���;��+�$
������$���
=��4		���������	�	�����+�

$
�5������
��
�
��"
��+����/������
�
�
�
�
���	��F?;�;;;�$
��
�����:�;�&�+����
	=��/�����/�������	
�

/�����
�
����������
�+����
��

 ��������
��
��)�(��)�

����
����

�����
�	

��+������
�+��
�
	�	���
��
�	����+��
���$��$��������+�$��
���
��	�
������	
�	�/����	

5�

������!
�
���$
�5�
������

����
�	�
������.��	������	
�+��
	���$���
����	�+�����
�	�I
��+��
��$
�5��
7���
���

��
�������
���
�
����
��
��$
�5�
���
����	
7�
���$�		���
��

������
	������$
�5�������	��

�	�/������

�

	��
��
�/
�5������	�
��
��+���
�	�
������.��	��		�
��	�������	��		
��+����
��������	���
$�
����

��/
!
�������	����
�
	�����������
���
�$��
���
��
++
�������
�
���	��������
��
��$
�5��
��
	�����
�����

	�I
��
�������

����	��

��$
�5����
!
��
��
�����	��$��	�����
��	���
�
�����������
�
+��
��
��
���
��


������������4�	����
�
!������+��	
�	�/�����
�@�	���/����

����
���!
�	�+���������
��
��$
�5��$�
!
�������
�
��


���!
�	�+����$
�5��������
���
���	
�	�/�������5���+���
�	�
������
���
���
����/
�5���	�

���+����!
������

���
�	��
�������
��
�
����
���5
��������!
���
�	
/�
�
�����	
�
����
�����
��
	���
���	5��+������
����
��
�

���$
�5�/������
��
		�

	������!
����
��4	�	�������
�����
���+��
����	
�	�
��"
��+�������������$����


�������0;�$
���
���+���
��
��$
�5��
$
�����/
	��
$$
��
��0;�	$
�
	��/������	�������
����
�������
�

�
�
�����
��/������
��
�
�
�
�����
�� ��
���$
�������	
�!��
�:	
�	���!�����
	
=���

/!( 
�����	������	

/!(!  1��.��	�����	

%
�
���+����
�����
!
���
	����/��	����+��
���������
�
����

�	��/�����+���
*
�$�
��
��
���	��6;<�����

	
�

���$
		
��
������
�	��
�����
����
����������	�
����	������
�-
	���+�����
���
�

��
�/

���;;(L;0�


����;��L���:�
	
�����#���+����
	=��.��	�������
	�
!
���
��
������

	
	����	$
��+�������
	��	����
	����
�

��
������������+�$
����
�
������
�"
!
����

������
����	���������/����
�
	�
������$	��+�-
	���+�����
���

	�
����	�
�
�	��/�����2����
�0 ��
����

.
��
�0 (��

4$
���+����
�	�������
!
����������;;6L;������/����
	��������
�����	$��
��+���
�
���������
�
		�����
���

	

�	���5
�������������
��
��
�������	��
�
�
��
�/�
��
����
��
�
	�/�����
�
	������
	�	

������
�
������
	��

����	����+��
�
	�	�$�����
�����)
�/��5��
���
	�$
����+��
!
��$������	�3�

��-
	�
����
���>����	
�����

"��
�
���:�>"=�
��������.
�����
����������
		�:�.��=��
����
��>��
��1
�5
�	�"�������
���+����/
��

�
�
	���
���
�
�������	
�!
����	�������
�
	��.�
�3�

��-
	�
����>"�:$����	�
�����1
�����;�;=�+��
�
	�	�

��
���
�
��������
����	����
�

�/�������	
����(�<�
��$

5����
	��
�/

���;;��
����;�?�:
��
�
��+�&��<�

$
��
����=��
���&6<��++�$

5�:��?<�$
��
����=��/����
��
!
�
�
����/����
�
��+�&�;<�$
��
������

.�
��.����
����
��>��
��1
�5
�	�	�����:���	���
�������
+��$����	�
��4$�����;�&=��	
	�
�	
��
	��+�


��������	�
�
���	����+�
�
����/�������
����	
��.�
��
	����������/���!
��
	�+����;��<�$
��
��������

&�?<�$
��
������1��
��
�
��	��+���
��.������/����
�
	�
�
�	��/�����.
��
�0 0��

Page 158



)��
����0�)����'��������������)�)�

0'1� 
&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,�

	
�������*	
���--�����
������
�������.����
��/�����)������

�

������*	����--�����
��������
�������
�������.����
��/�����)������#�$$�	�$
���������&�

�������	-
�����-�	 �:�:A��	��	

�:��A��	

�::9A�:	��	

�:�:A��	

�::!A:"	��	

�:��A��	

�::!A:"	��	

�:��A��	

	 $
��
����� $
��
����� .#.4�� $
��
�����

���	�����
���:.
�$�
�1

�	�D��
�5/
�=� 0�6<� ���<� 06<� ���<�

"
!
����

������
� ?��<� ���?<� ��&<� �(��<�

#��
�����	�������
�� ��6<� �&�&<� �(�<� �&�0<�

�D)�"�:������8
��	�
�=� ��6<� ?�&<� 0(<� ��(<�

"�����3����
	�
�	���
�:
*�����
�5/
�=� ����<� �&��<� ��0<� ���0<�

)�����"��
�	
�� ��;<� �;�?<� 0�<� ��0<�

#K��4��� ��6<� �;�?<� �?<� 6��<�

�

������*	*��0���
���-����1�����-���
����2�����3������� ��)��#�
��������
��)�����!������$
�&�

��������	�����
��	 �:�����	 �:�����	 �:����:!�	 �:����:!�	

	 ���
�� $
��
����� ���
�� $
��
�����

G���	$
���������	��
����H� �(<� ��&<� &&<� ��(<�

G3���
��	�
������H� (6<� &�?<� ((<� ���<�

G"��������������	��
����H� �<� ;��<� �0<� ;�6<�

G3���
���������H� &0<� &�;<� ��<� ��;<�

4K��43�� ��<� ��&<� �?<� ��&<�

�

�;;

��;

�(;

��;

��;

�;;

��;

�(;

��;

��;

�;;( ;0 �;;0 ;� �;;� ;6 �;;6 ;� �;;� ;? �;;? �; �;�; �� �;�� ��

(�� 	������-�
�	��	��������	��	4���	��	��- ���	� �����	�::!A:"B�::

���	����1
���"�
����	 "
!
����

������
�"�
����	 #��
�����	����>��
��"�
����	

�
���D�)���"��
�	
��>��
��"�
����	 "�����3����
	�
�	���
�"�
����	 )�����"��
�	
��"�
����	

Page 159



)��
����0�)����'��������������)�)�


&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,� 0'&�

����	���

��+������
�����	����+��
�
	�	���
����	�������
�
	��+����/���
�
��������	��
�
������������
�

��
�
�
���4	�	�����+����
��

��+��
�
	�	�+���"
��+�����
!
��

��$�����
���	����
�������
������+���	������

�
�
	���>"�
����.���+����
	9�

• �;�&�����;�6�,��
$
��+�����
�
�����	���������/����
�
	�:��(<�
���
���D�)������
	��"��
�	
��

	�
����	=�����>"�
!
�
�
��+�$

5�
����++�$

5�:&�;<�$
��
����=E�

• �;���D��;�?�,��>"�
!
�
�
��
�
�:&�;<�$
��
����=E��

• �;�;�����;�&�,��
$
��+�����>"�
!
�
�
��
�
�:&�;<�$
��
����=����
���.���
!
�
�
��
�
��
��!
��

+������
�+����
��������	�
�
���	�:��&<�$
��
����=E�
����

• �;�&�����;(&�,��
$
��+�����;�&��.���
!
�
�
��
�
�:��&<�$
��
����=�����;(&��.���
!
�
�
��
�
�

:��&<�$
��
����=���

.
��
�0 ��	��/	���
��
	�������$��+��
��+��
�
���
��"
��+����+��������;(&��
		��������
��"
��+����	�
�����

/������$
������;�?������������
���
��
����
����:
!
�
�
��
�=��
�
����
	�/
���
	���
���$��
���
�
���+���

�
��$
�5����
����
�	�
������2����
	�
�
�������
��+�����;�&�����;�?�+�������	��
�����$��$�	
	��
	��
�
���

+��
�
	�	��
!
��

���
���
�����������
�����
���

��
7��!
�
��������	���

��+�������	��
��
���
���
��$
�5�

�
$
������������
����
��$�
		��
�+
�����7���5�����

������*	4�� ����
�)������
���������������
����������(���������#�	������������
��&�

"���)�
���$
���
����������)�0-�-2 �5�1������
����������

C��
	 (�� 	�
���	 D��
)	��
	��	�������	

	 4))>4�� %4��O� %4��O�

�;�&� �;&�6;;� �(6� ��0�

�;�(� ��;��;;� ��6� ��?�

�;�0� ����6;;� ���� �&&�

�;��� ��&�(;;� 6;?� �&6�

�;�6� �&;�&;;� 6&�� �(��

�;��� �&6�&;;� 60&� �(��

�;�?� �((�0;;� 66�� �0;�

�;�;� �0��0;;� 6?�� �00�

�;��� �0���;;� ��;� �0?�

�;��� ��(��;;� �(;� ��&�

�;�&� �6;�6;;� �0?� ����

�;�(� �6��6;;� �6?� �6;�

�;�0� �����;;� �?�� �6(�

�;��� ����?;;� ?�6� �6��

�;�6� �?0�;;;� ?&�� ����

�;��� &;��;;;� ?0�� ��0�

�;�?� &;6�;;;� ?60� ��?�

�;&;� &�&�;;;� ??(� �?��

�;&�� &���?;;� ��;��� �?��

�;&�� &�(��;;� ��;&�� �;;�

�;&&� &&;��;;� ��;0;� �;&�

�;&(� &&��(;;� ��;��� �;6�

�;&0� &(���;;� ��;��� ��;�

�;&�� &(6�6;;� ���;(� ��(�

�;&6� &0&�&;;� ������ ��6�

�;&�� &0��6;;� ���&?� ��;�

�;&?� &�(��;;� ���0�� ��(�

�;(;� &�?�&;;� ���6�� ��6�

�;(�� &6(�0;;� ����?� �&;�

�;(�� &6?�0;;� ���;0� �&&�

�;(&� &�(�(;;� ����;� �&��

�

Page 160



)
�
�



��

�
�0

�)
�

�
��

'�
�

�
�

�
�

��
��

�
�
�
�

)
�)

�

0
'2

�

&

'�
�



'�

�

�

(
)
�
�


�
�

�
�

�)


�


��

�
*
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�

�


�+


�
�

�
�

,
�

�

�
��
�
��
�*
	�
��
 �

��
�

�)
��
��
��


�
��
�
��
�
(
�
�
��
�
�
)
�(



)
�
�

��
�
��
�
��
�#
�
�
��


�
�

&�

�

Page 161



)
�
�



��

�
�0

�)
�

�
��

'�
�

�
�

�
�

��
��

�
�
�
�

)
�)

�


&
'�

�


'�

�

�

(
)
�
�


�
�

�
�

�)


�


��

�
*
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�

�


�+


�
�

�
�

,
�

0
'3

�

�

�
��
�
��
�*
	�
��
 �

��
�

�)
��
��
��


�
��
�
��
�
(
�
�
��
�
�
)
�(



)
�
�

��
�
��
�
��
�#
�
�
��


�
�

&�

�

Page 162



)
�
�



��

�
�0

�)
�

�
��

'�
�

�
�

�
�

��
��

�
�
�
�

)
�)

�

0
'


�
�


&
'�

�


'�

�

�

(
)
�
�


�
�

�
�

�)


�


��

�
*
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�

�


�+


�
�

�
�

,
�

�

�
��
�
��
�*
	�
��
 �

��
�

�)
��
��
��


�
��
�
��
�
(
�
�
��
�
��


��

���
�
�
�

�
��

�)
��
�
��
�

�
��
#�

�
��


�
�

&�

Page 163



)��
����0�)����'��������������)�)�


&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,� 0'

�

/!/ ������
�	����������	

%
�
���+��
�
	�	�
���
	���
�
����	�	�+���"
��+�����
!
��

��������
�����$�����
�
	���
�
	��+���
�


���������
�
+��	��+���
�	�
������.��	��	�
�	��$��+�
��
		
		�
�����
5�����	
��+�
!
��
��
��
�
�������!
���

���
����
�
���+��
�
	�	�+����
����
�
��������
��
����
����	
���
�
+��	��.�
�
��������
		
		�
���

������
	�
		
		�
����+���
����
��
�
+��	�
		���
�
��/�����
��
����
������$���
��
	��.��$	�+����"
��+����


�
����
����
		��
������
�
�
�
��
�
+��	��
	
�������
�41�$

5��/�������$	����"
��+�����
�����
�
�
�����

�1�$

5����������	��#$
������

���	�
		��
��
	��;�?��/�������	����������
��������;����

.�
�
��������
		
		�
�����
	�����������
�!
����
��$
�
�������	�	���	
����
��
	�:$�
�+����+

	��+
�
	�


����
��$
�5��
!
��
	=����	�	L�
�
+��	�����������	���������
����
���
�
��
�����
��	
������+�


�!�����
��
�����/��
��
����������$
��	��
���
		
		�
����+���
�
++
��	�����
*��
!
��
	���

/!/!  +
���	���	��
%�	

�
	���	��+�"
��+����	�
������
����
���
�
��	�	�+�����
�
���+��
�
	�	�
�
�
����
�
�����
�����$
��I������

	�	�
�������������������
�3�4."�
���3�4.�����
�	�:G3�1�I��
	H=��.�
����
��	�
������
����
����	�

�
+��
������
��	��+�3�4."�
���3�4.��I��
	���
����!
����
���	�
��
 �
	
���
����
��	���
���+�
�������
�

�
�
���+��
�
	�	��.�
�/��
���
����
���������
	�I��
	���
���
$�
	
���
�$�		���
���	�����������+�	�
����	�

��
���
������$	��	����"
��+���������������L+������
	
��$���
����������
���	����������
��8
��	�
����

'���
	$��������
�����$�
���@����
�����
	�
�
�
*��
��
��+������
����������
�����
�	�������$��
�����

��+���
�����+���������3�4."�:/������	�
��
��
�����	���=�
���3�4.��:�
���
������
��=����������	
���
�

��++
�
����
!
�	��+��
�
����+�3�4."�
���3�4.��
$$��$��
�
����"����
�����
*�	������
������$	�
���@����
��

���
	�
�
�
�	��
*��
��
��������!
����	�	�
����
	
�+����
	�+�����������
	�+�����
�	�
������
����
����

#����������
	���
������
�����$	���L+������
�	�
������
����
���
�
�
�@�	�
������
+�
���	�
�����+��
�
	�	��

�	���������
���
�����$	������	������
���
��
	��"����
�����+��
�
	���
������$	�
�
�
����
�
�������
��
����
���

�	����
*�	������
������$	�
	�
�����
��4		��$����	��	
��������	�
�@�	��
���
�
�
	�+����/	9��

• 1��
�	$�����+�"
��+����	�
�����
��
		��	�
	��
$���
��
��!
�:
���	��(;<��+�	�
������	
�	�
�
�

+��
�
	�����$
�5�
��
�=��

• %
�
���+��
�
	�	�
�
����!
��
��+�����;�&�
7��!
�
��	�����;���+����
	��+������	�	�
����/����

3�4."L3�4.�����$	L���
	��

• 6�0<��+�"
��+����	�
��������$	�
�
�+��
�
	�������!
���+�������
���
���	�
����	�,��
�����$	�
�
�
��
��

�����
�"
��+�����
����
����
���
������������

• �0<��+�"
��+����	�
��������$	���
�	+
��+�����
��,���$	�
�
��
��!
��+������
��
�������� �
	���
�����

�
���*�+�����
�	�
������
����
����
���
��
�������!
�
��	���
��
��
		���
�	�
�������	
�+��&�

• .�
��
�
�������6�0<��+����$	�
�
�
�������
������+���
�	+
�	�+�������
�����
	�
����
/���

�
�
�
�
�����$	�,�	��
��+���
	
�
�
�
		��
�����
��
		���
�	�
���������
���	��
�
�
����
�
������
��

���$	�
��
		������
�	�
�����
�������������

• '
��@����
�����
	�+���I��
 �� I��
���!
�
��	�
�
�����
�@�	�
������
+�
����
�������	����

����
	������
	����	��
	������

��	$
��+��
�������
��
���

• �
���@����
�����
	��
��!
��+����3�4."�
���3�4.��
�
�	����
��������
�@�	�
������
$$���
�

���	�	�
���
$$��
���+����
���
����
�����$	��

�������������������������������������������������������������
&�4�@�	�
��+����
��
	
������
�
����+����
	�$�
	
��
������

�	��."��
	

���9�P	
!
�
��	����
	��
!
�	��/����
���/���
�


�������;<��+��
/��	
�
����
	�+������	��
�������;<��	���
�	+
��
��+�����
���	
��
����;<��
/����
�
�
�
��

:)
	����??�E�'��	���
���3
���
�
���3��I
�
I���;;�=Q�,�
��
�������
��0<��	�
���/
�������
�	+
��+�����
����
+�
������

��
�+�
7�
�����7�
�����
����
	���
����	��+���	�	
�!��
	���������"
��+�����
���$9LL///�5��	�����

�	�
���5L$��!
�
L�
!
��L��	����
��	L��	����
��;;(L��B;;(�����	

Page 164



)��
����0�)����'��������������)�)�

0'
�� 
&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,�

/!/!" �����	

.�
�
		
		�
����
5
	������
�������������
$��
��
����$
�
�������	�	��+���
�	�
������)��
���/
��
��	��
�
�

+���+
�
	�
�����
����$
�
�������	�	���
5������
��
����
		��$�������
��
���
�������
����
����$
�
�������	�	�

������
�����	��$$����
��"
��+����
�
��
���
�����
�������
���
!
��
��.��	��	����	��
�
��$
		���	������

'��������
����

'
$��
����	�	��
����
�
��+��������	�
�����	��
��$����	�/
�
���	��		
��

���
��������	��
$�����'�	�	�������
�

���	���������
����
!
��$�
�����	�	���������
����
���;<�:��	��"�
�
���	�4�D��=����(;<�:��	��"�
�
����'=�

�+����	���������
����
!
��$�
�����	�	�
���
��
���/
��
�+���	���
������:F��05�+���

����$����=��.��
��

��	�	�
	��	
�������
�
��������
		
		�
��	�
�
�
	�+����/	9��

 ������
�!�

• #$�������,���	������"
��+����	�
�����	��
� � F(�;��

• #$�������,�/
	���+�"
��+����.���
�� � F0����

 ������
�"�

• #$�������,���	������"
��+����	�
�����	��
� � F0�&��

• #$�������,�/
	���+�"
��+����.���
�� � F�����

 ������
�'�

• #$�������,���	������"
��+����	�
�����	��
� � F��&��

• #$�������,�/
	���+�"
��+����.���
�� � F�����

.�
�
��������
		
		�
���$��!��
	��
	���	�+�����
�+�����
��
��+���
	
���	�	��)��
����������
�����


���/
��
��	�������
��+����
���
�7��	�������
7���
��+�����
�	�
�����
��L����
��$
�5����.#'����$
�	
�����

����������	����������#$����	����
	��+�0;<��	�
��
��������
���
$��
����	�	�+�����
�
		
		�
���:�
	
�����

�
���	��
�
�
$$�
�	
�����-
�.43������&��&�&=���

 ����
��
����������
����

#$
�
�������	�	��
!
��

���
����
�
���	����
		��$����	��
	
������
$��
����	�	���
��!
��+����'��1������


*$
��
��
�������
��	����
	��
	�+����/	9�

• 4���
���
���
�
��
�
����0<��+��
$��
����	�	�$
��
������

• �
���������	����,�
�������
��?<��+��
$��
����	�	�
!
����;��

�	��

• �
���������	����,�
�������
���&<��+��
$��
����	�	�
!
���&;��

�	��

4�0<�$�
������	�
��
�������
	
�+����
	����
���/�+����� ��������	5��#$����	����
	��+�(;<��	�
��
�����

�$
�
�������	�	�:�
	
������
���	��
�
�
$$�
�	
�����-
�.43������&��&�&=��

/!/!& 2������	

����
����
�������
�
���������
�
+��	����
�	
�
��
�
���+��
�
	�	��
!
��

���	
��+���
���	�
�����	��
	��
	�

�����
�
�	����
�������
�
��/�����
	$
��������
��
����
����
����+���
�	�
�����:��
��"
��+������	
�+=���
��
�

��
�$�
	
���!
��
��+��
�
+��	�:�K�=��	���
�	
�
�+���

����/����!
��������	�	��
	������������++
�
���$�
	
���

!
��
	��+���	�	�:�K'=��
���
	�
��
	�����
��$�
	
���!
��
	�:)�K=�
����
�
+�����	���
���	�:�'�=���

.
��
�0 6�	��/	��K����K'��)�K�
����'��+�����
��/��"
��+����	�
�����	��
��$����	�+���"�
�
���	�4����
���'��

2����
	�0�0 0����	��/����
��
�
��	��+���
�
		
		�
�������������.�
�	$��������������++���
����:.��=��

�������4������	�
���4�
��	�	��+�1��
��	
��'�	�	�
����
�
+��	�:41'�=��
��
	�+���������+���
�	�
�����

���
������$����	��

.�
��
	���	��+���
�
��������
		
		�
��������
�
���
��#$��������
	���
�����
���'����
�����
	
�������
�

��/
	����	�	�:�
$
���������	�
�
����+����
��

	��
��
���?&�������&=��4	�
����$
��	����
��������

Page 165



)��
����0�)����'��������������)�)�


&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,� 0'
.�


		
		�
��	��
!
�
�	���	
����
�	
�	���!�����
	
��
�
���+��
�
	�	�:�
	
�������
���
���$
�������
��

"
��+����	�
����=��.�
��
	�����+����	�
		
		�
����	�	��/�����.
��
�0 ������
		
��
���
���
���
�
�����
��
�

��
 ��
���$
�������	
�!��
�/������
	����������!
	�
���/
���'���
�/

����(&�
���;�?��:
����
���	������

	�
�����	��
=��

������*	6�� ����
�)������
����
�
(���������(�����������
���
���
(�����
����(���������#��
	������������
��&�

'
������)�����������
��������������
����+����(�����

!�����������������������+������)���
����)��
��$
$7�����$
$��������

�� ���
�	�������	����	 $
�����	2� ��			

��	����	

$
�����	2� ��			

��	/�������	

1��	$
�����	

2� ��	

/������A����	


����	

� �K'� �K�� )�K� �'��

#$�������,���	������	�
�����	��
� � � � �

"�
�
����4� ��0&(� ������� ��;��� ��?&�

"�
�
������ ���;�� ������� (�;�0� ��(6�

"�
�
����'� �;����� ������� ��&&0� ���&�

#$�������,�/
	���+�"
��+����.���
�� � � � �

"�
�
����4� ?�;��� ������� &�00(� ��&?�

"�
�
������ ���;�;� ������� ��0&�� ���(�

"�
�
����'� �&��(�� �������  �&;� ;�?0�

�

������*	8�� ����
�)������
����
�
(���������(�����������
���
���
(�����
�����������+���������#
��	�����������
��&�

'
������)�����������
��������������
����+����(�����

!�����������������������+������)���
����)��
��$
$7�����$
$��������

�� ���
�	�������	����	 $
�����	2� ��			

��	����	

$
�����	2� ��			

��	/�������	

1��	$
�����	

2� ��	

/������A����	


����	

� �K'� �K�� )�K� �'��

#$�������,���	������	�
�����	��
� � � � �

"�
�
����4� ��0&(� ?�&��� ��6��� ��(&�

"�
�
������ ���;�� ?�&��� 6�0� ��;��

"�
�
����'� �;����� ?�&���  ?�(� ;�?��

#$�������,�/
	���+�"
��+����.���
�� � � � �

"�
�
����4� ?�;��� ?�&��� �0(� ��;&�

"�
�
������ ���;�;� ?�&���  ��6�(� ;��(�

"�
�
����'� �&��(�� ?�&���  &�?&;� ;�6;�

�

�

Page 166



)��
����0�)����'��������������)�)�

0'
�� 
&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,�

�

�

�������*	*���//7��������!��
�������)�!3'"��� ������
�!��� ����
�)������
�����������
��
�

�������.��������	����������	��	�&�	+
�����
�	������=+��>

�������
	�	��������-	���
	%������� 3  	?���� (��� (�� 

.�
!
��.��
 ��0��� 0��0�� &���?�

K
����
��$
�
�������	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

>	
����
��
	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

%������'��	���������D�1
���
�
��
  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

��%���� *8"��	 "8�"�	 �8�#9	

�������
	�	��&�
	���
	%������� 3  	?���� (��� (�� 

.�
!
��.��
 ��&?(� �0?� 0&0�

K
����
��$
�
�������	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

>	
����
��
	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

%������'��	���������D�1
���
�
��
  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

��%���� �8�9!	 *"9	 "�"	

/������� 3  	?���� (��� (�� 

.�
!
��.��
 ��6;�� ����0� ��;&��

K
����
��$
�
�������	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

>	
����
��
	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

%������'��	���������D�1
���
�
��
  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

��%���� �8':�	 �8##"	 �8:�#	

$
�����	�����
	$
�����
	������� 3  	?���� (��� (�� 

�
!
��
  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

#$
�
�������	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

��!
	��
�����	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

3�
��L	��	���  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

��%���� �		 �		 �		

��&�
	%�������	������� 3  	?���� (��� (�� 

%
!
��$
��������������	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

1�+	/E��1���	�?$3�+ �8':�	 �8##"	 �8:�#	

+�+3; 3  	?���� (��� (�� 

��
	
���K
��
��+�.�
�	$������������

����������	/�������	=+��> ��8#�#	 '8''#	 !8*�9	
�
�
+��	�
$$

��
	�$�	���!
�����
�	��/���
���	�	�
$$

��
	��
�
��!
�����
�	

4���
����
	�
�
�$�
	
���!
��
	���	�����
������;�;������;�;�$���
	
 

$�% ��	3�������

;��� 	@���
�����	,�����- 3;;	?���� (��� (�� 

�
!
��
  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

#$
�
�����'�	�	 ��(�?�  �� ��(�?�

��!
	��
���'�	�	 (�;�0�  �� (�;�0�

%
!
��$
��'�����������	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

3�
��L"��	�����
��
��	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

1�+	�?$3�+ #8"�!	 �		 #8"�!	

����
� 	@���
�����	,�����-.	+
�����
� 3;;	?���� (��� (�� 

�
!
��
  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

#$
�
�������	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

��!
	��
�����	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

%
!
��$
��'�����������	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

3�
��L"��	�����
��
��	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

1�+	�?$3�+ �		 �		 �		

'
���
��3�!
���
���2������9�)�� .�
�	$���

�����
���.
*��
!
��
	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

+�+3;�

���
��.�
�	$��������
� ��0&(�  �� ��0&(�

-��
���������2��
��
	  ��  ��  ��
'�	�	�
$$

��
	�$�	���!
�����
�	���/���
��
!
��
	�
����
!
��$
��������������	�
$$

��
	��
�
��!
�����
�	����;�;�$���
	

4���
����
	�
�
�$�
	
���!
��
	���	�����
������;�;������;�;�$���
	

3�� ����	��	?��������	�����	���	/�������

3�

����	
�3
	
	  �� ����
		
		
� .>�4��K� ������

����������++���
���9�'��	��
��>	
�	�:'��������= ��0��� )��	
  �������������� ����
		
		
�

����������++���
���9�'��	��
��>	
�	�:#��
�= ��&?(� ���
��4���M�
����  �������������� ����
		
		
�

����������++���
���9���	��
		�>	
�	�
������!��
�	 ��6;�� C����
��4���
��
  �������������� ����
		
		
�

-��
���������2��
��
	�:�����
���.
*
������
!
��
	=  �� ����
		
		
� 4����
��	  �������������� ����
		
		
�

$
�����	2� ��	��	/�������	=$2/> ��8#�#	 �
��
������  �������������� ����
		
		
�

���
��.�
�	$��������
� ��0&(� �
��  �������������� ����
		
		
�

$
�����	2� ��	��	�����	=$2�> #8"�!	 -��
����$
��	  �������������� ����
		
		
�

�2�(3;;	�?$3�+� 2��
���K� ������

1��	$
�����	2� ��	=1$2> #8:*�	 )�K ��;��

/������	��	����	(����	=/�(> ��9�	 /�( ��9�	
'�	�	�
����
�
+��	 ������
$$

��
	 �$�	���!
�����
�	

4���
����
	 �
�
�$�
	
���!
��
	���	�����
������;�;������;�;�$���
	

)��
9�.��	��
��
�������
	���	�	�
����
�
+��	�/�����
�
��
���
����������
	���
����$�
	
��
��������
��	
��+���������
�	$����
$$�
�	
�	 �����
��
��/���

	��
�/�
�
����
��	
������	����$��	$
����.�
�
��
��
�	���
����
��	����+��
�����	�	�
����
�
+� �	 ��	��
��+�/������
������
�$�
	
��
��������
��	
�

+�����-�
�
����	��	 ���
��
	
����
�
�
��	 �	�$�
	
��
��
��!
���
	�)#.�$��!��
�
�������

	��
��+�!
��
�+������
��
���	�����������
��	
��
	 ���
�	��


�
	�	�+����
��	 ���	�

Page 167



)��
����0�)����'��������������)�)�


&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,� 0'
0�

�

�

�������*	4���//7��������!��
�������)�!3'"��� ������
�!��� ����
�)������
�����������
����

�������.��������	����������	��	�&�	+
�����
�	������=+��>

�������
	�	��������-	���
	%������� 3  	?���� (��� (�� 

.�
!
��.��
 ��0��� 0��0�� &���?�

K
����
��$
�
�������	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

>	
����
��
	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

%������'��	���������D�1
���
�
��
  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

��%���� *8"��	 "8�"�	 �8�#9	

�������
	�	��&�
	���
	%������� 3  	?���� (��� (�� 

.�
!
��.��
 ��&?(� �0?� 0&0�

K
����
��$
�
�������	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

>	
����
��
	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

%������'��	���������D�1
���
�
��
  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

��%���� �8�9!	 *"9	 "�"	

/������� 3  	?���� (��� (�� 

.�
!
��.��
 ��6;�� ����0� ��;&��

K
����
��$
�
�������	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

>	
����
��
	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

%������'��	���������D�1
���
�
��
  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

��%���� �8':�	 �8##"	 �8:�#	

$
�����	�����
	$
�����
	������� 3  	?���� (��� (�� 

�
!
��
  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

#$
�
�������	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

��!
	��
�����	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

3�
��L	��	���  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

��%���� �		 �		 �		

��&�
	%�������	������� 3  	?���� (��� (�� 

%
!
��$
��������������	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

1�+	/E��1���	�?$3�+ �8':�	 �8##"	 �8:�#	

+�+3; 3  	?���� (��� (�� 

��
	
���K
��
��+�.�
�	$������������

����������	/�������	=+��> ��8#�#	 '8''#	 !8*�9	
�
�
+��	�
$$

��
	�$�	���!
�����
�	��/���
���	�	�
$$

��
	��
�
��!
�����
�	

4���
����
	�
�
�$�
	
���!
��
	���	�����
������;�;������;�;�$���
	
 

$�% ��	3�������

;��� 	@���
�����	,�����- 3;;	?���� (��� (�� 

�
!
��
  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

#$
�
�����'�	�	 &�(�(�  �� &�(�(�

��!
	��
���'�	�	 0��&��  �� 0��&��

%
!
��$
��'�����������	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

3�
��L"��	�����
��
��	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

1�+	�?$3�+ 98:#�	 �		 98:#�	

����
� 	@���
�����	,�����-.	+
�����
� 3;;	?���� (��� (�� 

�
!
��
  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

#$
�
�������	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

��!
	��
�����	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

%
!
��$
��'�����������	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

3�
��L"��	�����
��
��	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

1�+	�?$3�+ �		 �		 �		

'
���
��3�!
���
���2������9�)�� .�
�	$���

�����
���.
*��
!
��
	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

+�+3;�

���
��.�
�	$��������
� ?�;���  �� ?�;���

-��
���������2��
��
	  ��  ��  ��
'�	�	�
$$

��
	�$�	���!
�����
�	���/���
��
!
��
	�
����
!
��$
��������������	�
$$

��
	��
�
��!
�����
�	����;�;�$���
	

4���
����
	�
�
�$�
	
���!
��
	���	�����
������;�;������;�;�$���
	

3�� ����	��	?��������	�����	���	/�������

3�

����	
�3
	
	  �� ����
		
		
� .>�4��K� ������

����������++���
���9�'��	��
��>	
�	�:'��������= ��0��� )��	
  �������������� ����
		
		
�

����������++���
���9�'��	��
��>	
�	�:#��
�= ��&?(� ���
��4���M�
����  �������������� ����
		
		
�

����������++���
���9���	��
		�>	
�	�
������!��
�	 ��6;�� C����
��4���
��
  �������������� ����
		
		
�

-��
���������2��
��
	�:�����
���.
*
������
!
��
	=  �� ����
		
		
� 4����
��	  �������������� ����
		
		
�

$
�����	2� ��	��	/�������	=$2/> ��8#�#	 �
��
������  �������������� ����
		
		
�

���
��.�
�	$��������
� ?�;��� �
��  �������������� ����
		
		
�

$
�����	2� ��	��	�����	=$2�> 98:#�	 -��
����$
��	  �������������� ����
		
		
�

�2�(3;;	�?$3�+� 2��
���K� ������

1��	$
�����	2� ��	=1$2> �8""!	 )�K &�00(

/������	��	����	(����	=/�(> ���9	 /�( ���9	
'�	�	�
����
�
+��	 ������
$$

��
	�$�	���!
�����
�	

4���
����
	�
�
�$�
	
���!
��
	���	�����
������;�;������;�;�$���
	

)��
9�.��	 ��
��
�������
	���	�	�
����
�
+��	�/�����
�
��
���
����������
	 ���
� ���$�
	
��
��������
��	
��+���������
�	$����
$$�
�	
�	 �����
��
��/���

	��
�/�
�
����
��	
������	����$��	$
����.�
�
��
��
�	���
����
��	����+��
�����	�	�
����
�
+��	��	��
��+�/������
������
�$�
	
��
��������
��	
�

+�����-�
�
����	��	���
��
	
����
�
�
��	�	�$�
	
��
��
��!
���
	�)#.�$��!��
�
�������

	��
��+�!
��
�+������
��
���	�����������
��	
��
	���
�	��


�
	�	�+����
��	���	�

Page 168



)��
����0�)����'��������������)�)�

0'
1� 
&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,�

�

�������*	6���//7��������!��
�������)�!3'"��� ������
�"��� ����
�)������
�����������
��
�

�������.��������	����������	��	�&�	+
�����
�	������=+��>

�������
	�	��������-	���
	%������� 3  	?���� (��� (�� 

.�
!
��.��
 ��0��� 0��0�� &���?�

K
����
��$
�
�������	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

>	
����
��
	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

%������'��	���������D�1
���
�
��
  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

��%���� *8"��	 "8�"�	 �8�#9	

�������
	�	��&�
	���
	%������� 3  	?���� (��� (�� 

.�
!
��.��
 ��&?(� �0?� 0&0�

K
����
��$
�
�������	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

>	
����
��
	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

%������'��	���������D�1
���
�
��
  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

��%���� �8�9!	 *"9	 "�"	

/������� 3  	?���� (��� (�� 

.�
!
��.��
 ��6;�� ����0� ��;&��

K
����
��$
�
�������	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

>	
����
��
	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

%������'��	���������D�1
���
�
��
  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

��%���� �8':�	 �8##"	 �8:�#	

$
�����	�����
	$
�����
	������� 3  	?���� (��� (�� 

�
!
��
  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

#$
�
�������	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

��!
	��
�����	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

3�
��L	��	���  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

��%���� �		 �		 �		

��&�
	%�������	������� 3  	?���� (��� (�� 

%
!
��$
��������������	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

1�+	/E��1���	�?$3�+ �8':�	 �8##"	 �8:�#	

+�+3; 3  	?���� (��� (�� 

��
	
���K
��
��+�.�
�	$������������

����������	/�������	=+��> ��8#�#	 '8''#	 !8*�9	
�
�
+��	 �
$$

��
	�$�	���!
�����
�	��/���
���	�	�
$$

��
	 ��
�
��!
�����
�	

4���
����
	�
�
�$�
	
���!
��
	���	�����
������;�;������;�;�$���
	
 

$�% ��	3�������

;��� 	@���
�����	,�����- 3;;	?���� (��� (�� 

�
!
��
  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

#$
�
�����'�	�	 &��0;�  �� &��0;�

��!
	��
���'�	�	 0�&0��  �� 0�&0��

%
!
��$
��'�����������	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

3�
��L"��	�����
��
��	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

1�+	�?$3�+ *8#:�	 �		 *8#:�	

����
� 	@���
�����	,�����-.	+
�����
� 3;;	?���� (��� (�� 

�
!
��
  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

#$
�
�������	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

��!
	��
�����	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

%
!
��$
��'�����������	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

3�
��L"��	�����
��
��	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

1�+	�?$3�+ �		 �		 �		

'
���
��3�!
���
���2������9�)�� .�
�	$���

�����
���.
*��
!
��
	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

+�+3;�

���
��.�
�	$��������
� ���;��  �� ���;��

-��
���������2��
��
	  ��  ��  ��
'�	�	�
$$

��
	�$�	���!
�����
�	���/���
��
!
��
	�
����
!
��$
��������������	�
$$

��
	��
�
��!
�����
�	����;�;�$���
	

4���
����
	�
�
�$�
	
���!
��
	���	�����
������;�;������;�;�$���
	
 

3�� ����	��	?��������	�����	���	/�������

3�

����	
�3
	
	  �� ����
		
		
� .>�4��K� ������

����������++���
���9�'��	��
��>	
�	�:'��������= ��0��� )��	
  �������������� ����
		
		
�

����������++���
���9�'��	��
��>	
�	�:#��
�= ��&?(� ���
��4���M�
����  �������������� ����
		
		
�

����������++���
���9���	��
		�>	
�	�
������!��
�	 ��6;�� C����
��4���
��
  �������������� ����
		
		
�

-��
���������2��
��
	�:�����
���.
*
������
!
��
	=  �� ����
		
		
� 4����
��	  �������������� ����
		
		
�

$
�����	2� ��	��	/�������	=$2/> ��8#�#	 �
��
������  �������������� ����
		
		
�

���
��.�
�	$��������
� ���;�� �
��  �������������� ����
		
		
�

$
�����	2� ��	��	�����	=$2�> *8#:�	 -��
����$
��	  �������������� ����
		
		
�

�2�(3;;	�?$3�+� 2��
���K� ������

1��	$
�����	2� ��	=1$2> !8:�"	 )�K (�;�0

/������	��	����	(����	=/�(> ��!'	 /�( ��!'	
'�	�	�
����
�
+��	������
$$

��
	�$�	���!
�����
�	

4���
����
	�
�
�$�
	
���!
��
	���	�����
������;�;������;�;�$���
	

)��
9�.��	 ��
��
�������
	���	�	�
����
�
+��	�/�����
�
��
���
����������
	���
����$�
	
��
��������
��	
��+���������
�	$����
$$�
�	
�	�����
��
��/���

	��
�/�
�
����
��	
������	����$��	$
����.�
�
��
��
�	���
����
��	���� +��
�����	�	 �
����
�
+� �	��	��
��+�/������
������
�$�
	
��
��������
��	
�

+�����-�
�
����	�� 	���
��
	
����
�
�
��	�	�$�
	
��
��
��!
���
	 �)#.�$��!��
�
�������

	��
��+�!
��
�+������
��
���	�����������
��	
��
	���
�	��


�
	�	�+����
��	���	�

Page 169



)��
����0�)����'��������������)�)�


&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,� 0'
&�

�
�������*	8���//7��������!��
�������)�!3'"��� ������
�"��� ����
�)������
�����������
����

�������.��������	����������	��	�&�	+
�����
�	������=+��>

�������
	�	��������-	���
	%������� 3  	?���� (��� (�� 

.�
!
��.��
 ��0��� 0��0�� &���?�

K
����
��$
�
�������	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

>	
����
��
	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

%������'��	���������D�1
���
�
��
  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

��%���� *8"��	 "8�"�	 �8�#9	

�������
	�	��&�
	���
	%������� 3  	?���� (��� (�� 

.�
!
��.��
 ��&?(� �0?� 0&0�

K
����
��$
�
�������	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

>	
����
��
	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

%������'��	���������D�1
���
�
��
  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

��%���� �8�9!	 *"9	 "�"	

/������� 3  	?���� (��� (�� 

.�
!
��.��
 ��6;�� ����0� ��;&��

K
����
��$
�
�������	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

>	
����
��
	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

%������'��	���������D�1
���
�
��
  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

��%���� �8':�	 �8##"	 �8:�#	

$
�����	�����
	$
�����
	������� 3  	?���� (��� (�� 

�
!
��
  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

#$
�
�������	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

��!
	��
�����	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

3�
��L	��	���  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

��%���� �		 �		 �		

��&�
	%�������	������� 3  	?���� (��� (�� 

%
!
��$
��������������	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

1�+	/E��1���	�?$3�+ �8':�	 �8##"	 �8:�#	

+�+3; 3  	?���� (��� (�� 

��
	
���K
��
��+�.�
�	$������������

����������	/�������	=+��> ��8#�#	 '8''#	 !8*�9	
�
�
+��	�
$$

��
	�$�	���!
�����
�	��/���
���	�	�
$$

��
	��
�
��!
�����
�	

4���
����
	�
�
�$�
	
���!
��
	���	�����
������;�;������;�;�$���
	
 

$�% ��	3�������

;��� 	@���
�����	,�����- 3;;	?���� (��� (�� 

�
!
��
  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

#$
�
�����'�	�	 (���6�  �� (���6�

��!
	��
���'�	�	 ���?&�  �� ���?&�

%
!
��$
��'�����������	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

3�
��L"��	�����
��
��	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

1�+	�?$3�+ ��8:*:	 �		 ��8:*:	

����
� 	@���
�����	,�����-.	+
�����
� 3;;	?���� (��� (�� 

�
!
��
  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

#$
�
�������	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

��!
	��
�����	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

%
!
��$
��'�����������	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

3�
��L"��	�����
��
��	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

1�+	�?$3�+ �		 �		 �		

'
���
��3�!
���
���2������9�)�� .�
�	$���

�����
���.
*��
!
��
	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

+�+3;�

���
��.�
�	$��������
� ���;�;�  �� ���;�;�

-��
���������2��
��
	  ��  ��  ��
'�	�	�
$$

��
	�$�	���!
�����
�	���/���
��
!
��
	�
����
!
��$
��������������	�
$$

��
	��
�
��!
�����
�	����;�;�$���
	

4���
����
	�
�
�$�
	
���!
��
	���	�����
������;�;������;�;�$���
	
 

3�� ����	��	?��������	�����	���	/�������

3�

����	
�3
	
	  �� ����
		
		
� .>�4��K� ������

����������++���
���9�'��	��
��>	
�	�:'��������= ��0��� )��	
  �������������� ����
		
		
�

����������++���
���9�'��	��
��>	
�	�:#��
�= ��&?(� ���
��4���M�
����  �������������� ����
		
		
�

����������++���
���9���	��
		�>	
�	�
������!��
�	 ��6;�� C����
��4���
��
  �������������� ����
		
		
�

-��
���������2��
��
	�:�����
���.
*
������
!
��
	=  �� ����
		
		
� 4����
��	  �������������� ����
		
		
�

$
�����	2� ��	��	/�������	=$2/> ��8#�#	 �
��
������  �������������� ����
		
		
�

���
��.�
�	$��������
� ���;�;� �
��  �������������� ����
		
		
�

$
�����	2� ��	��	�����	=$2�> ��8:*:	 -��
����$
��	  �������������� ����
		
		
�

�2�(3;;	�?$3�+� 2��
���K� ������

1��	$
�����	2� ��	=1$2> �8"�#	 )�K ��0&�

/������	��	����	(����	=/�(> ���!	 /�( ���!	
'�	�	�
����
�
+��	������
$$

��
	�$�	���!
�����
�	

4���
����
	�
�
�$�
	
���!
��
	���	�����
������;�;������;�;�$���
	

)��
9�.��	��
��
�������
	���	�	�
����
�
+��	�/�����
�
��
���
����������
	���
����$�
	
��
��������
��	
��+���������
�	$����
$$�
�	
�	�����
��
��/���

	��
�/�
�
����
��	
������	����$��	$
����.�
�
��
��
�	���
����
��	����+��
�����	�	�
����
�
+��	��	��
��+�/������
������
�$�
	
��
��������
��	
�

+�����-�
�
����	��	���
��
	
����
�
�
��	�	�$�
	
��
��
��!
���
	�)#.�$��!��
�
�������

	��
��+�!
��
�+������
��
���	�����������
��	
��
	���
�	��


�
	�	�+����
��	���	�

Page 170



)��
����0�)����'��������������)�)�

0'
2� 
&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,�

�
�������*	9���//7��������!��
�������)�!3'"��� ������
�'��� ����
�)������
�����������
��
�

�������.��������	����������	��	�&�	+
�����
�	������=+��>

�������
	�	��������-	���
	%������� 3  	?���� (��� (�� 

.�
!
��.��
 ��0��� 0��0�� &���?�

K
����
��$
�
�������	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

>	
����
��
	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

%������'��	���������D�1
���
�
��
  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

��%���� *8"��	 "8�"�	 �8�#9	

�������
	�	��&�
	���
	%������� 3  	?���� (��� (�� 

.�
!
��.��
 ��&?(� �0?� 0&0�

K
����
��$
�
�������	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

>	
����
��
	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

%������'��	���������D�1
���
�
��
  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

��%���� �8�9!	 *"9	 "�"	

/������� 3  	?���� (��� (�� 

.�
!
��.��
 ��6;�� ����0� ��;&��

K
����
��$
�
�������	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

>	
����
��
	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

%������'��	���������D�1
���
�
��
  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

��%���� �8':�	 �8##"	 �8:�#	

$
�����	�����
	$
�����
	������� 3  	?���� (��� (�� 

�
!
��
  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

#$
�
�������	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

��!
	��
�����	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

3�
��L	��	���  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

��%���� �		 �		 �		

��&�
	%�������	������� 3  	?���� (��� (�� 

%
!
��$
��������������	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

1�+	/E��1���	�?$3�+ �8':�	 �8##"	 �8:�#	

+�+3; 3  	?���� (��� (�� 

��
	
���K
��
��+�.�
�	$������������

����������	/�������	=+��> ��8#�#	 '8''#	 !8*�9	
�
�
+��	�
$$

��
	�$�	���!
�����
�	��/���
���	�	�
$$

��
	��
�
��!
�����
�	

4���
����
	�
�
�$�
	
���!
��
	���	�����
������;�;������;�;�$���
	
 

$�% ��	3�������

;��� 	@���
�����	,�����- 3;;	?���� (��� (�� 

�
!
��
  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

#$
�
�����'�	�	 &���0�  �� &���0�

��!
	��
���'�	�	 ��&?��  �� ��&?��

%
!
��$
��'�����������	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

3�
��L"��	�����
��
��	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

1�+	�?$3�+ �:8�*�	 �		 �:8�*�	

����
� 	@���
�����	,�����-.	+
�����
� 3;;	?���� (��� (�� 

�
!
��
  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

#$
�
�������	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

��!
	��
�����	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

%
!
��$
��'�����������	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

3�
��L"��	�����
��
��	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

1�+	�?$3�+ �		 �		 �		

'
���
��3�!
���
���2������9�)�� .�
�	$���

�����
���.
*��
!
��
	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

+�+3;�

���
��.�
�	$��������
� �;�����  �� �;�����

-��
���������2��
��
	  ��  ��  ��
'�	�	�
$$

��
	�$�	���!
�����
�	���/���
��
!
��
	�
����
!
��$
��������������	�
$$

��
	��
�
��!
�����
�	����;�;�$���
	

4���
����
	�
�
�$�
	
���!
��
	���	�����
������;�;������;�;�$���
	
 

3�� ����	��	?��������	�����	���	/�������

3�

����	
�3
	
	  �� ����
		
		
� .>�4��K� ������

����������++���
���9�'��	��
��>	
�	�:'��������= ��0��� )��	
  �������������� ����
		
		
�

����������++���
���9�'��	��
��>	
�	�:#��
�= ��&?(� ���
��4���M�
����  �������������� ����
		
		
�

����������++���
���9���	��
		�>	
�	�
������!��
�	 ��6;�� C����
��4���
��
  �������������� ����
		
		
�

-��
���������2��
��
	�:�����
���.
*
������
!
��
	=  �� ����
		
		
� 4����
��	  �������������� ����
		
		
�

$
�����	2� ��	��	/�������	=$2/> ��8#�#	 �
��
������  �������������� ����
		
		
�

���
��.�
�	$��������
� �;����� �
��  �������������� ����
		
		
�

$
�����	2� ��	��	�����	=$2�> �:8�*�	 -��
����$
��	  �������������� ����
		
		
�

�2�(3;;	�?$3�+� 2��
���K� ������

1��	$
�����	2� ��	=1$2> �8��"	 )�K ��&&0

/������	��	����	(����	=/�(> ����	 /�( ����	
'�	�	�
����
�
+��	������
$$

��
	�$�	���!
�����
�	

4���
����
	�
�
�$�
	
���!
��
	���	�����
������;�;������;�;�$���
	

)��
9�.��	��
��
�������
	���	�	�
����
�
+��	�/�����
�
��
���
����������
	���
����$�
	
��
��������
��	
��+���������
�	$����
$$�
�	
�	�����
��
��/���

	��
�/�
�
����
��	
������	����$��	$
����.�
�
��
��
�	���
����
��	����+��
�����	�	�
����
�
+��	��	��
��+�/������
������
�$�
	
��
��������
��	
�

+�����-�
�
����	��	���
��
	
����
�
�
��	�	�$�
	
��
��
��!
���
	�)#.�$��!��
�
�������

	��
��+�!
��
�+������
��
���	�����������
��	
��
	���
�	��


�
	�	�+����
��	���	�

Page 171



)��
����0�)����'��������������)�)�


&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,� 0'
3�

�

�������*	
$���//7��������!��
�������)�!3'"��� ������
�'��� ����
�)������
�����������
����

�������.��������	����������	��	�&�	+
�����
�	������=+��>

�������
	�	��������-	���
	%������� 3  	?���� (��� (�� 

.�
!
��.��
 ��0��� 0��0�� &���?�

K
����
��$
�
�������	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

>	
����
��
	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

%������'��	���������D�1
���
�
��
  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

��%���� *8"��	 "8�"�	 �8�#9	

�������
	�	��&�
	���
	%������� 3  	?���� (��� (�� 

.�
!
��.��
 ��&?(� �0?� 0&0�

K
����
��$
�
�������	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

>	
����
��
	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

%������'��	���������D�1
���
�
��
  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

��%���� �8�9!	 *"9	 "�"	

/������� 3  	?���� (��� (�� 

.�
!
��.��
 ��6;�� ����0� ��;&��

K
����
��$
�
�������	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

>	
����
��
	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

%������'��	���������D�1
���
�
��
  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

��%���� �8':�	 �8##"	 �8:�#	

$
�����	�����
	$
�����
	������� 3  	?���� (��� (�� 

�
!
��
  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

#$
�
�������	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

��!
	��
�����	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

3�
��L	��	���  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

��%���� �		 �		 �		

��&�
	%�������	������� 3  	?���� (��� (�� 

%
!
��$
��������������	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

1�+	/E��1���	�?$3�+ �8':�	 �8##"	 �8:�#	

+�+3; 3  	?���� (��� (�� 

��
	
���K
��
��+�.�
�	$������������

����������	/�������	=+��> ��8#�#	 '8''#	 !8*�9	
�
�
+��	�
$$

��
	�$�	���!
�����
�	��/���
���	�	�
$$

��
	��
�
��!
�����
�	

4���
����
	�
�
�$�
	
���!
��
	���	�����
������;�;������;�;�$���
	
 

$�% ��	3�������

;��� 	@���
�����	,�����- 3;;	?���� (��� (�� 

�
!
��
  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

#$
�
�����'�	�	 0�;;0�  �� 0�;;0�

��!
	��
���'�	�	 ���(��  �� ���(��

%
!
��$
��'�����������	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

3�
��L"��	�����
��
��	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

1�+	�?$3�+ ��8�!#	 �		 ��8�!#	

����
� 	@���
�����	,�����-.	+
�����
� 3;;	?���� (��� (�� 

�
!
��
  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

#$
�
�������	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

��!
	��
�����	�	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

%
!
��$
��'�����������	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

3�
��L"��	�����
��
��	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

1�+	�?$3�+ �		 �		 �		

'
���
��3�!
���
���2������9�)�� .�
�	$���

�����
���.
*��
!
��
	  ��  ��  �� ����
		
		
�

+�+3;�

���
��.�
�	$��������
� �&��(��  �� �&��(��

-��
���������2��
��
	  ��  ��  ��
'�	�	�
$$

��
	�$�	���!
�����
�	���/���
��
!
��
	�
����
!
��$
��������������	�
$$

��
	��
�
��!
�����
�	����;�;�$���
	

4���
����
	�
�
�$�
	
���!
��
	���	�����
������;�;������;�;�$���
	
 

3�� ����	��	?��������	�����	���	/�������

3�

����	
�3
	
	  �� ����
		
		
� .>�4��K� ������

����������++���
���9�'��	��
��>	
�	�:'��������= ��0��� )��	
  �������������� ����
		
		
�

����������++���
���9�'��	��
��>	
�	�:#��
�= ��&?(� ���
��4���M�
����  �������������� ����
		
		
�

����������++���
���9���	��
		�>	
�	�
������!��
�	 ��6;�� C����
��4���
��
  �������������� ����
		
		
�

-��
���������2��
��
	�:�����
���.
*
������
!
��
	=  �� ����
		
		
� 4����
��	  �������������� ����
		
		
�

$
�����	2� ��	��	/�������	=$2/> ��8#�#	 �
��
������  �������������� ����
		
		
�

���
��.�
�	$��������
� �&��(�� �
��  �������������� ����
		
		
�

$
�����	2� ��	��	�����	=$2�> ��8�!#	 -��
����$
��	  �������������� ����
		
		
�

�2�(3;;	�?$3�+� 2��
���K� ������

1��	$
�����	2� ��	=1$2> �#�:	 )�K  �&;�

/������	��	����	(����	=/�(> :�9"	 /�( :�9"	
'�	�	�
����
�
+��	������
$$

��
	�$�	���!
�����
�	

4���
����
	�
�
�$�
	
���!
��
	���	�����
������;�;������;�;�$���
	

)��
9�.��	 ��
��
�������
	���	�	�
����
�
+��	�/�����
�
��
���
����������
	 ���
����$�
	
��
��������
��	
��+���������
�	$����
$$�
�	
�	�����
��
��/���

	��
�/�
�
����
��	
������	 ����$��	$
����.�
�
��
��
�	���
����
��	����+��
�����	�	�
����
�
+��	��	��
��+�/������
������
�$�
	
��
��������
��	
�

+�����-�
�
����	 ��	���
��
	
����
�
�
��	 �	 �$�
	
��
��
��!
���
	�)#.�$��!��
�
�������

	��
��+�!
��
�+������
��
���	�����������
��	
��
	���
�	��


�
	�	�+����
��	 ���	�

Page 172



���+��1	#	


&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,� 1'
�

3 $%�
��	������%����	

3!  ���������
��		

.�
�$�
!���	�	
�����	��+���
��
$����
����

�������
�������	������
����
�$�
+
��
���$�����+���
�$��
���
��

	�
��������"
��+�����	�#$����������
�$�
!���	�:��	�����=�	��
����
�
�����4(��
�����
���.��	��	��
	
�������
�

	��
H	�	�$
���������!
�
����
������$
������
��������$
��	���/����#$���������	9�

• �
	�
���
�
�
��
��
		�
��
��
�
��	E�

• ��/
�����$�
*�����+�	�
�������+�
	�������
��
7���
�
��	E�

• �
	���������/
���
$��
����	�	E�
����

• �
��
���!
�
���
��������
		
		�
���:����
��	��+��'�=��

.�
�
+��
�#$��������
	��

��+����
���
!
��$
���/������!
	���
����	������
��
		�
��
��
�
��	�:��
++���


����

����=�
���$��
���
��+���
�������
��$
�5����	$
�
	��

3!" ����
��	���
���	������	�����'������	

.�
++����
�������

	��
	������������&;�$��	$

���
�
�
��
�
�
��

������
�
�������
�4(��
�����
�����

��
�!���������+���
�$��
���
��!
����
�
��
		������
�	�
������.��	������
�
	���
�
�/
�
�
*�	���������
��	�/����

��
++���	
+
��������
�
�

��/�������������+

����������	��
�
������+�
��
		�
��
��
�
��	��

'���
������������	�
�������
�4(�������
�+���/
�	���������	��
	��+��
�����
���/����
��
+��
����
�
���
		�

��
���;;��+������
�
*�	�����
��
		������
�)
�/��5��
����/�
��	��
��4���	�	��$��/������	���*���	�
�	��

���
�
��/�������;;���+���
�$��
���
��	��
����/
!
����
����
������+����	�
*�	�������+�
	�������
��
7���
	�

����+��������
�
��
�����

	
������������	�+�����
�����
���������
�$��
���
��	��
��

.��

���
++���
����

������$����	��
!
��

���
!
��$
��+���
��
		�@���������
�����
�����	�	�������	��4���

�
!
��

���
!
��$
��������	���
�����/�����D)�"���
++����++��
�	��.�
���
++����
�
�
�
���$��$�	
�	��
!
�

�����

����	�
��
�����	����
��

+
�����	����-�����	������	3	

.��	��$����������	
	���
�
*�	�����
��
		����
������/������
��
���
������+�$
�
	���
���
+��
����		����
���

����������
��
��
		�@����������

.�
��	
��+���
�
*�	�����
��
		������	�������$
�������
�������
���
����
5
���
�������$
���		���	�
���

$���
		
	��
�����/�����
$��
����	�	����/
!
������
��!
����
��
7���
��@��������!�	�����������
��
�
�
	����

.�
�"�
���/	�/�����

������
�
�7���
��
����
����	�
���.��	��
�����
�	���
7���
	���
�
*�	������
+��
�����
�

�
��!
��
����
���
�
���4����	������� ������
�
��
������
�$��!��
��
	���
��
������	����+��
��/��������
�


*�	���������/
�������
����/������
���
	�������!
����
	�����5�����
�5�
�������
�4(�������������
�	����

�
�
��+�������������
++����

2����
�4�����4$$
���*�4�������
	���
�$��
���
���
�����$��$�	
��+�����
++����
�
�
�
���#$�����4��

+
�����	����-�����	������	/	

.��	��$�����
�	���
5
	��	
��+���
�
*�	�����
��
		����
�����
����
7���
	���
��
���
������+�$
�
	���
��

�
+��
����		���E����$��!��
	�
������������
��
��
		�@��������/�������	������� ������������
�	�
�������

4	�/
���
	������������
��

��+���������$
�������
�������
���
����
5
�����	������
�
*�	�����
��
		�����
��	
��

/��
������+���
�����/
��
�
��
	�
�������������
�
�����
�$��!��
���

���������� ����������
++�����
	�����

����5�
����
�
��
�

����
++����4����������
�
*�	������
+��
��
7���
	��
��!����
����
���
����������	�


�!�	
�
����
����
��
/����
������	����	
�������
�
�����$
�
���
	��
����
�+���$
�
	���
�	�
��
		������
�

	�
������"����
�������#$�����4������
��!
����
��
7���
��@��������!�	�����������
��
�
�
	����.�
�"�
���/	�/����

�

������
�
�7���
��
����
����	�
����

2����
�4�����4$$
���*�4�������
	���
�$��
���
���
�����$��$�	
��+�����
++����
�
�
�
���#$��������

Page 173



)��
����1���
������+�������
�

1'�� 
&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,�

+
�����	����-�����	������	�	

.��	��$������������
	�����
5
��	
��+���
�
*�	�����
��
		����
������������������������
��
7���
�
���+���

������$
�����
����
5
��/������
��
�
+����+�
�	��$��!������
�	���
��
��
��
		�@��������/�������	������� �������

������	��$��������
�	���
��
��@���������

�	������ ��������!
����
	������������5�
�

����
++���
����
�	
�

�
�
�	���
���
������+���
�$
�
	���
���
+��
����		���������
�	���
��	
��@���������
	�$
����+�
���������
��

���		����$��������$��!
	�	
+
���+���$
�
	���
�	��4	���
�@���������	���������
������/����/��5����
�
++���
�����

���$
�
�����
������������
��@���������.�
�	���
�	���������/
!
��$��
���
�����
�
������������
++��������
�

4(�
����
��
��	���
���.�
��
�
�
	�
�������
�"�
���/	�
�
������
7���
��+���!�	��������$��$�	
	�+������	�

�
������$������
	���
����
� !�	���������+���
�@���������
���
�
���
!
�����
�	�
���
�
�
����+�������$
����

�
����.�
��
	�����+���
�������������
�
��	�����
�����	�� 	�
��
���
����
7���
	�+����
���
!
��$�
�����

2����
�4&����4$$
���*�4�������
	���
�$��
���
���
�����$��$�	
��+�����
++����
�
�
�
���#$�����'��

3!& 4��
�
����	���	%��5
�'	���
�
�
��	

"�
��������
�����#$�������$��!��
	�	��
��
��$
�5�������	��
����/
!
��$
�5�����
�
����	���5
�������
�

��

�
����
����
�+
������
	��
��
�������
�
������
�+����
��.�
�
+��
�������
�����������	����
�
����	
�

�	
�	�/����
�����$
�5�������$
����$����� 	��

��$
�5���������
����
����
�	������
�	�����������
�

��
�

$��
���
��	
����
����
��$
�5�	��
��
	��

����
���+�
���

.�
�	��
��	����
�
��/������(;;���+���
�	�
������/������

	��/
�5������	�
��
�+�����
��
@�������+��	
�	��
���

������$��!��
�
��
�������
���60�	$
�
	��
������	��
	���
�$��
���
������
�
��+���
������

	
��
�
���+���

$
�5����
����
�	�
��������/
!
�����
�����
��/
�5������	�
��
����$
�
��/�������	
����!
�	�$
�5����/������

��
����
��
�
�	�
������
��$
�5���
	��
!
�@����
�����
���$���
����	�
���/�������������
�
������

	
����

!
����
�!	��$
�
	���
�����+����	�
���		�.�
�"�
���/	��.�
�	
����
���	�
������
��$
�5�
��
		�+
�����
�
	�

�
��
��!�	��������
�������
�4(�+������!
�	��

.�
��
���	���
	�
��+�����
�
�������
���
��$
�5��	�����
������/�
�����.�
�4!���'��������/����'�������

"
��+����
���/��������	��

������
�
�7���
��+����	
�
	�
��
��$
�5��/�����/������
!
��
$��
����	��

��$���
����	���

3!( #��5
�'	����'�����	

"�
������
��$
�5����
��
�"
��+����	�
�����/������

������
�
���
��
��+
��������+���$�
�
��
��:���	�������
	�

������� 	�
�����$
�5����
���
���
�������
��$
�5����+
��������

�����+�
�	���
��!
�
�=��+������	�	�
�����+�


$$��
���/�������
��	�
����	������
����
��
�

�:���$
������
��8
��	�
�=�����
����������
!
��
�+����

$
�5�����������
�$�����
+�
����
���	�	��+�����������
�	�
�������
$
��������������
�
��/�
�	��$�
���

���������+���
�	�
�����
����
��$
�5���

��/
!
�������	����
��
�����
��	�
����	��$
������
����/����$
���$
�5����/�
�
�
!���������
��
	��	�
�	������

���	��
��
����	
�	�����
�	��
��+�

�$
�5����	�
����	�/�
�
��
�
����
���
��� �
�����
���
�
���+���

�

������ 	��

��:+�

=�$
�5�����
���
�
���		�
��4	�	��������	��	�
�+
�����+������	��
�
�����
��"
��+��������

�
	��

��
		��
�������������	�
��
�����	�	�
�
����
��
��
!
���+���������
��$
�5����/������

������
�

��$�
�
��
��������
����
�	����"
��+�������
�	��
��
	��
��	�/����������
���+
�����
++
��
���

4�����������
��$
�5����I��
	�/������
�+��������	���
�����/�������
���
	��
��	�
	�$
����+���
�.�
++���

�
���
�����#��
��$���
		��

�

Page 174



���+��1	'	


&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,� &'
�

6 #���
�	���
�
�
��	

6!  ���������
��	

4	�$
����+����	�	����������$��
���
��	�
������$����	�+���"
��+������D)�"�/
�
����
�
	�
������
��
���
��
!
��

�+�	�$$�����+�"
�+�����
	��
��	��4�$������
*���������
!
���/
	��
������.�
	�
���0���2
���
����;�(�
��

"
��+����'���������'
���
��
��/�����
�	
��
	��+�
*�����������
��	�/
�
�$�
	
��
��
����
��
�	��+���
�

	������

��/
�
�$�
	
��������	��		��		�
	�
��	����/����
��
�������
	��
��	��4�7�
	�����
��
�/
	�

��	������
��
����
�
*�����������	
�+��
	�/
���
	��
�
�
!
��
��
������
��D)�"�/
�	��
��.�
���
$�
��

$��!��
	�
��
������+���
�	��!
�����
��
5
��
�����
��
	���	��
�
�!
��:�$����&�	��1
�����;�(=��

.�
�	��!
���	
��
	�$
����+���
�$������
*���������
!
�������
��
��
	��
��	H�!�
/	�/
	��
!
��$
��/����

�D)�"��++��
�	��4��
*
�$�
��+���
�7�
	�����
��
��	�	��/�����2����
�6 ���

�

�������6	
����������:������
�����+���

Page 175



)��
����&��-������,	���
����

&'�� 
&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,�

6!" ������	�������	

.�
�
�/
�
�&6���
	$���
��	������
�	��!
��:
	��
�
�!
������D)�"��$����&�	��1
�����;�(=��.�
��
@������

�+��
	���	������
��
�
���
���+����	���
$�
���
!
��

���
$���
��
	�$
��
��
�
	��
	
�������
����
������
��

�+��
	$��	
	�:&6�=�����
		����
�/�	
�	�
�
���

#$
�������
�	��!
�����
�+��	��7�
	�����	�����������
���+����
�	����
	��+��
	$��	
	����
	5������
�$�	����
�

�+���
��
	��
��
��+���
��
	$���
����.��	��	���	�������$�����
�	��	
7�
���
�	/
�	����7�
	����	������
�

����
*���+�/�
��
������	���!
�����
����
��"
�+�����
	��
������������

4	�
��
	�����+�$��!
������	��
�
����	������	�����$�		���
�����
$������
��
	���	��+����	�7�
	���������
�
����

"�++��
�������	
����
����
��
@�������+��
	$���
��	��
	�/
	�
*$
��
���
�
����
���
	��
��	��+�
���
��"
��+����

�����	�	�������	��

6!"!  $%
�
��	-����
���	

F�������	�	

.�
��
@������:�!
���/�������	=��+��
	$���
��	������
�
����
����
��/�������5
�
�	�
�����
��"
��+�����

�

F�������	�	

4�������������
	$���
��	��((<�/������	
���
�	�
��������
�/

5��L�
�����
	�	E�/����&(<��	������
�	�
�����

���
	���
���������	����
�
	��������������
��&�<��+��
	$���
��	�
���
���������/
������
�
�
���!
�
���
	����

/�
��
����
��/
���
�	�
�����:7�
	������=������������0<��
!
�	
�����
��/������
!
���	
�
�	�
������

�

�?<

��<

�<
(<

%������/
���
�	�
�����
��"
��+���R

O
	 )� %��S��5��/ %��S������

�?<

�0<

�<

&(<

�0<

�+�
�	�
�����/
�
�$��!��
�����/��+�
��/����������	
���R

%
��� -

5�� 1������ #��
	���
��� )
!
�

Page 176



)��
����&��-������,	���
����


&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,� &'.�

F�������	!	

4�����
���+��
	$���
��	�$��!��
�����
���
����
����
��+���
!
��
	������/���
��/������
�����
�"
��+����

	�
������.�
	
��
!
�
����

��������
���	��$
��
��
�
	��������
����$�����;;<��#�����(<��+��
	$���
��	�

�����
�
����
��/��������!
�:
���$
�5=�
����
�	�
������/������
��
@������	�
�������
��/�����/
�5��

�

F�������	"	

.��	
��
	$���
��	�/����������
�
����
��/��������!
������
�	�
�����/
�
�
	5
��/�
�
�/�������
��$
�5��

C�	���!
���
�+�:(���
	$���
��	=�	�
�
����
��/�����$
�5����
�	�
������
��$
�5�:���
�$
��
�����	$�
���
	�	=��

/������
��
�
���
��:&0=�	���
	�������
��/�����$
�5��� 	��

���

F�������	#	

.�
��
@�������+��
	$���
��	�:�6<=������
�
����
��/������	
���
�	�
�����$���
�����+����
�	��
����

����������$��$�	
	�:���������
�+�

��=�����
�
	��������
		���
���<�	
�����
��/������	
���
�	�
�����+���


��
		����
���
��������/
!
�����	��
���
�
��
	�����+���
�
�
��+���
��
@�������
	$���
��	��

�

F�������	'	

4�����
���+��
	$���
��	�$��!��
�����
���
����
����
��+���
!
��
	������/���
���
5
�@����
����/���
��

��
��/��������	��
���	����
�"
��+����	�
��������+����
��.�
	
��
!
�
����

��������
���	��$
��
��
�
	����

����
����$�����;;<��.�
��
@�������+��
	$���
��	�:�6<=������
�
����
����
��/�����	/�����+������
!
������

���$��!
�
��
��:���!
�����$
		
��
�=�����
�����+�
�	�
�����/
�
�$��!��
���?<�	�
�
����
��/�����	/�����+����


����
���
���	�
�����:
�	��
�����=��

6�<
�&<

�(<

0<
�<

�< ;<
?<

�+�
�	�
�����/
�
�$��!��
����/�/����������
�������R

-
�5 '���
 '
��:���!
�= '
��:$
		
��
�= ��	 .
*� 1��������
 #��
�

;�&<

&;�6<

;�&<

&���<

�(�;<

���<

�+�����/
�
�����	
���
�	�
��������
��
���
���
	�	��/�
��/�����

���	��
�+��R

����
���� 3��������/��5 �

���L1
���
� �
�	��
 #��
� "��$$���

Page 177



)��
����&��-������,	���
����

&'�� 
&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,�

�
�

6!"!" ����'��%�
�	-����
���	

.�
�+��
��7�
	����	������
�	��!
��	������������
�	�
�����
��
����
$������

5��/���+��
	$���
��	�����

	���
����	��
���
����
����	��+��
	$���
��	H��
	��
��
	��
7�
	�
�������
�+��	��7�
	������

F�������	*	

�

F�������	9	

�

06<

�;<

�?<

?<

&<

�<
;<

�&<

�+�����/
�
�����	
�
��
 �$
�
��	�
��������
��
���
���
	�	��/�
��

/��������	��
���	�

���+��	���R

'
��:���!
�= '
��:$
		
��
�= ��	

�
���:��++
�
���	�
����= '���
 .
*�

1��������
 #��
�

0&<

(0<

�< �<

3
��
�

1
�
 2
�
�
 ��
+
���������	
� ��
�5

;<

0<

�;<

�0<

�;<

�0<

&;<

>��
���� �� �( �0 &( &0 (( (0 0( 00 �( �0J ��
�5

4�


Page 178



)��
����&��-������,	���
����


&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,� &'0�

F�������	�:	

�

�

(<

?0<

�<

%���������	��
������	
�+�����
�
���	
��
��$
�	��R

O
	 )� ��
�5

Page 179



���+��1	*	

�

7 2
�5�		

.��	���
$�
��������
	�$��
���
����	5	������
�$��@
���������+��/
���+������	��
�
������+��D)�"��
���
����

�������
�����
!
��$����	�	�����
����
5
�������������
��!
�������
�	��	���
��	
	���
��
*��	�
$	������
�

$���
		��+���
�	������	�����
��
��!
�
���

7!  8��	�
�5	����
�����
���		

.�
��
�����	5�
�
�
��	�
		���
�
��/������
��
��!
����+�
�"
��+����	�
�����:/����	$
��+����
+
�
��
������
�

#$�������G���H�	�
�����	��
�
�@
�
��������
�4(=�
�
9��

• '��+���
������+�	��
�
���	�	�,��'���	�������/����
����
��������	��	�
�
����

• 3��������!
	���
����	�
���
��
�5�
��	E�

• %
$
��
��
����1
���-
	�E�

• .�
++���1
�
�
�
���$��$�	
�	�
���$������
��
$�
������E�
����

• �
���
�7��	�������

��&���	�����	

@
����	�������-������	���	��%��)�����	

���� �
!
����!���
����

�������!
	���
����	��
!
��

���
���
������
	�$
����+����	�	������������
�	�
����+�
�

	�
������	��
��!
�
��
�
��$��
���
�����
����	��2������	�	��/���
�������	�
������$����	�
�
���
��
���
����

�
��!
�
��
����
��
����

�����	
�	
��/����#$�������:����	�
�����	��
=��
������
�$�
+
��
�����
�����+���
�

"
��+����	�
������

2����
�����������!
	���
����	�
�
��
7���
���������������
�	�
�����
�	���
��������+���
��
������/�������
�

	�
������������
��������4�$
������
������	5��	���
�	�

$�
��
�5�
���
�@
�
��������
��
��/
�����
�����/�����

��
�

	�������$�
�+����/������
����	�����
���4��������
�$��
���
�������
������
	��

��$��$�	
��:�	
�

�+�
������
��$�
�+�����
	�������
�
�����������$��
	=��+�������������!
	���
����	�/�����
��

�
�����

�
�
����
���
�+

	���������+�$�
�+�������
�����
�����
����$�
*����������
�/�	
��+���
�+����
����	�
��L���

$�
�+����	�������
	��
7���
���.�
�
��
��
����	��
		��$��������"�
�
���	���
���'��
5
������
�������


�������
����	�	�+������
����$�
*�$�
�+������!���
����

������

���
���������������
������
*���	
���
�$��
���
���
$
������+���
��
��$
�5�
����
�	�
�����:#$������=����
�

����
����
�
������/
���
�@
�
��������
�4(��
�����
���������
�+����
������+�
�����
���/�+�����
��
*�����

����
�����
*�
��������
��
!
���������
��������
�	�
�������/
��	���
�4(��4�
������
�+

	��������
�����	��

�+����������	��
7���
	��
�
��
�����������!
	���
����	�����
��
���
�������

?��
�4�����

-���
�
�"
��+����	�
������������
�	
�!
�����
*�	��������
��	��$$������
��	��
�/

�����	����
����
�������	�

/����������
�
�!�
��
�$��@
�������
��!
���4��
/�	�
�����
��"
��+�����	������!�
��
�/������
��
��!
����+�

1
���-
	��$��$�	
�	��	$
��+��
�������$��!������
��/� ��
���$
�������+�
7�
�����+����
��	��$$����	
�!��
	�

�
�/

�����	����
����
�����
��������	
�!
�"
��+�����

.�
�1
���-
	��$��$�	
�	�
�
�����
������
�����
!
��$
��������
��
�
��������
�-
	���+�����
������
��


��������
	�����$
���
�	��$�/����)
�/��5��
����������������
���+��
������+�
��
�
�����
���	
�!��
�$
��
���
���


����$
��������+�
	�������
��
7���
�
��	��"
�!��
�$
��
��	��
!
�����
5
������
�������$��
���
����

���$
������
7���
�
��	��+�
��
��
������ ��	�
��
�	
�!��
	�
	�/
������
��	��$$����	
�!��
	����/
!
��

�����
�������
����	�+����)
�/��5��
��H	����
�
��
�
		
		�
���	���
	�	���
�
��	�	�++���
����
$
����������
�

���
�
��
����
�������
�
���
�
*��
�	��$�
��"
��+�����

"������1
���-
	�������
���$�
�
��
��
	�$�
��
������+����
�����
�
��
�
		
		�
��	�	��/�
��


�������
��	��$��
�/

���
���"$
�
������	����.
�$�
�1

�	��	��������
��
!
��
��
��$
�
����
�������
��

Page 180



)��
����2���)4)�

2'�� 
&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,�

	
�!����
�"
��+����	�
�����/������
���
����
�����
		���$�		���
��%
!
��$����$��$�	
�	�+���"
��+����

	�
�����/�������
���������
���
�/����/���
��

;���	�����������	

.�
�$�
+
��
���$������	����
�
�������
�+���
��:��	�����=�	�
�����	��
��/������	�	������/�
�����)
�/��5��
���

:����
������	
��
	�
��
���
�
��
��
$��=���
���		����+�����
��
��+��	
��+����	��
��������
�	�
�����
���


		���
�
���
��$
�5�/�����
!
�����
�	�������.��	���������!��!
���
���
�	+
���+��/�
�	��$�����D)�"��/�����

/�����$��
���
����������
��:
	��
������
���+�
�=�
�������
����	����

4��
�������+�������$
�����
����
��
�	���
��
7���
�����+
�����
�
���
����	����������+�
�	���
��
�!
�����
��


��
		������
�	�
�����	��
��.�
�
������/���������
�
����
$
��������
�
��
		�
��
��
�
��	��
����
��

���

��+����$
����+���
��
��	��� �
5����$���
		�����
�
����������
��$������
��
		�
��
��
�
��	��

2����
��������$
�����
���/�����
�	���
��
7���
��	��������
�$��
���
��
�������
��$
�5����	��
�����
�
��

	��

�+���
�	�
�����	��
�
�������
�4(��
�����
��������
�
����
��
!
��$
���.�
�	��
��	�����
������/�
�����.�
�

4!���'��������/����'�������"
��+�����.�������	������	
��+���	$
��+���$��$�	
	�
��$�
	
����"��
�+�����+�

��
�	
������/�������
�
+��
��
��
7���
������
!
��$����	�
	�
��
��$
�5�:
���
�����$��	����$����
	
����

�D)�"����
��
��
��
��

�
����
�/

����
�'����
����D)�"=��

7!" ����	���%�	

.�
������
���
*��	�
$	������
�$���
		�/�����
�����
!
��$�
�����
�	�
�������+���
���	5�
��
�

	��+���
�

$��@
����
�����������
�
�
�
��	����
��������+��/
����.����
��
�����
�+����/����
�

	�	�������
�

���	��
�
�9�

• '��+���
������+�	��
�
���	�	�/����$
������
���
+
�
��
�����/��
�

	9�

o ��$
������	��
�
�
�������	�,���/
����	��
		��$�����	�
�
����
�
���
���
	���
��@�	��+��

��
�	��
�
��
�
���
	
�!
���R�

o 2�����
!
��$�
����+�3����&��
!
���
	����
�����	��������+���
��	
���
���	��
	���
�
	��

• 3��������!
	���
����	�,���
��5
����	����	5�����
��	��+����	����������
�
�
	������
�7�
������+���
�


��
�5�
��������
������
���
��
��+���
�	�
������
�����
�
�������������	�������	����������$�������

1��
�!
����$���
$���
��	��!
�	�/�����
		�	�������
��
�
��
��	$
��+��
������+���
��
�$�
��
		������
�



	�������$�
�+�����/����
���+���
���
	���	��
�������5
�������
�7�
������+���
�
��
�5�
���
	�


��!
��

• 1
���-
	��
$$

�	�����
��
!
��$����/
����.�
�
��	�
��������
���

�����
�	��
���
����
�
��
�

�
$
�����
		��$����	�
�
�	�����!
���������������+���
��
!
��$�
��	������
�/��
��	��
�
������	���

��+����

��
�
�
��	�	���
����
�	�
�������
	������
5
�	
�	
�/���������
���������	
�!��
��

• .�
++���1
�
�
�
���,�����	�	���
	�
����
��
�	
���+����
��
�
��
����
++����
�
�
�
���$��$�	
�	��
�

��
/���$�
	���
�	��
�
��
!
��$	��

• �
���
�7��	������,����
��
�
��
��/��5�����
����/�
�	��$�
�����5
�����	�	��+�
�7��	�������

�	�����
�

���
��
5
���)����

	�������
�
*��
�$
�5����	���
	�
��+�����
�����
�����/����'����	��
������
�	���+�

��
�	�
�����	��
���	
�+��
���
���
�������
���
7���
�
��	�+����	��
�
��
		�
��
��
�
��	�	����
	���
�

�
�
�
	����.�
�"�
���/	��

�

�

Page 181



�������,���


&'��
'��
�()��
�����)
�
���*�����������
�+
����,� �

4%%���
�	4	)	+����
�	����'�����	�%�
���	
�

Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Printed on recycled paper 

 

Bath & North East Somerset Council 
 

MEETING/
DECISION 
MAKER:  

Cabinet 

MEETING/
DECISION 
DATE:  

03 December 2014 

EXECUTIVE FORWARD 

PLAN REFERENCE: 
E 2721 

TITLE: Education Capital Projects for budgetary approval 2014-15 

WARD: All 

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

List of attachments to this report: 

None 

 
 

 
1 THE ISSUE 

1.1 Following reports that have been provided to cabinet in the past approval is 
requested for commitment of budget and inclusion in the 2014-15 education 
capital programme of specific capital schemes 

 

2 RECOMMENDATION 

Cabinet is asked to: 

2.1 Approve for inclusion in the 2014-15 Capital Programme, 2014-15 and 2015-16 
Basic Need funding totalling £1,102,000, 2014-15 Capital Maintenance funding 
of £810,000 and S106 of £42,000 at Bishop Sutton Primary School to meet 
statutory requirements for pupil places. 

2.2 Approve for inclusion in the 2015-16 Capital Programme, 2015-16 Capital 
Maintenance funding of £100,000 at St Marys Primary School, Writhlington to 
replace and expand a poor condition temporary classroom block. 

2.3 Approve for inclusion in the 2015-16 Capital Programme Basic Need funding of 
£394,258 at Weston All Saints Primary School to meet the extra cost arising from 
delays in the planning process. 

2.4 Approve for inclusion in the 2014-15 Capital Programme Basic Need funding of 
£74,000 for St Saviours Infant School to enable it to accommodate a bulge year 
from September 2014. 

Agenda Item 17

Page 189



Printed on recycled paper 

2.5 Approve for inclusion in the 2014-15 Capital Programme, Capital Maintenance 
funding of £90,000 for Chandag Infants School for works arising from the UIFSM 
statutory requirements. 

2.6 Approve for inclusion in the 2014-15 Capital Programme, funding of £142,000 
from 2013-14 capital programme savings for the replacement of classroom block 
at Chew Magna Primary School. 

2.7 Approve for inclusion in the 2014-15 Capital Programme, £68,000 from the 
2013-14 capital programme savings, £130,000 from the remainder of the 
unallocated £500,000 earmarked funding and £52,000 from 2014-15 
Maintenance grant totalling £250,000 for phase 2 works at Southdown Primary 
School. 

 

3 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCE, PROPERTY, PEOPLE) 

3.1 Children’s Services receive grant funding under two main headings: Capital 
Maintenance and Basic Need.  Developer contributions (s106) linked to specific 
areas are also available.  The uncommitted balance of the 2014-15 Capital 
Maintenance Grant of £1,976,664 is £1,731,273.  There is an uncommitted 
balance of £713,373 from the Basic Need grant for 2014-15 of £1,320,826 and a 
further £6,375,404 of Basic Need funding has been allocated for 2015-16.  There 
is also approximately £210,000 of savings from schemes in the 2013-14 capital 
programme available for re-allocation.   

3.2 The recommendations in paragraphs 2.1 to 2.7 above would commit £1,570,258 
from the Basic Need grant balance and £1,052,000 from the Capital 
Maintenance grant balance, leaving amounts of £5,518,519 and £679,273 
respectively available for allocation to other projects. These projects will be 
brought forward through the capital approval process as plans are developed 

Page 190



Printed on recycled paper 

 

3.3 The table below sets out the amounts being recommended for approval for each 
scheme and the sources of funding 

  
Basic Need 

Grant 

Capital 
Maintenance 

Grant 

Other 
Sources of 
Funding 
including 
s106 and 
virements 
from other 
schemes TOTAL 

          

2014-15 Unallocated 713,373 1,731,273     

2015-16 6,375,404       

  7,088,777 1,731,273     

Bishop Sutton 1,102,000 810,000 42,000 1,954,000 

St Marys Writhlington 0 100,000 0 100,000 

WASPS 394,258   0 394,258 

St Saviours 74,000   0 74,000 

Chandag 0 90,000 0 90,000 

Chew Magna 0   142,000 142,000 

Southdown   52,000 198,000 250,000 

  1,570,258 1,052,000 382,000 3,004,258 

          

Balance 5,518,519 679,273     

 

3.4 The DfE capital allocations are non ringfenced grant funding to enable the 
Council to fulfil its statutory duties to ensure sufficient pupil places and to remedy 
worst condition school buildings.  There are no borrowing requirements or 
revenue implications for the Council. 

3.5 The remaining resources form part of future plans that will be presented to 
cabinet in the February meeting. 

 

4 STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS AND BASIS FOR PROPOSAL 

4.1 Relevant considerations:  the Councils statutory duty to ensure sufficiency of 
pupil places, Children and Young People, Social Inclusion, Impact on staff, 
Property, Planning. 

Page 191



Printed on recycled paper 

 

5 THE REPORT 

5.1 As identified in para 3.2 and 3.3 there is funding available in the Children 
Services.  Many of these schemes have been allowed for in the 2014-15 and 
2015-16 capital programme and budgets accounted for. Details of the projects 
are as below: 

5.2 Bishop Sutton Primary School – Housing development in the village has resulted 
in extra pupils requiring 60 extra school places by September 2016.  The 
developments are in the immediate vicinity of the school, the school is the only 
one in the village; and other primary schools in the Chew Valley area are more 
than 2 miles away.  There are considerable technical difficulties with providing 
the extra accommodation because of the complexities and constraints of the site.  
The major issues are an undersized site, very undersized team games courts; 
the 1.5 metre level difference to the playing field and a single and double block 
of temporary classrooms impeding any development.  The expansion of the 
school will result in an all through primary school with 7 classrooms which the 
Governors fully support, and have also contributed greatly to the initial design 
development work.  This has resulted in a coordinated well designed scheme for 
a 5 classroom block that meets the Basic Need statutory requirements, removes 
two blocks of poor condition classrooms as well as some internal improvements 
to the management and organisation of existing teaching space.  An allocation of 
£1,954,000 from 2014-15 and 2015-16 BN Grant, 2014-15 Capital Maintenance 
Grant and S106 is required. 

5.3 St Marys CEVC Primary School, Writhlington – An elderly temporary double 
building in poor condition and a continuing liability for repairs and maintenance 
as various building elements fail, houses the foundation stage to the school.  It is 
planned to replace with a double temporary classroom block from Weston All 
Saints Primary which will become vacant pending completion of the new build in 
summer 2015.  We will also expand the building so that the school has some 
future proofing capacity against proposed housing development in the vicinity of 
the school.  Budget allows for the demolition of the existing building, installation 
and expansion of the new building.  Included in the budget is a risk allowance for 
asbestos and potential service upgrades.  An allocation of £100,000 from 2014-
15 maintenance grant is required. 

5.4 Weston All Saints CEVC Primary School – Extra budget of is required for the 
KS1 block.  Factors such as delayed granting of planning permission for the new 
KS1 block resulted in expiry of tenders which then required repricing, UIFSM 
generated costs and contingency replenishment.  An allocation of £394,258 from 
BN 2014-15 is required. 

5.5 St Saviours CEVC Infant School – As a result of local demand for reception 
places in the area, the school took a bulge class of reception pupils in 2011, and 
were asked to do the same for September 2014.  Various works to improve the 
ability of the school to organise and manage the bulge class including safer 
pedestrian access to the site, improved play areas, extra IT equipment were 
required.  An allocation of £74,000 from BN 2014-15 is required.   

5.6 Chandag Infant School – The statutory requirements of UIFSM meant the 
kitchen at Chandag Infants needed enlargement and reequipping.  This in turn 

Page 192



Printed on recycled paper 

required the replacement of a small SEN/small group/FT area which had been 
created in part of the kitchen some years ago.  The school is very constrained 
with virtually no storage areas and no dedicated small group spaces which are 
now an essential part of effective curriculum delivery.  These are to be provided 
by a small modular building which will permit whole school use.  An allocation of 
£90,000 is required and is to be funded from 2014-15 Capital Maintenance 

5.7 Chew Magna CEVC Primary School – Following the flooding of a double 
classroom block, an initial estimated budget of £208,000 of 2-12-13 Capital 
Maintenance was agreed in 2013.  Planning issues resulted in delays and 
tenders exceeding the budget.  Although savings have been taken together with 
a school contribution, further budget of £142,000 is required.  It is proposed to 
fund from part of the £210,000 identified savings from the 2013-14 capital 
programme. 

5.8 Southdown Primary School – A programme of improvement works were 
identified at the school to enable it to resolve issues arising from Ofsted findings. 
An initial budget of £150,000 was approved from the £500k earmarked for 
improvement projects in July cabinet for Phase 1 internal works which were 
completed in the summer holidays.  The provision of accessible link (ramp and 
steps is costly so further funding of £250,000 is now sought, plus extra works to  
improve access and security to the sites, security works in the junior school and 
complete reception remodelling works.  It is proposed to fund £68,000 from the 
2013-14 capital programme savings, £130,000 from the remainder of the 
unallocated £500,000 earmarked funding and £52,000 from 2014-15 
Maintenance grant.  

5.9 All of these schemes have either been considered or are timetabled for 
consideration by Capital Strategy Group. 

 

6 RATIONALE 

6.1 The projects proposed in this report are in line with the intended purpose of DfE 
capital funding; are priorities in the Schools Capital Programme that ensure the 
Council meets its statutory duty for pupil places, meets AMP priorities of worst 
condition elements that reduce long term liabilities in the school estate, and that 
overall strategic planning is embedded. 

 

7 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

7.1 The identified priorities result from detailed strategic planning of deficiencies in 
the school estate to provide sufficient pupil places and address AMP 
requirements. 

 

8 CONSULTATION 

8.1 Cabinet Member, Section 151 Officer, Strategic Director, Monitoring Officer, 
Children Service and Corporate Finance officers. 

Page 193



Printed on recycled paper 

 

9 RISK MANAGEMENT 

9.1 A risk assessment related to the issue and recommendations has been 
undertaken, in compliance with the Council's decision making risk management 
guidance. 

 

Contact person  Fiona Randle 01225 395151, fiona_randle@bathnes.gov.uk or 
Anne Woodridge 01225 395152 
anne_woodridge@bathnes.gov.uk  

 

Background 
papers 

None 

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an 
alternative format 

 

Page 194


	Agenda
	8 Minutes of Previous Cabinet Meeting
	11 Single Member Cabinet Decisions Taken since Previous Cabinet Meeting
	12 A Review Of the Council's "Think Local" Procurement Strategy
	Appx 1 Think Local One Year On Report
	Appx 2 Draft Selling To The Council Guide
	Appx 3 Social Value Policy

	13 Review of the Council's Street Trading Policy and Conditions
	Annex A Street Trading Policy Consultation Responses
	Annex B(1) Proposed Street Trading Policy
	Annex B(2) Proposed Street Trading Standard Conditions
	Annex B(3) Proposed Guidance Notes for Street Traders
	Annex C Existing Street Trading Policy

	14 Procurement of Leisure Contract
	15 Connecting Communities: Update
	16 Saltford Station
	Appx 1 Saltford Station Report by CHM2Hill

	17 Education Capital projects for budgetary approval for expenditure 2014-15

